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'| CORPORATE PROFILE

BUILDING TECHNOLOGY LEADERS

Eiron is a leading multinational technology group which takes an active and long-term role in the

development and growth of its subsidiaries and affiliates.

With diversified leading-shareholder stakes in some of the most promising and established Israeli V
technology companies, Elron creates shareholder value by providing a full range of operational and

management support to its group companies.

Through a combination of leadership and guidance, business insight, capital support and financial
expertise, in-depth market and industry knowledge, and high-level business development, Elron has

for over 40 years been involved in some of Israel's most prominent technology success stories.

From its inception, Elron has been dedicated to commercially harnessing Israeli entrepreneurial spirit
and technological innovation. Leveraging the vast R&D potential of israel's universities, scientific
institutions and defense laboratories, Eiron has excelled at creating viable, commercial technologies

- building companies that effectively take advantage of the country’s unique knowledge and human capital.

Through RDC Rafael Development Corporation, Elron's joint venture with RAFAEL (Israel's Armament
Development Authority - the primary research and development arm of the Israeli Defense Forces),
Elron is also dedicated to develop effective civilian applications of RAFAEL's proven defense
technologies. Leveraging RAFAEL's advanced technologies, scientific know-how, technological creativity
and resourcefulness, together with Elron's strong financial base, access to markets, and international

experience, RDC has been responsible for commercializing some notable Israeli defense technologies.




PEOPLE, TECHNOLOGY, PRODUCTS

Since 1962, Elron has established a track record of successfully developing market leaders by matching the right

people with the right technology to produce winning products.

Eiron has been a major force in the development of the Israeli hi-tech industry, helping build companies in the

fields of advanced defense electronics, communications, semiconductors, medical imaging, medical devices,

information technology, software products, and advanced materials.

PEOPLE

Elron actively seeks out, identifies,
and effectively leverages the best
of lIsrael's technology,
management, and entrepreneurial
talent - providing its group
companies with the best talent for

their unique needs and markets.

TECHNOLDGY

A pacesetter in the Israeli hi-tech
industry for over 40 years, Elron
works to build the next generation
of Israeli success stories —
leveraging unique access to the
cutting edge of Israeli technologies
and a proven ability to identify
technologies with global

commercial potential.

PrRoODUCTS

Eiron excels at identifying market
needs, working with group
companies to leverage core
technological competencies and
create winning products with

measurable market value.

Eiron’s shares are traded on the Tel Aviv Stock Exchange (TASE) and the NASDAQ National Market
(symbol ELRN).




LETTER TO THE SHAREHDLDERS

ELRON DEMONSTRATED
WEATHER ADVERSE
CAONDITIONS, WHILE CON
TAKE SIGNIFICANT STEPS

VALUE FOR OUR GRDUP

Dear Shareholders,

Reaping the Fruits

In 2003, we began to reap the fruits of our ongoing efforts and
investments in our group companies, demonstrating our ability to
weather adverse market conditions while
continuing to take significant steps in building
ABILITY TO

value for our group companies.
MARKET

TINUING TO During 2003, we invested approximately $25.9
IN BUILDING million, mainly in our group companies, such
COMPANIES as Galil Medical, Wavion and Oren

Semiconductor and in a new Eiron company,

Notal Vision - a medical device company
operating in the field of early detection of Age Related Macular
Deterioration (AMD).

RDC, our joint venture with RAFAEL Armament Development Ltd.
(the lsraeli Ministry of Defense's largest research and development
organization) for commercializing defense technologies, launched a
new company named Starling Advanced
Communications. Starling has developed a

revolutionary antenna and satellite

IN 2003, ELRON’S MARKET

communication solution that enables commercia!

CAPITALIZATION ALMDST DOUBLED

alrborne cost-effective broadband connectivity.

ITSELF FROM $168 MiLLIGN TO

E3I3 1 MILLION

In the second half of 2003, when initial
indications of recovery in the technology sector

) and capital markets were visible, we reported
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."‘°°° urology therapy units of our subsidiary, Galil

Medical with the brachytherapy business of

Amersham (LSE, NYSE, OSE: AHM), a world
leader in medical diagnostics and life sciences, and sold the assets and
business of our majority-owned subsidiary Elron Software to Zix
Corporation, a US public company (NASDAQ: ZiXI), a provider of e-
messaging protection and transaction services, and recorded substantial
gains from realizing shares of our publicly-traded holding in Partner
Communications Company (NASDAQ: PTNR).




As a result, Elron's net loss in 2003 decreased significantly to $7.2
million, or $0.25 per share, as compared to $41.6 million, or $1.58 per
share in 2002. Furthermore, Elron reported two consecutive quarters
of net income in the last two quarters of 2003 in the aggregate amount

of $6.1 million.

In 2003, Elron’s market capitalization almost doubled itself from $168
million to $33 1 million. Our stock price increased from $5.75 at the
end of 2002 to $11.32 at the end of 2003.

Building Value for Our Publicly-Held Group Companies

OQur publicly-traded group companies, feaders in their respective fields,
continued to improve their financial performance and demonstrate
their ability to sustain growth throughout 2003.

Given Imaging (NASDAQ: GIVN), in which we hold 7% directly and
indirectly through RDC, is a medical device company which developed
and markets a disposable miniature video camera in a capsule for
visualizing the gastrointestinal tract. The company recorded revenues
of $40.5 million in 2003 - an increase of 40.3% over the revenues of
$28.9 million recorded in 2002. Given Imaging's net loss continued to
decline and amounted to $9.6 million in 2003, compared to $18.3
million in 2002, reflecting the increase in revenues as well as initiatives

taken earlier in 2003 to control costs.

Eibit Systems (NASDAQ: ESLT), in which we hold approximately 20%,
ts Israel's largest non-governmental defense electronics company. The
company reported revenue growth of 8.5%, from $827.5 million in
revenue in 2002 to $898.0 million in 2003, and its backlog at the end
of 2003 increased to $1,752 million. Elbit Systems' net income amounted
to $45.9 million in 2003, as compared to $45.1 million in 2002.

Partner Communications (NASDAQ: PTNR), in which we hold
approximately 9%, is the only GSM cellular operator in Israel. The
company reported record results in 2003, which positioned it as the
fastest-growing company in its sector. Partner’'s revenues in 2003,

driven primarily by a 14.5% growth in subscriber base, increased to
$1,020.3 million, up 10.2% from $925.9 million in 2002
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Partner had 2,103,000 subscribers at the end of 2003 - as compared
to 1,837,000 at the end of 2002, Partner's net income in 2003 was

$265.5 million as

RETURNING TO PROFITABILITY WITH
TWO CONSECUTIVE QUARTERS OF NET

INCCOME IN THE END OfF 20083

Income (loss) per share

-!5?7 ] B Nat income (loss) (M)

-0.62 M Netincome (loss) per share ($)

QI-02 Q202 Q3-02 Q4-02 QI-03. Q2-03 Q3-03 Q4-03

compared to $19.2 million in 2002.

Growing Our Privately-Held Group Companies

Galil Medical, in which we hold 39% directly and
indirectly through RDC, completed on July |,
2003 the merger of its urology business with
Amersham, creating a new company — Oncura.
Oncura provides minimally invasive treatment
options for prostate cancer, based on Amersham'’s
brachytherapy technology and Galil Medical’s
cryotherapy technology. Oncura reported $3 14
million revenues in its first two guarters of
operations, and is a worldwide leader in minimally
invasive treatments of the prostate cancer. Galil

Medical plans to continue developing its

cryotherapy technology for applications in other health care fields.

Oren, a developer of silicon solutions for the digital television market,

WE ENTER 2004 wWITH A STRONDG
BALANCE SHEET, SHOWING
SHAREHDBDLDERS' EQUITY oF

APPROXIMATELY $296 MILLION

Balance Sheet Data (3M)

: 2003 2002 2001
Cash resources 122 100 H3
Investments in group companies 286 22 165
Total assets ) 451 . 394 322
Shareholders’ equity 296 259 234

completed an $8.0 million financing round led
by Elron, and including Zoran Corporation
(NASDAQ: ZRAN) and Oren's existing
shareholders. Following the transaction, we hold
approximately 41% of Oren. The strategic
cooperation with Zoran will assist Oren in selling
its front-end solution to leading manufacturers

of digital TV solutions.

Wavion, which specializes in the development
of “smart antenna” technology to enhance the
performance of wireless systems, completed a
financing round led by Sequoia Seed Capital,

raising $12.5 million. We invested $3 million

in this round, and we now hold approximately 38% of Wavion.
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Our other group companies, mainly Elron Telesoft, NetVision, ChipX
and AMT reduced losses in 2003 and built operations to secure growth
in 2004.

Gateway to the Future

We enter 2004 with a strong balance sheet, including $296.1 million
in Shareholders’ equity, representing 66% of total assets, and cash
resources net of debts of our subsidiaries of

$39.7 million. WE WILL CONTINUE TO BUILD VALUE

IN OUR GRDUP CDMPANIES AND

With the right combination of a strong grou
©re g group INVEST IN NEW ATTRACGCTIVE

of promising public and private companies, a

DPPORTUNITIES OFFERED BY THE

positive outlook of recovery in the technology
: . ISRAEL! HIGH-TECH MARKET
sector, and substantial resources, we begin 2004

with an optimistic outlook. In 2004, we wili
continue to build value in our group companies

and invest directly and through RDC in new attractive opportunities

offered by the Israel high-tech market, in order to continue to increase
value for our shareholders.

ERRNUONIIRY IR I TN S}

We thank our employees for their continuing contribution and effort

in promoting the company, and extend our gratitude to our shareholders

Pl

for their continued trust and support.

Sincerely,

/70&\47&/ D __
i Ami Erel Doron Birger

Chairman of the Board Chief Executive Officer & President
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GIVEN IMAGING

IMAGING

Expanding the scope of 6/

Gl-@EN(‘D

Established in 1998 by RDC, Given Imaging Ltd. is a global leader in the development and provision
of patient-friendly imaging solutions for the gastrointestinal community. The company's flagship
product is the Given® Diagnostic System featuring the M2A® Capsule Endoscope, the only method
for direct visualization of the entire small intestine that is naturally ingested. Based on the growing
body of published clinical research, Capsule Endoscopy is now the accepted gold standard for

detecting disease in the small intestine.

The system uses a disposable miniature video camera contained in a capsule which is ingested by the
patient. The M2A capsule passes naturally through the digestive tract, transmitting high quality color
images, without interfering with the patient’s normal activities. The system received clearance from
the FDA in August 200! and received permission to affix the CE mark in May 2001. The company

received clearance in 2003 to market Capsule Endoscopy for children from ages 10 and above.

Distribution channels for the system have been established in more than 50 countries worldwide. More
than 80,000 capsules have been used in clinical practice. Thousands of patients around the world have
benefited from the M2A capsule, which has been used to diagnose a range of diseases of the small
intestine including Crohn's Disease, Celiac disease and other malabsorption disorders, benign and
malighant tumors of the small intestine, obscure bleeding, vascular disorders, medication related small

bowel injury, as well as a range of pediatric small bowel disorders.

The Given Diagnostic System consists of the following components:

* The M2A® Capsule Endoscope - an ingestible, disposable, miniature video camera, which glides
smoothly through the digestive tract and transmits over 50,000 high-quality color video images of
the entire small intestine.

* The Given® data recorder - worn by the patient on a belt, the “walkman-like" recorder receives
the images transmitted from the capsule through external abdominal sensors and gives patients
complete mobility during the examination, so they can continue with their daily activities.
+ The RAP|D® workstation, equipped with Given's proprietary RAPID™ (Reporting and Processing
of Images and Data) application software - sophisticated software for data processing, incorporating
relevant data gathered from the M2A capsule, and producing a video of the Gl tract. The software
features options for viewing the video, saving individual images and short video clips, saving findings,

and printing reports.

(~ivinr lmamasinag Naral Vie
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The company intends to use this technological platform in the development of future generation
capsules for examining other parts of the gastrointestinal tract, such as the esophagus, the stomach
and the colon. Given has submitted and received numerous patents worldwide for the technologies
employed in the Given Diagnostic System and for new capsules to be developed using this advanced

technological platform.

Given Imaging completed a successful IPO in October 2001. Its shares are traded on NASDAQ
(symbol: GIVN) and on the Tel-Aviv Stock Exchange Market (TASE). The company's revenues totaled
$40.5 million for the fiscal year 2003.

The company maintains its corporate headquarters, R&D laboratories, and production plant in
Yogneam, Israel. Given's North American headquarters are located in Atlanta, Georgia, and its
European headquarters are located in Hamburg, Germany.

www.givenimaging.com

NOTAL VISION

@ oA
: U NOTALVISION..
Founded in 2000, Notal Vision™ has developed the first comprehensive diagnostic solution for the

early detection and frequent monitoring of age-related macular degeneration (AMD), the leading

cause of blindness in the Western world,

Over sixteen million patients in the United States alone suffer from AMD, and early detection of
AMD is critical in slowing or stopping the disease’s deleterious effects. Notal Vision’s Preferential
Hyperacuity Perimetry ™ (PHP™) is an innovative, non-invasive solution which provides an answer
to the surging need for early detection and frequent monitoring of AMD. The PHP™ early detection
device received FDA clearance in March 2002.

In January 2003, Notal Vision signed an agreement with Carl Zeiss Meditec Inc., one of the world’s
leading manufacturers and distributors of professional ophthalmologic equipment, for the exclusive

marketing and distribution of its PHP™ product.

Notal Vision has recruited leading ophthalmology specialists and opinion leaders from around the

world to define PHP™ as the standard of care in AMD diagnosis and monitoring.

Notal Vision's corporate headquarters and R&D facility are located in Tel Aviv, Israel.

www.notalvision.com
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G ALIL MEDICAL

GALIL MEDICAL

Founded in 1997 by RDC, Galil Medical Ltd. is a provider of minimally invasive, innovative cryotherapy
systems. The company designs and develops minimally invasive temperature-based therapies for
treatment of both benign and malignant diseases for various applications. Galil Medical's technology
offers an alternative to open surgery for a wide range of cancerous and benign tumors, with minimal

side effects and low risk of disease recurrence.

Since 1999, Galil Medical has focused on developing products to address specific urologic diseases,
including prostate cancer (the most common cancer in American men) and kidney cancer. The

company has installed more than 220 systems in medical institutions worldwide.

In july 2003, Galil and Amersham pic (LSE, NYSE, OSE: AHM), a worldwide leader in life

sciences and medical diagnostics, came together to create ONCURD.

A global leader in the innovative treatment of prostate cancer, Oncura is the product of a merger
between Amersham's health therapy activity and Galil Medical's urology activity, and is jointly held
by Amersham (75%) and Galil (25%). Oncura has the unique ability to offer leading minimally invasive
treatment options for prostate cancer - brachytherapy and cryotherapy - for use in patients with

early, as well as more advanced and recurrent stages of the disease.

Oncura will also offer the option of cryotherapy for the treatment of kidney cancer, and the venture
brings new long-term contracts for Galil Medical for the development of new products, and

manufacturing of cryourology products for the urology field.

As Galil's cryotherapy technology is expandable to a wide range of diseases, the company continues

to develop additional applications to be used in other healthcare fields.

Galil Medical's headquarters, R&D and manufacturing facilities are located in Yogneam, Israel.

www.galil-medical.com
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PARTNER

partner commuynicalions

Founded in 1997, Partner Communications Company Ltd. is a leading Israeli mobile communications
service provider known for its GSM/GPRS-based services and the development of wirefree applications

under the Orange™ brand.

Partner was awarded its 900 GSM license in February 1998. Since commencing full commercial
operations in the beginning of 1999, Partner has established itself as a leader in terms of growth
and development, and is démonstrating robust financial and operational performance. Partner has
changed the face of the celiular market in Israel with its clear vision, combined with a focus on

performance and results.

Partner’'s innovative marketing, wide selection of services, advanced technology, and value-added
applications have resulted in an improved EBITDA (Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation,
and Amortization), operating profit, net profit and cash flow. In terms of subscribers and revenues,
Partner has consistently captured the lion's share of the growth in the Israeli cellular market. Partner's

subscriber base of over two million represents an estimated 319% of the cellular market in Israel.

Partner was awarded a 3G license in 2002, enabling the company to move ahead with its plans to
launch an advanced third generation cellular network in Israel, thereby ensuring that the company's

subscribers continue to enjoy superior wireless services.

Partner’s ADRs are traded on NASDAQ under the symbol PTINR, on the London Stock Exchange
(LSE) under the symbol PCCD, and on the Tel Aviv Stock Exchange (TASE).

Partner is headquartered in Rosh-Ha'ain, Israel.

www.orange.co.il

artner




NETVISION

NETVISION

Founded in 1994, NetVision has grown to become lsrael's largest Internet Service Provider (ISP)

for the corporate and retail markets.

As of December 31, 2003, NetVision had 360,000 subscribers. NetVision pioneered Internet service
in Israel, and helped propel the country on its global technology path. NetVision designs integrated
Internet solutions to match the needs of its customers - to make their lives more efficient, easier,

and convenient.

NetVision offers a wide range of Internet-related services: high-speed modem dial-up, Cable and
ADSL connections, dedicated lines connecting LAN-to-LAN, communication servers, data security
system integration and maintenance, private networks for international corporations, application

hosting, and custom online services.

NetVision develops and operates the Nana Internet portal (www.nana.co.il), Israel's second most
popular portal. Launched in July 1999, Nana immediately assumed a leading position in the Israehi
Internet content market, and offers visitors a wide range of content channels, Internet services, and
community features. The portal operates more than 150 different forums and discussion groups as

well as Israel's busiest chat room.

NetVision's content department also develops a variety of content-based products and premium

content packages for its customers, both in the consumer and business sectors.

NetVision entered the e-commerce arena in 1998, with the launch of Netaction, Israel's first auction
site (www.netaction.co.il). Netaction is Israel’s largest and leading e-commerce platform, not only
providing visitors access to auctions but also to special group-price sales of a wide range of products

from some of the country's top retailers and distributors,

Through its subsidiary, Netvision Internet Applications, Netvision also offers application development

services, specializing in complex internet and intranet systems and B2C applications.

NetVision is headquartered in Haifa, Israel.

www.netvision.co.il
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Founded in 2000 by veterans of RAFAEL, other high-tech companies and Elron, Wavion develops

and delivers antenna array technology for all types of wireless systems. The company's proprietary
signal processing algorithms provide significant performance gains in system capacity, operating range,
data rate, interference mitigation, and multipath mitigation. Wavion's modular technology can be
customized to meet the requirements of most equipment vendors, and integrates easily into any

wireless communication system.

Woavion is headquartered in Yogneam, Israel.

www.wavionnetworks.com

STARLING

i'Stau'ling

Advanced Communications

Founded in 2001, Starling is a provider of innovative connectivity solutions for the burgeoning
broadband access market for aircraft. s antenna and SATCOM systems are based on proven
technology developed at RAFAEL and Elbit Systems.

Starling has succeeded to commercialize advanced defense technologies in the fields of antennas
and SATCOM resource allocation systems. The result is a unique connectivity solution that makes
possible the delivery of advanced Internet services and applications for security, entertainment and
operations on all three major categories of aircraft, namely, business jets, narrow-body and wide-

body and on military platforms.

The Starling MIJET product line offers a unique connectivity solution that incorporates a Ku-band
antenna with a proprietary SATCOM resource allocation system that effectively utilizes satellite
transponder capacity. The solution enables the delivery of high speed Internet services on a broadband
connection of up to 40 Mbps. Starling offers airlines and service providers the optimal solution for
a revenue-generating platform given the difficult trade-offs that must be made between coverage,

capacity and price.

Starling is headquartered in Yogneam, Israel.

www.starling-com.com
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PuLsicaom

Pulsicom
Technologies

Founded in 2000 utilizing UWB technology, Pulsicom develops very wide band positioning systems
- including circuit design, antennas, board design, algorithms and integration - based on time-of-

arrival measurements.

Pulsicom has developed a variety of antennas with unique form-factors and characteristics, including
an antenna for commercial applications, low-cost consumer electronics antennas, high performance
circular polarization antennas, UWB antennas, and smart antennas. Pulsicom has also developed low-
noise amplifiers, power amplifiers, variable gain amplifiers, and circuits consuming low-power at

various frequencies.

Pulsicom is headquartered in Or-Yehuda, Israel.

www.pulsicom.com

CELLACT

d
cellact

Founded in 2000, Cellact Ltd. is a leading cellular messaging provider. Nimbus, Cellact's cellular
messaging platform, was first commercially released in July 200(. Nimbus provides both cellular
operators and enterprises with a comprehensive solution for generating, operating and controlling

cellular messaging applications.

Cellact's two-way SMS platform is currently in use by all four of Israel’s mobile operators, and is

responsible for the successful delivery of more than 20 million text messages each month.

Cellact's major customers come from a variety of industries, including telecom, finance and contact

centers.

Cellact is headquartered in Shefaim, Israel.

www.cellact.com

COMMUNICATIONS T o



CHIFPX
(formerly: Chip Express)

Chip{x}

Founded in 1989, ChipX designs, develops, and manufactures high performance Structured ASICs
(Application Specific Integrated Circuits) for a broad variety of electronic systems companies, fabless
semiconductor companies, and design houses. The company's patented technology offers much
lower NRE (Nonrecurring Engineering) costs than other forms of hard-wired ASICs such as standard
cells, significantly higher performance, and a lower per-unit cost than FPGAs (Field Programmable
Gate Arrays).

ChipX's Structured ASIC technology enables the best overall balance of cost, performance, and time
to market when compared with the solutions offered by standard cell ASIC vendors and FPGA
manufacturers. The company's products are used in numerous applications in a wide variety of end
markets including medical, military/aerospace, communications, consumer, computer, industrial, and

automotive.

The company's global customer base includes AMCC, ADC Telecommunications, Cisco, Emulex, GE

Medical, Hughes Network Systems, Lockheed, Lucent, Motorola, Raytheon, and Rockwell.

ChipX is headquartered in Santa Clara, USA.

www.chipexpress.com

OREN

Bren

Semiconductor

Founded in 1995 as a spin-off of Zoran (Nasdag: ZRAN), then an Elron affiliate, Oren Semiconductor
Inc. designs, develops, and markets advanced semiconductor solutions for analog and digital television.
The company has a proven track record in the development and sales of digital communication
integrated circuits (ICs) for use in digital TV products. its products enable reception of rich digital
media to consumer electronics (digital set-top boxes, integrated digital TVs, PCs) and other broadband

appliances.

Oren has integrated digital and analog television standards into a single digital signal-processing (DSP)
core. The company's unique, patented DSP architecture allows Oren’s products to manage the
complexities of receiving digital TV transmissions, while offering flexibility and programmability.
Oren's digital TV demodulator ICs incorporate front-end receiver functions that reproduce digital
data transmitted by air, satellite, or cable. Among the company's customers are large multinationals

like Sony, Mitsubishi, [VC, Hughes, and other leading companies.
Sony and Zoran are strategic investors in the company.

Oren is headquartered in Yogneam, Israel.

www.oren.com

ChipX




EVS

Etbit Vision Systems Ltd.

Founded in 1994, Elbit Vision Systems Ltd. ("EVS") designs,
develops, manufactures, markets and supports automatic visual
inspection and quality monitoring systems for industrial fabrics
(textile, non-woven, autemotive, fiberglass and plastic), bare

wafers (for use in semi-conductors), and LCD displays.

For the industrial fabrics sector and the bare wafer manufacturing
sectors, EVS markets the following product lines:
» [-Tex, I-Tex Lite, for the visual inspection and quality monitoring of woven, non-woven fabrics,
metal coils, plastic and papers;

* PRIN-TEX, for monitoring of printing defects on fabric;

* BFA - Broken Filaments Analyzer, for the detection of filament defects in glass fabrics;
+ SVA - Shade Variation Analyzer, for the detection of shade inconsistency in dyed fabric.
* Mounting Wax Monitoring System to monitor the uniformity of the mounting wax for wafers.
+ Back Side Inspection System is an in-line solution for the optical inspection of wafer surfaces.
* Dynamic Roughness Monitoring System is a system for in-line inspection of wafer surface roughness

at different stages of the manufacturing process.

For the flat panel display industry EVS develops and markets products to inspect the quality of

assembled LCD screens online.
EVS's shares are traded on NASDAQ on the OTC under the symbol EVSNF.

EVS is headquartered in Yogneam, Israel.

www.evs.co.il

SELA

Founded in 1992, SELA develops and manufactures vield-enhancing and automation equipment for
the semiconductor and optical components industries. Viewed as a technology leader and innovator,
SELA's success is based on its breakthrough patented technologies, which overcome bottlenecks

in the semiconductor failure analysis process.

SELA’s automated systems are used to prepare samples for scanning electron microscopy (SEM) and
transmission electron microscopy (TEM). SELA’s large and distinguished customer base includes most

of the world’s leading semiconductor fabrication facilities, with over 200 installed systems worldwide.

Sela is headquartered in Yogneam, Israel.

www.sela.com




ELRON TELESOFT

Elron TeleSoft

Since 1983, Elron TeleSoft has been enabling telecom service providers to secure market advantage

by improving revenue and service assurance processes.

With over two decades of experience, Efron TeleSoft has unique skills in network performance
analysis and OSS/BSS. The company's innovative solutions have earned it a reputation for guality

and reliability, and have attracted high-profile customers such as C&W, NTT and Vodafone.

Protecting revenues is as important as finding new business. Until now, companies have relied heavily
on partial solutions, manual inspection and contro! processes, which are cumbersome, time consuming
and ad-hoc. Pooling extensive telecom and revenue assurance expertise, Elron TeleSoft has developed
a highly versatile Process Control tool that delivers end-to-end Revenue Assurance (RA) capabilities

in addition to Billing Verification.
Portfolio Leaders:

RAP — Revenue Assurance Process Control

Telcos need automatic and systematic tools in order to monitor all processes. The RAP continuously
identifies revenue leaks. Every risk point is identified, monitored and managed — and every leak is
sealed. By exercising greater control, Telcos can improve both the top and bottom lines of their
income statements. The RAP provides proven functionality and methodology to build, control and

validate processes within both wireline and wireless operators.

ESSB - Switch-to-Bill Verification Tool
The ESSB collects different formats of Data Records from various sources such as switches, billing,
mediation and signaling systems, and compares them with different multi-cycled keys, analyzes the

discrepancies and fixes them by adding the relevant (missed or mistaken) information.

Elron Telesoft is headguartered in Petach-Tikva, [srael,

www.elrontelesoft.com

Elran Teleacnfr



ELBIT SYSTEMS

A SYSTEMS Ltd:

Elbit Systems Ltd. (NASDAQ:ESLT) is an international defense electronics company engaged in a
wide range of defense-related programs throughout the world. The company is active in the areas
of aerospace, ground and naval systems, Command, Control, Communications, Computers and
Intelligence ("CH") and advanced electro-optic and space technologies. A major developer of
advanced electronics and electro-optical systems for the defense and homeland security markets,
Elbit Systems' core technologies and integrated solutions are tailored to diverse applications and

customer needs.

Principal Business Areas:
Airborne and Helmet Mounted Systems, including aircraft and helicopter upgrade projects, advanced
avionics, helmet-mounted systems, head-up displays, digital maps, mission computers, aerial

reconnaissance systems, and guided weapon systems.

Unmanned Airborne Vehicles (UAVs): with the increasing demand for UAV in muitiple military and
homeland security situations, Elbit Systems offers a variety of systems and turnkey solutions based
on its advanced tactical UAV systems. Elbit Systems is the primary UAV supplier to the Israel Defense

Forces, with thousands of operational hours.

Land Systems, including armored vehicle upgrades, advanced fire control systems, thermal imaging
and laser systems, displays, electrical turret drives and crew protection systems. Command, Control,
Communications, Computers & Intelligence (”C4|") Systems, including information and battle

management systems and software-intensive CH programs for various applications.

Electro-optic Systems: encompassing space cameras, specialized day and night sensors and payloads,
thermal imaging systems, lasers, reconnaissance and observation systems for airborne, land and naval

applications.

Homeland Security: comprehensive security solutions for prevention, detection, deterrence and
response - the major challenges confronting nations worldwide. The Elbit Systems Group systems
and turnkey solutions include various sensors, lasers, surveillance platforms and information technology

programs.

Lifespan Logistics and Support Services, provided by Elbit Systems and its service-related subsidiaries,
and encompassing a full range of services and support, from design to deployment, including setting

up facilities at customer sites.

Elbit Systems



Revenues in 2003 amounted to $898 million; backlog of firm orders as of December 31, 2003 was
$1.752 million.

Elbit Systems' shares are traded on the Tel-Aviv Stock Exchange Market (TASE) and on NASDAQ
under the symbol ESLT.

www.elbitsystems.com

Major Wholly Owned Subsidiaries:

Elop Electro-Optics Industries Ltd. (El-Op) develops and produces advanced electro-optical products
and systems for military and civilian use. Based in Nes Tziona, Israel, EI-Op's areas of operations
include thermal imaging, lasers, optical systems, space and airborne reconnaissance systems.

www.el-op.co.il

EFW Inc. is the base of operations for the Elbit Systems Group in the United States. Headquartered
in Fort Worth, Texas, EFW has subsidiaries in New Hampshire, Alabama, California and Georgia.
EFW's activities encompass the design, manufacture and support of electronic and electro-optical
systems for tactical aircraft, helicopters and ground vehicles. Among EFW's customers are Lockheed
Martin, Boeing, United Defense L.P., and the United States Air Force, Navy, Army, and Marine Corps.
Together with Rockwell-Collins, EFW jointly owns Vision Systems International LLC, a leader in the
area of helmet-mounted systems.

www.efw.com

Silver Arrow is engaged in the development, production and support of UAV systems. Silver Arrow
produces a full range of UAV systems for tactical use. Its wholly owned subsidiary, UAV Engines Ltd.

(in the United Kingdom), produces UAV engines. Silver Arrow is based in Rishon Lezion, lsrael.

Cyclone Aviation Products Ltd. is engaged in the production of structural assemblies and parts for
some of the world's leading aerospace companies, and in the maintenance, repairs and customized
upgrades of light airplanes and helicopters. Cyclone is based in the Karmiel area, lsrael.

www.cyclone-aviation.com

DEFENSE
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A.M.T.

Advanced Metal Technologies

Advanced
Metal Technologies

Founded in 1993, AM.T. Group develops technologies, processes and finished products in the field of
amorphous metals.

AM.T. coordinates the activity of its four subsidiaries as relates to future activities such as raising capital,
development of new technologies in amorphous metals and other advanced materials, and founding new
subsidiaries based on these technologies.

Amorphous metals are, in fact, a family of materials based on the same cooling process using different
compositions and additives. Each of the metals is used for a different application. The basic amorphous
metals are ribbons of up to 70mm width and |5-45um thickness, glass coated micro wires with diameter
of 2-300pum and powders with diameter of 5-30um.

As a result of intensive R&D, a cluster of start-up subsidiaries emerged with applications and solutions in
areas such as heating, authentication, electronics, communication, agriculture, and healthcare,

AM.T. is headquartered in Even-Yehuda, Isarel.
www.amt.co.il

Main Companies
AHT - Advanced Heating Technologies Ltd. — An AM.T. Company (72%)

Founded in 1998, AHT develops and produces heating products for indoor, outdoor, agricultural and
industrial heating applications, based on amorphous ribbons and powders.

AHT holds a global patent on the use of amorphous metal for heating products. The company’s amorphous
ribbons aliow production of heating elements that are significantly more effective than conventional crystalline
wires due to large transfer area, low mass, low cost, and low temperature.

AHT is headqurtered in Netania, Israel.
www.aht-heating.com

ACS ~ Advanced Coding Systems Ltd. — An AM.T. Company (58%)

Founded in 1999, ACS develops commercial products based on unique Glass-coated Micro Wire (GMW),
Combining advanced technology and proprietary know-how, the metallurgists and engineers at ACS embed
GMW in various substances to produce “smart” tags, labels, and detectors for a wide range of industries.
These leading-edge identification, authentication, and anti-shoplifting solutions provide increased security
and absolute identification.

ACS is headqurtered in Ceasaria, Israel.
www.acs-coding.com

N
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MANAGEMENT REPORT FOR 2003,

The following management report should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements as of and for the

year ended December 31, 2003 and the notes thereto. This report contains forward-looking statements that involve risks

and uncertainties. Such forward-looking statements may be identified by the words “anticipate”, “believe”, “estimate”, “expect”,

“plan” and similar expressions. Our actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking

statements as a result of certain factors, including, but not limited to, those discussed in our filings with the U.S. Securities

and Exchange Commission from time to time.

OVERVIEW

We are a multi-national high technology cperational holding
company that operates through subsidiaries and affiliated
companies, referred to as our group companies. Founded
in 1962, we have been a major force in the development
of the Israeli high technology industry by building Israeli and
Israel-related companies with technologies in the fields of
advanced defense electronics, communications and
semiconductors. In recent years we have pursued a strategy
of focusing our holdings also on medical devices, software
products and services and advanced materials and increasing
our direct involvement in these areas. Most of our group
companies were established together with entrepreneurs
or started as activities within Elron and were subsequently
spun-off. In addition, some of our group companies grew
out of our subsidiary, RDC Rafael Development Corporation
Ltd. (“RDC”)V. a joint venture with Rafael Armament
Development Ltd. ("Rafael”), the largest research and
development organization of Israel's Ministry of Defense.
RDC was established for the purposes of exploiting Rafael's
technology in non-military markets. Our group companies

include both publicly traded and privately held companies.

Technology industries are characterized by the high degree
of risk inherent in their products, their continuous
technological innovation and their penetration into world
markets, which requires investment of considerablie resources
and continucus development efforts. The future success of
our group companies is dependent upon their technological
quality, prices and nature of their products in comparison
to their competitors and their ability to introduce new
products to the markets at the right time, while offering
cost effective solutions suitable to their customers' needs
as well as their ability to raise financing and the condition

of the capital markets.

Our activities range from complete operational control over
the business to involvement in the management of our group
companies in which we maintain controlling or significant
holdings, and, in a limited number of cases, minority holdings.
We participate in the management of most of our group
companies by means of active membership on their boards
of directors and board committees. As a result, we are
involved in matters of policy, strategic planning, marketing,
selecting and manning senior management positions,
approving investments and budgets, financing and the overall
ongoing monitoring of our group companies’ performance.
In addition to our representation on the boards of directors
of our group companies, we provide hands-on assistance to
the group companies’ management in support of their
growth, We view our hands-on involvement in the operations
of our group companies as a key element of our business.
Our group companies therefore benefit from the experience
of our management team in various areas in which they
need support and leadership, including, but not limited to,
budgetary control, legal support, market analysis, risk
management, identifying joint venture opportunities,
introductions to potential customers and investors, business
plan preparation, strategic planning and research and

development guidance.

We expect to continue to build and realize value for our
shareholders from our group companies through the sale
of a portion or all of our holdings in, or the issuance of
shares by any of our group companies to third parties, while
simultaneously pursuing the acquisition of, or investment in,
new and existing compantes. We believe that this strategy
provides the ability to increase shareholder value as well as

capital to support the growth of our group companies.
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Our net income (or loss) in any given period is due, in the
most part, to the results of operations of our group companies
{which are accounted by us under the consolidation or equity
method of accounting) and dispositions and changes in our
holdings of group companies. As most of our group companies
are technology companies which have not yet generated
significant revenues and which invest considerable resources
in research and development and in marketing activities, we
have experienced, and expect to continue to experience,
losses in respect of these companies. Our capital resources
in any given period are primarily affected by the extent of
our investment in existing and new companies and the

realization of certain holdings. The results of operations of

"~ our group companies, and consequently, our results of

operations and capital resources, are affected by genera!
economic market conditions as well as by factors specifically
related to the technology markets, which also affect the
ability of our group companies to raise financing and our
ability to dispose of holdings and realize gains from our

investments.

TREND INFORMATION

The downturn in the world economy and, in particular, in
the technology sector during the last three years affected
our and our group companies' results of operations and
their ability to raise additional financing from other sources
and led us to re-examine our group company structure at
all levels. As a result, our main focus was on the following:
(i) supporting the financing needs of our existing companies
while investing to a lesser extent in new companies; (ii)
adjusting group companies operations and minimizing their
cash burn-rate without adversely affecting their core activities
and potential growth; (iii) divesting from other companies
in our group not operating in our main areas of involvement;
and (iv) merging Eibit Ltd. (“Elbit”) and DEP Technology
Holdings Ltd. ("DEP") into Elron in order to create a more
simplified and efficient organizational structure as well as to
reduce operational and management costs. Market conditions
also affected our ability to successfully "exit” some of our
group companies and record capital gains at the same level

that we experienced in the years prior to the downturn.

In the second half of 2003, there were initial indications of
recovery in the technology sector and capital markets. This

trend was reflected in the improvement in the results of

operations of most of our group companies as well as the
raising of funds from new strategic investors in private
placements completed by some of our group companies,
namely Wavion and Oren Semiconductor in the second half
of 2003 and Chip Express in the beginning of 2004. In
addition, we recorded gains as a result of the merger of the
urology therapy units of our subsidiary Galil Medical Ltd.
(“Galil Medical") with the brachytherapy business of
Amersham plc (.“Amersham"), the sale of assets and business
of our subsidiary Elron Software Inc. (“"ESI”) to Zix
Corporation ("Zix") and from the sale of a portion of our

shares in Partner Communications Company Ltd. (“Partner”).

We believe, based on published analyst and research group
reports, that the recovery trend of the technology sector '
will continue in 2004 and we anticipate this to have a“positive
effect on our group companies. We also anticipate increasing
our investments in new companies in our main areas of

operation.

MAJOR DEVELOPMENTS IN
ODOUR SUBSIDIARIES

Galil Medical and Amersham merge urology therapy units.
On july I, 2003, the merger between the urology business
of our subsidiary, Galil Medical, and the brachytherapy
business of Amersham (LSE, NYSE, OSE: AMM) was
completed. According to the merger agreement, a new
company, Oncura, Inc., was incorporated. Oncura has a
global presence in minimally invasive treatments of prostate
cancer. Oncura provides minimally invasive treatment options
for prostate cancer using brachytherapy (radio-active seeds)
and cryotherapy (hyper-cooling) technologies. Galil Medical
has developed innovative cryotherapy, a minimally invasive
advanced hyper-cooling technology that allows extremely
fast, high-resolution and controlled destruction of cancerous
tissue. Cryotherapy is a new technology, used to treat
advanced stages of prostate cancer or recurrent disease. It
complements the brachytherapy in which Amersham is a
market leader. Both minimally invasive techniques offer
physicians and patients alternatives to prostatectomy surgery.
At the closing, Amersham and Galil Medical each contributed
the related operations and assets necessary for Oncura to
conduct the brachytherapy business and the cryotherapy
business, respectively, in the urology field, and in exchange

for such assets, Amersham received 78% and Galil Medical




received 22%, of the outstanding shares of Oncura. In
addition, at the closing, Galil Medical purchased 3% of Oncura
from Amersham in consideration for $4.5 million in cash, of
which $3.0 million was paid as of December 31, 2003, and
the balance is due in june 2004, resulting in Galil Medical's
aggregate ownership interest of 25% of Oncura. Until the
payment of the balance, 4% of Oncura shares held by Galil
Medical, are pledged in favor of Amersham. As a result of
the transaction, a gain in the amount of $21.2 million was
recorded in 2003. Our share in this gain (net of minority
interest and income taxes) amounted to $4.4 million. The
investment in Oncura is accounted for under the equity

method of accounting. (See also "Critical Accounting Policies”™).

Galit Medical and Amersham each entered, separately, into
supply and research and development ("R&D") service
agreements pursuant to which Galil Medical and Amersham
provide Oncura with certain exclusive supply, manufacturing
and R&D services, upon a cost plus basis, according to the
terms and conditions stipulated in the relevant agreements.
Galil Medical plans to continue developing its cryotherapy

technology for applications in other health care fields.

Sale of substantially all of Elron SW (formerly: Elron
Software) assets and business. On September 2, 2003, our
subsidiary, ESJ, sold substantially all of its assets and business
to Zix Corporation (Nasdaq: ZIXI[) ("Zix"), a global provider
of e-messaging protection and transaction services, in
consideration for 1,709,402 shares of Zix's common stock,
with a market value of approximately $6.0 million and a
5.75% convertible note of ${.0 million. In addition, Zix
assumed certain liabilities of ESI in the net amount of
approximately $1.0 million. As part of the transaction, ESI
changed its name to Elron SW Inc. ("ESW").

The transaction resulted in a gain of approximately $4.1
million, of which approximately $2.5 million represents the
elimination of the liability to minority shareholders previously
recorded by us in respect of ESW's employee stock options,

due to the expiration of those options.

According to SFAS 144, "Accounting for the Impairment or
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”, since the operations and
cash flows of the business sold have been eliminated from

the operations of ESW and ESW will no longer have

continuing involvement in the operations of the business
after its sale, the 2003 results of operations of the business
and the gain on the sale have been classified as discontinued
operations in the statement of operations and prior periods
resufts have been reclassified accordingly.

During the fourth guarter of 2003 we sold 1,117,155 Zix
shares, including 262,454 shares resulting from the conversion
of the convertible note, for approximately $9.0 million and
recorded a gain, after tax, of approximately $3.2 million. As
of December 31, 2003, the remaining common shares held
by us constitute approximately 3% of the outstanding share
capital of Zix and are accounted for as available for sale
securities in accordance with SFAS |15 "Accounting for
Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities”. These
remaining shares are subject to a lock-up agreement with
Zix and may be sold ratably on a monthly basis until
September 2004.

Subsequent to December 31, 2003 and through March 9, 2004
we sold additional 271,812 shares for approximately $3.2
million, resulting in a gain, after tax, of approximately $1.5

million, which will be recorded in the first quarter of 2004,

Sale of MediaGate assets and business. On December 16,
2003, MediaGate signed an agreement with Telrad Networks
Ltd. ("Telrad™), for the sale of its technology and related
intellectual property assets. Telrad is an Israeli corporation
providing telecommunications solutions in a wide range of
areas to many countries in Latin America, Africa, Eastern
Europe and Asia Pacific. The closing of the transaction
occurred on January 28, 2004. According to the agreement,
the consideration for the technology is in the form of future
royalties, up to a maximum of $5 million, to be paid on
future sales through December 31, 2009, of products that

are based on MediaGate's technology. The royalties range

from 5% of sales in 2004 and increase gradually up to 5%
of sales in 2009.




CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

We prepare our consolidated financial statements in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States ("US GAAP™). Our significant accounting
policies are more fully described in Note 2 to the notes to
our consolidated financial statements. Certain accounting
principles require us to make certain estimates, judgments
and assumptions. We believe that the estimates, judgments
and assumptions upon which we rely are reasonable based
upon information available to us at the time that these
estimates, judgments and assumptions are made. These
estimates, judgments and assumptions can affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial
statements, as well as the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the periods presented. To the extent
there are material differences between these estimates,
judgments or assumptions and actual results, our financial
statements will be affected. The significant accounting policies
that we believe are the most critical to aid in fully
understanding and evaluating our reported financial results

include the following:

*+ Principles of accounting for holdings in group companies

*  Business combinations

* Impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets

+  Other-than-temporary decline in value of investments
in group companies

* Revenue recognition

*  Accounting for income taxes

* Non-Monetary transactions

Principles of Accounting for Holdings in Group Companies

The various holdings that we have in our group companies are
accounted for under several methods, based on our level of

ownership in our group companies, as described below.

Consolidation. Companies over which we have control are
accounted for under the consolidation method of accounting.
Control is usually assumed when we own and/or our
subsidiary owns more than 50% of the outstanding voting
securities of a company, however, whether or not we control
a group company also depends on an evaluation of several

factors, including, among others, our representation on the

board of directors, the level of financing provided by us to
the group company and any minority rights. Under the
consolidation method, a company's assets and liabilities are
included within our consolidated balance sheet and its
income and expense items are included within our
consolidated statements of operations. The share of other
shareholders in the net assets and in the net income or
losses of a consolidated company is reflected in minority
interest in our consolidated balance sheet and in our
consolidated statements of operations, respectively. The
minority interest amount adjusts our consolidated net income
(loss) to reflect only our share in the earnings or losses of
any consolidated company. Financial Accounting Standards
Board ("FASB") Interpretation No. 46 ("FIN 46" or the
"Interpretation”) (as revised in December 2003),
"Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an interpretation
of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51", which is further
discussed below, provides additional conditions under which

a company is required to consolidate another entity.

Equity Method. Group companies which we do not control,
but over whom we exercise significant influence, are
accounted for under the equity method of accounting.
Significant influence is usually assumed when we hold 20%
or more of a group company's voting securities, however,
whether or not we exercise significant influence with respect
to a group company also depends on an evaluation of several
factors, including, among others, our representation on the
board of directors, agreements with other shareholders, our
participation in policy making processes, the existence of
material intercompany transactions and technological
dependency, the extent of ownership by an investor in
relation to the concentration of other shareholdings, and
other factors which may require - management to make certain
judgmental decisions regarding significant influence. We also
account for our interests in private equity funds under the
equity method of accounting, based on our holding
percentage. Under the equity method of accounting, a group
company's assets and liabilities are not included within our
consolidated balance sheet and their results of operations
are not reflected within our consolidated statements of
operations; however, our share in the net income or losses
of the group company is reflected as an equity income (loss)
in our consolidated statements of operations. The share of

income or losses is generally based upon our ownership
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level of the outstanding share capital of the group company.
Notwithstanding the above, in circumstances where our
ownership in an investee is in the form of a preferred security
or other senior security, we recognize equity method losses
based on our ownership level in the particular investee
security or loan held by us to which the equity method

losses are being applied.

Other Methods. Other companies that we do not account
for under either the consolidation or the equity method of
accounting are generally accounted for under three different

methods:

+ Non-marketable securities are presented at cost. Under
this rﬁethod, our share in the income or losses of these
entities is not included in our consolidated statements of

operations.

» Marketable securities, which are classified as trading
securities, are presented at fair market value and the changes
in the market value are reflected in our results of operations

during each reporting period.

+  Marketable securities which are classified as available-
for-sale are presented at fair market value and the effect of
any unrealized change in market value is reflected in other
comprehensive income (loss). When realized, realized gain

or loss is included in our results of operations.

Notwithstanding the above, FIN 46 provides additional
criteria for consolidation of entities and a new framework
for identifying variable interest entities (VIEs) and determining
when a company should include the assets, liabilities,
noncontrolling interests and results of activities of a VIE in

its consolidated financial statements.

In general, a VIE is a corporation, partnership, limited-liability
corporation, trust or any other legal structure used to
conduct activities or hold assets that either (l) has an
insufficient amount of equity to carry out its principal activities
without additional subordinated financial support, (2) has a
group of equity owners that are unable to make significant
decisions about its activities, or (3) has a group of equity
owners that do not have the obligation to absorb the losses
or the right to receive returns generated by its operations.

However, the Interpretation provides several exceptions to

its scope, such as that an entity that is deemed to be a business
(as defined in the Interpretation) need not 1o be evaluated
to determine if it is a VIE unless one of the conditions specified

in the Interpretation exists.

The Interpretation requires a VIE to be consolidated if a
party with an ownership, contractual or other financial
interest in the VIE (a variable interest holder) is obligated
to absorb a majority of the risk of loss from the VIE’s
activities, is entitled to receive a majority of the VIE's residual
returns (if no party absorbs a majority of the VIE's losses)
or both. A variable interest holder that consolidates the VIE
is called the primary beneficiary. Upon consolidation, the
primary beneficiary generally must initially record all of the
VIE's assets, liabilities and noncontrolling interests at fair
value and subsequently account for the VIE as if it were
consolidated based on a majority voting interest. FIN 46
also requires disclosures about VIEs that the variable interest
holder is not required to consolidate but in which it has a
significant variable interest. Presently, entities are generally
consolidated by an enterprise that has a controlling financia!
interest through ownership of a majority voting interest in

the entity.

The provisions of this interpretation are to be applied as of
March 31, 2004. As an operational holding company, we
have investments in and loans to various companies that
are engaged primarily in the fields of high technology. Some
of these companies are in their early stages of development
and will require substantial external investments until they
can finance their activities without additional support from
other parties. These companies are currently primarily funded
with financing from venture capital funds, other holding
companies and private investors. As described above, we
are currently accounting for the investments in these
companies either by the consolidation or equity method.
We are currenﬂy evaluating the effects of this interpretation
in respect of our holdings in our group companies. It is
possible that some of our investees may be considered ViEs
in accordance with the interpretation. Accordingly, if it is
determined that we are the primary beneficiary of a VIE, we
will be required to consolidate the financial statements of
such a VIE with our own financial statements as of March
31, 2004. Our maximum exposure to loss to date with
respect of these companies does not exceed the carrying

value of our investment in any of these companies.
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Business Combinations

According to SFAS 141, "Business Combination”, commencing
on July 1, 2001, all business combinations are accounted for
using the purchase method of accounting. Under the purchase
method, the total purchase price is allocated to the acquired
company's assets and liabilities, based on their estimated

fair values, and the remainder, if any, is attributed to goodwill

The aggregate purchase price of approximately $74.0 million
resutting from the merger with Elbit, that took place in 2002,
has been aliocated to Elbit's assets based on their estimated
fair value according to an analysis made by an independent
appraiser. Of the total purchase price, $55.0 million has
been allocated to Elbit’s identifiable net assets and the
remaining $19.0 million has been allocated to goodwill. The
goodwill recorded reflects the anticipated synergies resufted
from the combined entity, including anticipated reductions
in operational and management costs, the creation of an
enhanced platform, a more simplified and efficient
organizational structure and greater resources and scope of
operations, which will benefit the group companies.
Subsequently to the acquisition date and through December
31, 2003, Goodwill was reduced by $14.3 million, as a result
of the reversal of a valuation allowance recorded at the
acquisition date in respect of Elbit’s carryforward losses that
had accumulated through that date.

The aggregate purchase price of approximately $29.5 million
resulting from the share purchase of DEP's shares, that took
place in 2002, has been allocated to the assets and liabilities
of DEP and its subsidiary, RDC, the majority of which has
been allocated to investments accounted for under the
equity method. The allocation to DEP's assets was based
on an analysis made by an independent appraiser. Aggregate
amounts of $16.5 million and $6.5 million were allocated
to identifiable net intangible assets and goodwill of the equity
investments, respectively. The amortization of the identifiable
intangible assets is included as part of our share in the net

losses of equity investments.

Estimating the fair value of certain assets acquired and
liabilities assumed is judgmental in nature and often involves
the use of significant estimates and assumptions, mainly with
respect to intangible assets. As mentioned above, we obtained
appraisals from an independent appraiser in order to assist

us in this process. While there were a number of different
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methods used in estimating the value of intangibles acquired,
the primary method used was the discounted cash flow
approach. Some of the more significant estimates and
assumpticns inherent in the discounted cash flow approach
include projected future cash flows, including timing, a
discount rate reflecting the risk inherent in the future cash
flows and terminal growth rate. Another area which required
judgment which can impact our result of operations was
estimating the expected useful lives of the intangible assets.
To the extent intangible assets are ascribed with longer
useful lives, there may be less amortization recorded in any
given period. As we and our group companies operate in
industries which are rapidly evolving and extremely
competitive, thé value of the intangible assets, including
goodwill, their respective useful lives and the investments
in companies is exposed to future adverse changes which
can result in a charge to our results of operation. In 2002
and 2003, we recorded impairment losses in respect of
certain investments, to which we allocated a portion of the
purchase price at the time of the aforementioned acquisitions,
in the amount of $4.5 million and $2.5 miliion (See also
"Critical Accounting Policies”, "Other-Than-Temporary Decline

in Investments in Group Companies®).
Impairment of Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

In accordance with SFAS 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets”, commencing on January |, 2002, goodwill is no
longer being amortized. In lieu of amortization, an annual
impairment review of the goodwill is required at the Jevel
of each reporting unit. SFAS 142 prescribes a two-phase
process for impairment testing of goodwill. The first phase
screens for impairment while the second phase (if necessary)
measures the impairment. We performed the first phase
impairment analysis-and found no instances of impairment
of our recorded goodwill. Accordingly the second phase
was not necessary during 2003. The first phase impairment
analysis is performed by estimating the fair value of each
reporting unit and comparing it to its reported carrying
amount. Determining fair value under the first phase involves
the use of significant estimates and assumptions. These
estimates and assumptions could have an impact on whether
or not an impairment charge is recognized. To determine
fair value, we have used a number of valuation methods
including quoted market prices, discounted cash flows and

revenue multiples. In certain cases we obtained an opinion
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from an independent appraiser. As mentioned above, these
approaches use estimates and assumptions including projected
future cash flows, discount rate and perpetual growth rate.
As we operate in industries which are rapidly evolving and
extremely competitive, it is possible that our estimates could
change in the near term and there can be no assurance that
future goodwill impairment tests will not result in a charge
to our results of operation. At December 31, 2003, goodwill
amounted to approximately $12.0 million.

Other intangible assets with definite useful lives are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverable in accordance with the guaidance of SFAS 144
"Accounting For The Impairment Or Disposal Of Long-Lived
Assets”. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is
measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an
asset to the future undiscounted cash flows expected to be
generated by the asset. If an asset is considered to be
impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured by
the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset
exceeds its fair value. In the evaluation of impairment, we
use significant estimates and assumptions such as projected
future cash flows which are subject to high degree of
judgment. As of December 31, 2003 we found no instances
of impairment of other intangible assets. As we operate in
industries which are rapidly evolving and extremely
competitive, changes in the assumptions and estimates may
affect the carrying value of the intangible assets, and could
result in impairment charge to our results of operation. At
December 31, 2003, consolidated intangible assets, other

than goodwill, amounted to approximately $10.0 million.

Other-Than-Temporary Decline in Value of Investments in

Group Companies

At the end of each reported period, we must evaluate

whether an other-than-temporary decline in value of an

investment in a group company has been sustained. This

evaluation is judgmental in nature. If it has been determined
that an investment has sustained an other-than-temporary
decline in its value, the investment is written down to its

fair value by a charge to our results of operations.

A valuation of fair value is dependent upon specific facts
and circumstances, Factors that are considered by us in this

determination include financial information (including, among

s
S

others, budgets, business plans and financial statements) and
the value at which independent third partiés have invested
or have committed to invest and independent appraisals, if
available, Factors indicative of an other-than-temporary
decline include recurring operating losses, credit defaults,
and subsequent rounds of financing at an amount below the
cost basis of the investment. This list is not all inclusive and
we weigh all quantitative and qualitative factors in determining
if an other-than-temporary decline in value of an investment
has occurred. As we operate in industries which are rapidly
evolving and extremely competitive, it is possible that our
estimates could change in the near term and there can be
no assurance that an additional write-down or write-off of
the carrying value will not be required in the future. In 2002
and 2003 we recorded write-downs in the amounts of $4.5
million and $4.2 million, respectively, with respect to certain

group companies, mainly Cellenium and Textology.

Revenue Recognition

Qur revenues are derived from our consolidated subsidiaries.
Revenues from sales of products and services are recognized
after all of the following occurs: the product is delivered,
collection is probable, fees are fixed or determinable, vendor-
specific objective evidence exists to allocate the total fee
to elements of an arrangement and persuasive evidence of
an arrangement exists. The determination whether collection
is probable is'judgmental in nature and based on a variety
of factors, including the payment and other terms of the
individual customer contract, credit history of the customer,
prior dealings with specific customers, and certain other
factors. Maintenance revenue is recognized on a straight-
line over the term of the contract period. Reserves for
estimated returns and allowances are provided at the time
revenue is recognized when a right of return exists. Such
reserves are recorded based upon historical rates of returns

and other factors.

income and profit derived from projects related to software
development are recognized upon the percentage of
completion method, based on the ratio of hours performed
to date to estimated total hours at completion. Estimated
gross profit or Joss may change due to changes in estimates
resulting from differences between actual performance and
original forecasts. Estimates are reviewed periodically, and

the effect of any change in the estimated gross profit for a
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project is recorded in results of operations in the period in
which the change becomes known on a cumulative catch-
up basis. Anticipated losses on projects are charged to
earnings when identified. A number of internal and external
factors affect our subsidiaries cost estimates, including labor
rates, revised estimates of uncompleted work, efficiency
variances, customer's specifications and testing requirements
changes. if any of these factors were to change, or if different
assumptions are used, our results of operations may be
affected. In addition estimates are made as to the total hours
at completion. The number of hours may change due to the
actual progress on the project. Change in estimates regarding

the percentage of completion may affect the results of operations.
Accounting for Income Taxes

At the end of each reported period, we are required to
estimate our income taxes. This process requires us to
estimate our actual current tax liabilities' and make an
assessment of temporary differences resulting from differing
treatment of items, for tax and accounting purposes. These
differences result in deferred tax assets and liabilities, which
are included within our consolidated balance sheet. We
must then assess the likelihood that our deferred tax assets
will be realized through future taxable income and, to the
extent we believe that realization is not likely, we must
establish a valuation allowance. Management judgment is
required in determining our provision for income taxes, our
deferred tax assets and liabilities and any valuation allowance
recorded against our net deferred tax assets. Our judgment
as to the probability to realize our net deferred tax assets
is largely based upon interpretations of certain tax laws and
estimates and assumptions with respect to our ability to
realize investments in our group companies. Our ability to
realize investments is mainly dependent upon factors such
as the condition of the securities markets and other general
economic conditions. As the securities markets for our group
companies are highly volatile, changes in our assumptions
and estimates may require us to increase the valuation
allowance and therefore we may be required to include an
expense within the tax provision in our statement of

operations.

In 2002 and 2003, we recorded a deferred tax asset in the
amount of $10.0 million and $12.7 million, respectively, mainly

by reducing our previous valuation allowance in respect of

losses incurred in prior periods. As mentioned above (see
“Business combinations”), thé majority of the reduction in
the valuation allowance was recorded as a reduction of
goodwill since the deferred tax assets related to carryforward
losses in Elbit and RDC incurred in periods prior to the
acquisition of these companies. During 2003, we recorded
tax expenses by realizing our deferred taxes mainly due to
the sale of shares of Partner, Given Imaging, Zix and 24/7
Real Media. As of December 31, 2003, deferred tax assets
with respect to carryforward losses that are more likely than
not to be realized in future years amounted to approximately
$8.9 million. Deferred tax liabilities amounted, as of December
31, 2003, to $47.7 million, mainly with respect to investment

in available-for-sale securities, primarily Partner.
Non-Monetary Transactions

The basic principle in APB 29 "Accounting for Non-monetary
Transactions” is that the accounting for non-monetary
transactions should be based on the fair values of the assets
exchanged. The cost of a non-monetary asset acquired in
exchange for another non-monetary asset is the fair value
of the asset received or the fair value of the asset surrendered
to obtain it (if more clearly evident than the asset received),
However, in an exchange of similar productive assets, since
the culmination of an earning process has not occurred, the
exchange should riot be recorded at fair value and the asset
received should be recorded at the recorded amount of the
assets given up. According to EITF 01-2, "Inte-rpretations of
APB Opinion No. 29", transactions by SEC registrants that
involve the exchange of a business for any non-monetary
asset, including an equity method investment that is not an
interest in a joint venture, are not exchanges of productive
assets and must be accounted for at fair value unless fair
value is not determinable within reasonable limits. In
determining whether the asset given up constitutes a business,
the guidance in EITF 98-3, "Determining whether a non-
monetary transaction involved receipt of productive assets

or of a business” should be followed.

Determining whether the assets transferred constitute a
business requires significant judgment and is dependent on
the particular facts and circumstances, mainly regarding the
determination of the degree of difficulty or level of investment

necessary to obtain access or to acquire missing elements
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in the set of assets transferred. In addition, determining the
fair value of the transaction is judgmental in nature and often
involves the use of significant estimates and assumptions. in
determining the fair value of the business transferred by
Galil Medical to Oncura, Oncura obtained appraisals from
an independent appraiser in order to assist in the valuation
of its assets. The method applied in the valuation study was
discounted cash flow, which includes significant estimates
and assumptions. As Oncura operates In an industry which
is rapidly evolving and extremely competitive, its value, as
well as the value of its intangible assets, including goodwill,
can be exposed to future adverse changes which can result
in a charge to its, and in turn, to our results of operations.
In determining the fair value of the business sold by ESW,
we valued the consideration received in the form of Zix
common stock at $5.4 million, a discount from market value
of approximately 10% due to the restrictions on their sale.
Such valuation is judgmental in nature and involved the use

of estimates and assumptions.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

As a result of the merger with Elbit and the share purchase
of DEP which were completed in May 2002, Eibit and DEP
became wholly owned subsidiaries, and accordingly, their
results of operations are consolidated within our results of
operations subsequent to the acquisition date. In addition,
in the second half of 2002, we acquired a controlling interest
in both Galil Medical and MediaGate, following which their
results of operations are consolidated within our results of

operations subsequent to the acquisition date.

As a result of the purchase of DEP in 2002, our interest in
Given Imaging, Galil Medical, Witcom and 3DV Systems, in
which we had direct and indirect interests through RDC,
increased. In 2003, our interest in Oren Semiconductor
increased as a resuft of a financing round in which we aiso
invested as well as the conversion of our loans granted to
Oren in previous periods. In accordance with APB 18, an
investee that was previously accounted for other than under
the equity method of accounting may become qualified for
use of the equity method of accounting by an increase in
the level of ownership. In such cases, the results of operations
and retained earnings should be adjusted retroactively under

the equity method of accounting (“step-by-step acquisition™).

Y R R P DN VY S Y C EEL

Accordingly, in 2003, we have restated our financial
statements for all prior periods in which our investment in
Oren Semiconductor was recorded at cost. The
aforementioned restatements resulted in an aggregate
increase in our net loss of approximately $2.3 million, or
$0.08 per share, and approximately $1.5 miflion, or $0.07
per share, for the years ended December 31, 2002 and
2001, respectively.

For comparison purposes, we have provided pro forma
information in accordance with SFAS {41, which gives effect
to the merger with Elbit, the share purchase of DEP and
the acquisition of a controlling interest in Galil Medical and
in MediaGate as if these transactions had been in effect at
January |, 2002 (see Note 9 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended December 31, 2003).

Consolidation. Cur consolidated financial statements include

the accounts of the Company and all of its direct or indirect

controlled subsidiaries. The following are our main subsidiaries:

Year ended December 31,

2003 2002
CORESWL e ESWL
Eiron Telesoft Elron TeleSoft k
bt . Ebit
DEP DEP!

o RDC - roch
Galil Medical Galil Medical®
Mediagate ' v‘MediaGat_ez

Since May 2002, following the completion of the Elbit

merger and DEP share purchase

2 Since July 2002
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Equity Method. Our main group companies accounted for

under the equity method of accounting include:

Year ended December 31,

2003 ?.OOiJ

BB SeRs h TEbi Ssems
NetVision Elbit!

- “Chip Express. 3 N
Wavion MediaGa’te2

CERIT Chip Express -
Pulsicom DEP,
o Givenfmaging: F v L  Wavion
Witcom KIT
DV e Pylsicom
CellAct AMTH
S CAMTE e T Given Imaging:
Notal Vision® Galil Medical?
Ofien Semiconductor’ o,
7

Oncura

CellAct
3.

Semiicanductor

Through May 2002, prior to the completion of the

Elbit merger and DEP share purchase

2 Through July 2002

3 Restated (see "Basis of presentation’)
4 Since August 2002

5 Through November 2002

6

Since January 2003
7 Since July 2003

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended December 31, 2003 compared to Year Ended
December 31, 2002.

The following tables set forth our results of operations in
the reported period:

Year ended December 31,

2003 2002

(millions of $, except per share data)
“Netloss | = e . (T2) L ar*ALE)
Net loss per share (0.25) *(1.58)
* Restated (see “Basis of presentation)

Cur net loss in 2003 decreased significantly as compared
to the net loss in 2002 mainly as a result of the following

factors:

(i) a gain, net after tax, of approximately $7.1 million, resulting
from the sale of 6,278,226 Partner shares in 2003;
(i) our share in the gain resulting from the merger in 2003
of the urology therapy units of Galil Medical and Amersham
in the amount of approximately $4.4 million;

(iii) a gain of approximately $4.1 million resulting from the
sale of substantially ali of ESW assets and business to Zix
in 2003 in consideration for 1,709,402 Zix shares and $1.0
million convertible note and a gain, net after tax, of
approximately $3.2 million resulting from the subsequent
sale of 1,117,155 Zix shares, including 262,454 shares resulting
from the conversion of the note; and

(iv) 2 decrease, net, of approximately $19.7 million in losses
recorded with respect to our group companies, of which
$12.7 million was due to a decrease in losses with respect
to certain group companies which were sold or discontinued
their operations in the second half of 2002 as part of the
reorganization of Elron, Elbit, and DEP group companies
following the completion of our merger. The reminder of
the decrease reflects the improvements in the results of
operation of most of our group companies, mainly Given
Imaging as a result of its revenue growth, and the decrease
in the net losses of ESW (which business was sold on September
2, 2003) and Elron TeleSoft, as a result of restructuring and

cost reduction programs undertaken by them.
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Pro forma results. Pro forma net loss for 2002, as restated,
which gives effect to the merger with Elbit, the share purchase
of DEP and the acquisition of a controlling interest in Galil
Medical and in MediaGate as if these transactions had been
in effect at January |, 2002, amounted to approximately
$54.6 million, or $1.88 per share, compared to the net loss
in 2003 of approximately $7.2 million, or $30.25 per share.
The following factors contributed to the significant decrease

in net loss:

(i) An increase in gains we recorded with respect to realization
of investments by way of selling shares in the open market
and by way of merger and acquisition transactions as
mentioned above;

(i) the decrease, net, in losses with respect to our group
companies in the amount of $30.6 million, of which $20.9
million was due to a decrease in losses with respect to
certain group companies which were sold or discontinued
their operations in the second half of 2002 as part of the
reorganization of Elron, Elbit, and DEP group companies
following the completion of our merger;

(iii) non-recurring merger expenses in the amount of $3.6

Internet Systems and
products projects
[ Consolidated " * < ESW L Elron TeleSoft -

Equity basis

Marketable securities
presented as

© available-for-sale

million which are reflected in the pro forma net foss in 2002;
and h

(iv) The corporate operating expenses in 2003 were lower
by $0.9 million than the pro-forma corporate operating

expenses in 2002
Reportable Segments

Subsequent to the sale of ESW on September 2, 2003 our
reportable segments are i) The Systems and Projects Segment
- Elron TeleSoft; and i) Other holdings and the corporate
operations, which includes our holdings in subsidiaries,
affiliates and other companies, engaged in various fields of
advanced technology, and corporate operations, which
provide the strategic and operational support to the group
companies. Prior to September 2, 2003, we operated
indirectly through ESW in a third business segment — Internet
Products — which has been reclassified as discontinued
operations.

At December 31, 2003, the main group companies were

classified into the following segments:

Other holdings
and corporate
operations

=+ Elbit DEP; RDG, GalilMedical, MediaGate

Elbit Systems; NetVision; Chip Express; Wavion; KIT;
Pulsicom; Given Imaging; Witcom; 3DV; CellAct;

AMT, Notal Vision; Oren Semiconductor; Oncura

Partrier; Elbit Vision Systems; Zix -
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The following tables reflect our consolidated data by reported segments:

Eiron SW (Discontinued

Internet products -
)

operations

- lncqme*i‘* » )
Costs and Expenses

“Loss from tontinuing operations

Net loss *(0.7)

D incomexx, ST
Costs and Expenses

“Loss from-eontinding operationss " T TAYT

Net loss *(8.6)

* |oss from discontinued operations
** Income in the Other holdings and corporate operations

includes net losses from equity investments

INTERNET PRODUCTS - ELRON SW

("ESW") — DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

As described under "Major Developments”, ESW which was
focused on web access control and e-mail content filtering
for organizations, sold substantially all of its assets and
business to Zix, and accordingly, its current period results

of operations and the gain on the sale have been classified

Gain (loss) from discontinued operations:

7 ;bass from operations - .
Gain on disposal

_Loss from Discontinued operations .

The decrease in loss from operations in the reported
period was primarily due to a decrease in operating

expenses as a result of restructuring and cost reduction

Systems and Other holdings
projects - and corporate :
Elron TeleSoft operations Consolidated

(millions of $)
) Year ended December 31,2003

740 00 409 0T 483
9.5 28.0 37.5
@y R C:) R ()
.1 (4.4) (72)

Year ended December 31,2002

V0L e T30y e T (2.9)
15.9 17.1 330
CUE9) T a3y T 02y
(5.9) 7.1 (41.6)

as discontinued operations and prior periods have been

reclassified respectively.

The following table sets forth the composition of the
discontinued operating of ESW:

Year ended December 31,

2003 2002
(millions of $)

s 68
4.1 -
o . (88)

programs implemented by ESW at the end of 2002 and
at the beginning of 2003.




SYSTEMS AND PROJECTS -

ELRON TELESOFT

Elron TeleSoft is focused on telecom network management
and revenue assurance products. The following table sets

forth the operating results of Elron TeleSoft:

~ Net revenues . -
Cost of revenues
. Gross broﬂt,.»‘”- e Lol

Operating expenses*

- Amottization‘of otherassets™ . <

Restructuring charges, net
" Operating loss . )

Finance expenses, net
_Tax onificome:

Net foss

2 A i i it T SR INN P SN N T NS A NN 1S

Year ended December 31,

2003 2002
(millions of §) ——
CUTA 0
4.6 8.0
X SRR PRI H
2.6 43
08 1 .0 noi0g

- v 1.3
C(08) T C))
1.5 L5
B DR e A
@n (.9

*Excluding amortization of other assets and restructuring charges, net, which are presented separately.

Net revenues. Elron TeleSoft's net revenues in 2003
decreased by $2.7 million, or-27%, to $7.4 million, compared
to $10.1 million in 2002, mainly as a result of the decrease

in revenues derived from sale of third parties’ products.

Cost of revenues. Cost of revenues of Elron TefeSoft in
2003 were $4.6 miltion, representing a gross margin of
38%, compared to $8.0 million in 2002, representing a
gross margin of 21%. The increase in gross margins in 2003
is mainly due to change in revenue mix as revenues derived
from Elron TeleSoft's products with higher gross margins
increased relative to revenues derived from sale of third
parties' products, as well as due to increased efficiency as
a result of the restructuring programs implemented by
Elron TeleSoft.

Operating loss. Elron TeleSoft's operating loss decreased
by $3.7 million, or 86%, to $0.6 million in 2003, compared

to $4.3 million in 2002. The decrease in operating loss,
notwithstanding the decrease in revenues, was primarily
due to the higher gross margin as well as the decrease in
operating expenses as a result of restructuring and cost
reduction programs implemented by Elron TeleSoft which
enabled Elron TeleSoft to adjust its operating expenses to

the decreased revenue levels.

OTHER HOLDINGS AND
CORPORATE OPERATIONS
SEGMENT

The other holdings and corporate operations segment
includes our holdings in subsidiaries, affiliates and other
companies engaged in various fields of advanced technology,
and corporate operations which provide strategic and
operational support to the group companies. The following

table sets forth 'this segment’s operating results:
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Year ended December 31,

‘Zﬂ} 2002
(millions of $) —

‘Net: revenues S D e S . 92 DT E

Net loss from equity investments (8.7) (24.2)
‘Gain from dlsposals.of'busmesses ahd-afﬁliatéd S ‘ ; l .

companies and changes in holdmgs in afﬂlrated

compames ne 2587

Other income (expenses) net 14.6

Totabineome - 07 5 T e T et e st 409

Cost of revenues 56
Operatingrexpensest -~ m 7 =rf o s T B Tt e e 90 9
Amortization of other assets 0.3

- Restructuring charges; et [ v

Finance expenses (mcome) net 0.8)
AL T T s e e e e e g

Income (loss) from continuing operatlons before

"',Total costs’ and expenses

“tax benefit (taxes.on income)s "< i LT T Lo N X . @01y
Tax benefit (taxes on mcome) (6.8) 3.0
~;M'”°”t>’ interest i T ) L S C(F09) AR 2
Loss from continuing operations (4.8) (24.3)
e TR 04 (28)
Net Loss (4.4) (27.1)

* Excluding amortization of other assets and restructuring charges, net, which are presented separately.

Gain.{loss) from discontiriuéd operations. . .. "0

INCOME

Net revenues. Net revenues of the other holdings and which were consolidated for the first time in the second
corporate operations segment consisted of sales of products half of 2002. The following table sets forth the segment

and services by our subsidiaries, Galil Medical and MediaGate, revenues:

Year ended December 31,

2003 2002*
(mllhons of $)

GaliiMEdiGl T T 3
MediaGate 1.5 2.1

T L A R S TR S T A

9.2 5.1

o * Through June 30, 2002 the companies’ results were presented under the equity method.
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Galil Medical recorded revenues of $7.6 million in 2003
compared to $5.0 million in 2002, The increase in revenues
is mainly due to the growing awareness and acceptance of
the cryotherapy technology by physicians and patients as an
effective treatment for prostate cancer. Following the merger
of the urology therapy units of Galil Medical and Amersham,
Galil Medical's revenues derived mainly from supplying of
cryo products and R&D services to Oncura, in which it has

a 25% ownership interest.

MediaGate's revenues from selling advanced messaging
systems decreased to approximately $1.5 million in 2003
compared to $2.6 million in 2002 as a result of the slow
adoption of advanced messaging technology by telecom
opéra’tors as well as by the competition from more established
companies in the market with larger resources, which led
the company 1o sell its technology and related intellectual

property assets to Telrad at the end of 2003.

Share in net losses of affiliated companies. Our share in
net losses of affiliated companies resulted from our holdings
in certain investments that are accounted for under the
equity method (see above under "Basis of Presentation”).
The share in net losses of affiliated companies amounted to
$8.7 million in 2003 compared to $24.2 million in 2002 (as
restated).

The decrease in our share in net losses of our affiliated
companies in 2003, compared to 2002, resulted mainly from

the following:

(i) Following the completion of the merger between Elron,
Elbit and DEP, and subsequent to the acquisition of a
controlling interest in MediaGate and in Galil Medical, we
consolidated these companies' results of operations inte
our results of operations and ceased accounting for them
under the equity method of accounting. Equity losses
recorded in 2002, with respect to these companies for the
period in which they were not consolidated, amounted to
$12.8 million.

(i) The decrease in losses we recorded with respect to
affiliated companies which were sold in the amount of $4.2
miflion and the decrease in our share in net losses of group
companies whose results improved, mainly Given imaging

and Oren Semiconductor, in the amount of $1.5 million.

The above decrease was partially offset by $2.6 million,

increase in our share in the losses of new group companies

A RN TR

which are accounted under the equity method, mainly AMT,

Notal Vision and Oncura.

HIGHLIGHTS OF THE RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS OF OUR MAJOR

AFF’|LIATESZ

Elbic Systems Ltd. (Nasdaq: ESLT) (a 20% holding). Elbit
Systems develops, manufactures and integrates advanced
high-performance defense electronic systems. Our share in
the net income of Elbit Systems amounted to $9.1 million
in 2003, compared to $9.5 million in 2002.

The following are highlights of the results of operatiens of
Elbit Systems:

* Elbit Systems’ revenues increased in 2003 by 8.5% to
$898.0 million from $827.5 million in 2002. The main increase
in revenues was in the Armored Vehicles systems area of
Elbit Systems' operation.

*» As of December 31, 2003, Elbit Systems' backlog of orders
was $1,752 million, of which approximately 80% is scheduled
to be performed in 2004 and 2005. Eibit Systems’ backlog
of orders as of December 31, 2002 was $1,689 million.
» Elbit Systems' operating income in 2003 was $53.5 million
(6% of revenues) compared to $57.8 million (7% of revenues)
in 2002.

* Elbit Systems' net income in 2003 was $45.9 million (5.1%
of revenues) compared to $45.1 million (5.5% of revenues)
in 2002.

Given Imaging (Nasdaq: GIVN) (a 17% holding directly and
indirectly through RDC). Given Imaging, a medical device
company that devefoped and markets a disposable miniature
video camera in a capsule for visualizing the gastrointestinal
tract, recorded revenues of $40.5 million in 2003, an increase
of 40.3% over the revenues recorded in 2002 of $28.9
million, and a gross profit of 66.6%, compared to 58.8% in
2002. Revenue growth was driven by continued installations
of new systems, expansion in reimbursement coverage and
the removal of the “adjunctive tool” qualifier from its label,
enabling Given Imaging to market its product as a first line
tool in diagnosing disorders of the small bowel. Given
Imaging’s net loss decreased significantly in 2003 to $9.6
million, compared to $18.3 million in 2002, resulting mainly

from increased revenues. In the fourth quarter of




Ry

R BRI Ui

A i Y

AN

AT

A

b

A e AR T = B RS O R B

e S DR

kR

L LAY RS

A S R A et

RGN ARSI N YA R

st

YRR R

G A

2003, Given Imaging announced record sales of $12.5 million,
a net loss of $0.6 million and positive cash flow for the first

time in its history of $0.9 million.

Notal Vision (2 24% holding). In January 2003, we completed
a new investment of $2.0 million, out of $4.5 million raised
by Notal Vision, a medical device company operating in the
field of early detection of Age Related Macular Deterioration
(AMD). In 2003, Notal Vision commenced selling its product
pursuant to its distribution agreement with its strategic
partner, Carl Zeiss Meditec Inc., one of the leading
manufacturers of professional optics equipment, and recorded
revenues of $0.9 million, and its net loss amounted to $1.4

million, consisting mainly of research and development costs.

Oncura (a 25% holding by Galil). Oncura commenced its
operations on July 1, 2003 following the completion of the
merger of the urclogy therapy units of Galil and Amersham
which created Oncura. Oncura markets and sells therapeutic
device systems and related consumables used primarily in
the performance of minimally-invasive, urologic cancer
treatment. Oncura's revenues since commencing operations
and through December 31, 2003, amounted to $3 1.4 million.
Oncura's net loss amounted to $0.9 million, which resulted
primarily from integration costs arising from combining the
urology units of Amersham and Galil and amortization of

intangible assets.

NetVision (a 46% holding). NetVision provides Internet
services and solutions in Israel. In 2003 NetVision changed
its operating currency to the New Israeli Shekel (NIS).
Accordingly, all figures below are translations for convenience
purposes of NetVision's NIS figures into US dollars at the
representative rate of exchange prevailing at December 31,
2003 according to which $1.00 equaled NIS 4.379.

In 2003, NetVision experienced increased competition in
gaining broadband communication market share resulting
from the transition of customers to broadband communication
from narrow-band dial-up connections. Nevertheless,
Netvision improved its operating results in 2003 and recorded
an increase of 8% in revenues to $64.6 million, from $59.8
million in 2002 and its operating income increased to $4.7
million, compared to $3.4 millien in 2002. However, due to
higher finance expenses in 2003, NetVision's net income
decreased to $0.8 million compared to $2.9 million in 2002.
As of December 31, 2003, NetVision had a customer base

of approximately 361,000 compared to 340,000 at the end
of 2002. h

NetVision expects its revenue growth and its operating
results to continue to be affected by the competitive
broadband market environment, which will affect market

prices and penetration costs.

Wavion (a 38% holding). Wavion is a developer of broadband
wireless access systems for wireless LANs. In 2002, as a
result of the downturn in the broadband wireless
communications market, which delayed the release of
Wavion's products, Wavicn significantly reduced its research
and development expenses and began to sell subcontracting
services for the development of wireless sub-systems. In
2003, Wavion completed a financing round led by Sequoia
Seed Capital, raising $12.5 million out of which we invested
$3 million. Wavion intends to use the proceeds to finance
its development efforts. Accordingly, Wavion directed
resources away from its subcontracting activities and its
revenues in 2003 amounted to $1.8 million, similar to
revenues recorded in 2002 of $1.7 million. The increase in
its research and development costs resulted in an increase
in Wavion's net loss which amounted to $1.7 million in
2003, compared to a net loss of $0.6 million in 2002. We
expect these research and development costs to continue

to increase in 2004.

K.LT. eLearning (a 45% holding). K.I.T. eLearning provides
online academic programs. In 2003 we invested $2.0 million
in K. T. eLearning BV ("K.L.T. eLearning”, formerly Kidum
Holding B.V) as part of an aggregate investment round of
$4.0 million, the balance of which was invested by Discount
investment Corporation Ltd. ("DIC"), which holds
approximately 38.5% of our shares. K1.T. elearning was
previously the operating subsidiary of Kidum Elron IT Ltd.
("KIT") in which we held approximately 29%.

K. T. eLearning's revenues increased in 2003 by (06% to
$7.0 million, compared to $3.4 million in 2002, as a result
of the increase in student enroliments. KIT elLearning’s
operating loss decreased to $3.3 million compared to $6.1
million in 2002, primarily due to the increase in revenues.
At December, 2003, K.I.T. eLearning had approximately
1,700 students, mainly from the United Kingdom, Holland,
Canada, Germany, China and Singapore, as compared to

approximately |,100 students at the end of 2002.




Chip Express (a 36% holding). Chip Express is a manufacturer
of late stage programmable gate array ASICs (Application
Specific Integrated Circuits). Chip Express' revenues in 2003
amounted to $13.7 million, compared to $16.5 million in
2002. The decrease in revenues resulted mainly from the
slowdown in the semiconductor industry through the first
half of 2003. in light of the recovery in this industry in the
second half of 2003, Chip Express revenues increased to
$7.4 million during the second half of 2003, as compared
to $6.4 million in the first half of 2003 and $6.6 million in
the second half of 2002. Chip Express’ net loss in 2003

amounted to $7.8 million, compared to $6.4 million in 2002.

However, as a result of an increase in revenues during the

second half of 2003, Chip Express' net loss decreased to
$3.2 million as compared to $4.6 million in the first half of
2003 and $4.7 million in the second half of 2002.
in March 2004, Chip Express raised $12.0 million in a private
placement, out of which Elron invested approximately $2.6
million. As a result, Elron's interest in Chip Express decreased

to approximately 26%.

Oren Semiconductor (a 41% holding). Oren is a developer
of chips for the digital television market. In 2003, we
completed an investment of $3.0 million in Oren, as part of
an aggregate investment of $8.0 million from existing
shareholders and from Zoran Corporation (Nasdag: ZRAN).
In addition to the investment, we and other shareholders
converted all the loans previously granted to Oren, in the
amount of approximately $8.4 million into shares, of which
our portion was approximately $4.4 million. Following the
investment and the loan conversion, we hold approximately
41% in Oren. Zoran and Oren have agreed to cooperate
to sell Oren’s front-end solution with Zoran's back-end chips
to major players in the digital television market. Zoran is
the second strategic investor in Oren after Sony Corporation
invested in April 2001. Oren will use the proceeds of this
equity investment 1o finance its marketing and sales operations
in the United States and Japan and to complete the
development of its new products for those markets.
In 2003, Oren's revenues increased to $4.4 million from
$2.0 million in 2002, due to a combined increase in product
sales as well as in revenues derived from development
projects. As a result of the increased revenues, Oren's net
loss in 2003 decreased to $4.6 million compared to $6.1
million in 2002..

AMT (a 28% holding). Since our investment'in the company
in August 2002, AMT's two operating companies, namely
AHT and ACS, commenced introducing their amorphous
metals technology-based products to the market and built
up their operating and manufacturing infrastructure. In 2003,
AHT recorded revenues of $0.8 million compared to $0.!
million in 2002, and net losses of $1.6 million, the same
level as in 2002. ACS recorded in 2003 revenues of $0.6
million compared to $0.1 million in 2002, and net losses of

$1.2 million compared to $!1.1 million in 2002.

Despite the improvements in our share in the net losses
from our group companies in 2003, we expect that most of
our group companies will continue to recognize losses in
future periods, as they invest significant resources in research
and development and sales and marketing activities and have
not yet generated significant revenues. In addition, investment
in new early stage companies will result in additional losses.
Therefore, we anticipate that our share in the results of
these companies will continue to negatively affect our results

of operations.

Results of operations of significant group companies which
are accounted for other than under the equity method of
accounting. In addition to companies accounted for under
the equity method, we have significant investment in Partner
(Nasdaq: PTNR) which is accounted for as available-for-sale
security and whose results do not affect our resuits of

operations.

Partner (Nasdaq: PTNR) (a 8.7% holding). At December
31, 2003, the market value of our investment in Partner
amounted to $124.3 million. Partner is a Global System for
Mobile Communications, or GSM, mobile telephone network
operator in lsrael. In 2002, Partner reached a significant
milestone, as it became a profitable company and generated
cash flow. In 2003, Partner continued to improve its financial
performance and demonstrate its ability to sustain revenue
growth, profitability and positive cash flow. The following
are highlights of the results of operations of Partner for
2003 (all figures below are convenience translations of
Partner's nominal New Israeli Shekel (NIS) figures into US
dollars at the rate of the exchange prevailing at December
31, 2003 according to which $1.00 equaled NIS 4.379):




A

« Partner's revenues in 2003, driven primarily by subscriber
growth of 14.5%, increased to $1,020.3 million, up 10.2%
from $925.9 million in 2002. Partner’s subscriber base at
the end of 2003 was 2,103,000 as compared to 1,837,000
at the end of 2002,

*» Partner’s operating income in 2003 increased to $195.2
million from $121.8 million in 2002, an increase of 60.3%.
Operating income in 2003, as a percentage of revenues,
increased to 19.19% versus 13.2% in 2002.

« Partner's net income in 2003 was $265.5 million, which
include a $144.6 million tax benefit resulting from its
accumulated carryforward taxes losses. in 2002, Partner's

net income was $19.2 million.

Partner has a line of credit agreement with a consortium of
banks that provides for borrowings of up to $683 million
of which $282 million had been drawn as of December 31,
2003. The line of credit is guaranteed by shares held by the
original shareholders of Partner, pro rata to their respective
original holdings. All of the shares held by us as of December
31, 2003, amounting to approximately 15.92 million shares,

are pledged by us in favor of the consortium of banks.

Gains from Disposals of Businesses and Affiliated companies
and Changes in Holdings in Affiliated Companies. Our gains
from disposals of businesses and affiliated companies and
changes in holdings in affiliated companies amounted to
$25.8 million in 2003 compared to $6.9 million in 2002. The
gain in 2003 was mainly due to the gain from the merger
of the urology therapy business of Galil Medical and
Amersham in the amount of approximately $21.2 million
{(which after minority interest and income taxes amounted
to $4.4 million) and $4.5 million gain from the sale of 753,600
shares of Given Imaging held by RDC for approximately
$7.8 million and changes in holding in Given Imaging as a
result of exercise of options.

The gain in the comparable period in 2002 was mainly due
to a $5.3 million gain from the sale of Given Imaging shares
and a $1.6 million gain from the sale of 380,000 shares of
Eibit Systems.

Other Income (expenses), net. Other income, net, amounted
to $14.6 million in 2003 compared to a loss of $0.8 million
in 2002. The gain in 2003 resulted primarily from the

i3,

following: (i) the sale of 6,278,226 Partner shares for
approximately $29.3 million which resufted in a $11.1 million
gain before tax; (i) the sale of 1,117,155 shares of Zix for
approximately $9.0 million which resulted in a $4.8 million
gain before tax; and (iii) 2 $2.0 million gain, before tax, from
the sale of all the shares of 24/7 Real Media shares (Nasdag;
TFSM) for approximately $5.2 million. These gains were
partially offset by $3.7 million of write-downs mainly with
respect to Cellenium and Textology.

Other expenses in 2002 resulted mainly from a $1.6 million
write-downs of certain investments as well as a decrease in
the market value of certain marketable securities, which
were partially offset by $0.7 million gain from the sale of
other marketable securities, primarily of NetManage Inc.
(Nasdaq: NETM) held by us at that time.

EXPENSES

Operating expenses. Operating expenses are comprised of
research and development expenses, sales and marketing
and general and administrative expenses of our subsidiaries,
mainly Galil Medical and MediaGate, which were consolidated
for the first time in the second half of 2002 as well as our
and RDC's corporate operations expenses. The following
table sets forth the segment operating expenses. The
operating expenses presented below exclude restructuring
expenses and amortization of other assets, in the amount
of $0.3 million in 2003, and $0.6 million in 2002, which also
constitute part of operating expenses under US GAAP but

for presentation purposes are included as a separate item:

Year ended December 31,

2003 2002
{millions of $)

. Corporate B B
Galil Medical* 10.7 7.4

' MediaGate* . - . B T A ;;. 1.8
Other 2.0 -
229 153

* In the first half of 2002, the company’s results were presented
under the equity method.
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Our corporate operating costs, which following the merger
with Elbit in May 2002 represent the costs of the combined
management, were $7.1 million in 2003, compared to $4.1
million in 2002. The increase in the corporate costs resulted
mainly from the increase in costs related to the company's
employee stock option plans and insurance costs. With
respect to employee stock options granted in 2003, we
adopted FASB Statement No. |23 "Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation”, according to which compensation
expenses are measured under fair value method (instead of
intrinsic value method) using Black & Scholes option-pricing
model. Amortization of deferred stock compensation
amounted in 2003 to $0.4 million compared to $0.2 million
in 2002. .

Operating expenses of Galil Medical in 2003 were $10.7
million compared to $13.0 million in 2002. Operating
expenses in 2003 includes approximately $1.2 million of
non-recurring costs related to the merger of the urology
therapy units of Galil Medical and Amersham. Galil Medical's
operating loss in 2003 decreased to $7.6 million compared
to $9.8 million in 2002 mainly as a result of the merger of
the urology therapy units of Galil Medical and Amersham
which resulted in a significant decrease in marketing and
selling expenses. Galil plans to continue developing its
cryotherapy technology for application in other health care
fields, and to supply Oncura manufacturing and research
and development services on a cost plus basis, and therefore
its operating loss is expected to continue to decrease.
However, Galil Medical's results of operations will be affected
in the future quarters by the extent of future research and
development activities for the development of new Cryo

applications.

Operating expenses of MediaGate in 2003 were $3.1 million
compared to $4.2 million in 2002. MediaGate's operating
loss in 2003 amounted to $2.4 million compared to $3.6
million in 2002. The decrease in the operating loss of
MediaGate resulted primarily from the decrease in operating
expenses due to cost reduction programs implemented by
MediaGate during 2002 and 2003. Following the sale of
MediaGate's assets and inteliectual property to Telrad,

Mediagate ceased its operations.

Other operating expenses include mainly the operating
expenses of RDC. At the end of 2003, RDC launched a new
company named Starling Advanced Communications
("Starting"), in which RDC and Elbit Systems hold 50% each.
Starling develops an antenna and satellite communication
solution that enables commercial airborne broadband
connectivity. Starling's research and development costs were
included through its incorporation in RDC's results of

operations.

Income Taxes. Income taxes, net, in 2003 were $6.8 million,
which were mainly due to income taxes with respect to the
sale of shares of Partner, Given Imaging, Zix and 24/7 Real
Media, as well as with respect to the merger of the urology
therapy units of Galil Medical and Amersham. in 2002, we
recorded a tax benefit of $3.0 million mainly with respect

to corporate expenses.

Loss from Discontinued Operations. Loss from discontinued
operations of $2.8 million in 2002 was mainly with respect
to our subsidiary VFlash which sold substantially all of its
assets and business to 24/7 Real Media Inc. (Nasdag: TFSM)
in exchange for shares of 24/7 Real Media, resulting in a
gain of $2.0 million which was partially offset by the results
of operations of VFlash in the amount of $1.9 million. Aiso

included in this item are the net losses of other subsidiaries

such as Textology which was sold in the aggregate amount
of $2.9 millien.
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QUARTERLY RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

The table below sets forth unaudited consolidated statement
of operations data for each of the four consecutive quarters
ended December 31, 2003:

“Net Fevenues - ‘
Net loss from equity investments
Gain from disposals of business and affiliated companies
and changes in holdings in related companies, net
Other income’ (expenses); net? <" ‘
Total income
" Costs and expenges’ - 1T :
Gain (loss) from continuing operations before tax
benefit (taxes on income)
“Tax benefit (takes on income)’
Minority interest
Income (loss) from continuing operations
Gain (loss) from distontiftied operations

Net income (loss)

Because we are a high technology operational holding
company that operates through group companies, and
therefore the major contributions to our net income (or
loss) in any given quarter are our share in our group
companies' result of operation and gain (or loss) from
disposition of and changes in our holdings in group companies,
we have experienced, and expect to continue to experience,
significant volatility in our quarterty results.

Most of our group companies' results continue to improve,
reducing the level of losses with respect to these companies
during 2003. In addition, since the second quarter of 2003
we recorded significant gains from sale of shares of our
group companies (mainly Partner shares in the second and
the third quarter of 2003) as well as gains from the merger
between the urology therapy units of Galil Medical and
Amersham in the third quarter of 2003 and the sale of ESW
assets and business and the shares of Zix received as a
consideration in the third and fourth quarter of 2003, enabling
us to offset our share in the group companies' losses and

to report net income,

R ]

Ql/2003% Q2/2003] Q3/2003 Q4/2003( 2003
(millions of $)

380 40 47 - 407 145
(3.0) 3.9) (1.2) (0.6) (8.7)
0.4 0.9 24.4 0.1 258
(1.2 73 37 49 147

- 83 316 8.4 483

403 0 1020 94 L7670 375
(10.3) {1.9) 22.2 08 10.8
04T . 22 - B9 T (68)
2.0 1.7 (15.6) 1.0 (10.9)
(7.9) (2.4) 27 0.7 (6.9)
(L4 ey 03 .24 7(03)
(9.3) (4. 3.0 3.1 7.2)

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL
RESOURCES

Consolidated cash, debentures and deposits (including short
and long-term) at December 31, 2003 were approximately
$!14.6 million compared with $96.8 million at December
31, 2002.

At December 31, 2003, the corporate cash, debentures and
deposits (including short and long term) were $107.3 million
(of which 99% were held in U.S. doflar accounts) compared
with $94.1 million at December 31, 2002. An amount of
$27.2 million is collateralized to secure current maturities
of long-term bank loans of ESW and Elron TeleSoft. An
amount of $76.6 million has average maturities of less than
three months. An amount of $5.5 million is invested in
commercial marketable debentures and certificates of
deposits, all with credit quality issuers and with limited

amount of credit exposure to any one issuer,




The main sources of the corporate cash and other liquid
instruments in 2003 were $29.3 million proceeds from the
sale of 6,278,226 shares of Partner, $3.0 million proceeds
from the sale of 1,117,155 shares of Zix, $5.2 million proceeds
from the sale of 24/7 Real Media shares, a $4.3 million
repayment of loan granted to RDC, and a $3.0 million

dividend received from Elbit Systems,

The main uses of the corporate cash and other liquid
instruments in 2003 were an aggregate of $19.8 million

investments in new and existing group companies and $5.8

million repayment of bank loans. In addition, in 2003, we
and Rafael, the minority shareholder of RDC, purchased
two million unregistered shares of Given Imaging (one million
each) from RDC for a total consideration of $12.2 million.
RDC used the proceeds to repay $5.0 million shareholders’
loans to each of Rafael and us, $2.5 million to repay a bank

loan, and the remainder was used for its investment activity.

The following table sets forth the investments made during
2003 by Elron (in million of $):

Oren Semiconductor "36°
Galil Medical 3.2
Wavion 3.0
MediaGate 27
Notal 1.7
KIT b5
AMT 13
Pulsicom 0.5
Other 23,
19.8
Purchase of .Given'Imaging shares. from RDC - _fi
25.9

Consolidated working capital on December 31, 2003 was
$57.0 million compared to $31.8 million at December 31,
2002. The increase was primarily due to increase in cash
and cash equivalents mainly as a result of the sale of Partner,
Zix and 24/7 Real Media shares in the aggregate amount of
$43.5 million. This increase was partially offset by $25.9
million investment in our group companies and in new

companies.

Type of Obligation{ 2004’
Loans from-banks;:
$3.1 million

$0.5 million -~

lLoans from other

Capital leases *. -

il
2

)
=
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%
o
%
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2005 |

$52.9 million. 5. § 146 million. 1

$0:3 million

At December 31, 2003, we and our subsidiaries had no
material contractual obligations which are expected to affect
our consolidated cash flow in future periods, except for
capital lease obligations and payments of bank credits, bank
loans and loans from others, including short term loans taken
by our subsidiaries, in each case due in future periods as set

forth in the table below.

ol

With no specified
2006 maturity date

©U$26 million © 870,40 Willion”
- - $3.1 million
sl 2309 million
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Consolidated loans at December 31, 2003 were
approximately $73.2 million, of which $67.5 million is
attributed to Elron Telesoft and ESW, associated with the
purchase of their main operations and net assets. Elron
provided guarantees to banks of up to approximately $76.1
million to secure bank loans made available to Elron TeleSoft
and ESW and of which $67.5 million have been utilized as
of December 31, 2003. In addition, in connection with some
of Eiron TeleSoft's bank loans, we have provided to the
lending banks comfort letters pursuant to which we undertook

not to reduce our holdings beyond a certain percentage.

Neither Elron Telesoft nor Elron Software is currently
generating or is expected, in the near future, to generate
sufficient revenues to repay their loans to the banks and
accordingly we may be required to repay such indebtedness
when due under the current lending arrangements or to
refinance such loans under new terms which will not be

necessarily on terms favorable to us.

MediaGate's bank's loan in the amount of approximately
$2.6 million has been secured by a first ranking pledge over
the future proceeds to be received as royalties as a

consideration for the sale of its technology to Telrad.

In 2001, we, together with the other major shareholder of
NetVision, provided letters of comfort in connection with
the credit line granted to NetVision by banks pursuant to
which we jointly undertook not to reduce our joint holdings
beyond a certain percentage. The amount outstanding under
the credit line at December 31, 2003 was approximately
$21.3 million.

All of Partner's shares held by us as of December 31, 2003,
amounting to approximately 15.9 million shares, are pledged

by us in favor of Partner's consortium of banks.

Subsequent to December 31, 2003 and through March 9,
2004, we invested an additional aggregate amount of
approximately $3.7 million in our group companies, which

include mainly $2.6 million in Chip Express.

We believe that our existing capital will be sufficient to fund
our and our subsidiaries’ operations and our investment plan
in existing and new companies as well as repaying bank loans
provided to ESW and Eiron Telesoft, when they become due

and if not extended, for at least the next twelve months.
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Shareholders' equity at December 31, 2003, was
approximately $296.1 million representing approximately
66% of the total assets compared with $259.4 million
representing approximately 66% of total assets at December
31,2002

QUALITIVE AND QUANTITIVE
DISCLOSURE ABOUT MARKET
RISK

Market risks relating to our operations result primarily from
changes in interest rates, exchange rates and equity prices.
In order to limit our exposure, we may enter, from time to
time, into various derivative transactions. Our objective is
to reduce exposure and fluctuations in earnings and cash
flows associated with changes in interest rates, foreign
currency rates and equity prices. We do not use financial
instruments for trading purposes. It is our policy and practice

to use derivative financial instruments only to limit exposure.

Interest Rate Risks. We are exposed to market risks resulting
from changes in interest rates, relating primarily to our funds
and loan obligations to banks. We do not use derivative financial
instruments to limit exposure to interest rate risk. At December
31, 2003, we had fixed rate financial assets of $5.5 miltion held
for up to 3 years, and variable rate financial assets of $101.8
million. At the same time, our subsidiaries had variable interest
loans of $71.1 million. Therefore, we believe that the potential
loss that would result from an increase or decrease in the

interest rate is immaterial to our business and net assets.

Exchange Rate Risk. Since most of our group companies
are lsraeli-related, our main exposure, if any, results from
changes in the exchange rate between the New lsraeli Shekel
and the US. dollar. Our functional currency, as well as that
of our principal subsidiaries and affiliated companies, is the
U.S. dollar. Our policy is to reduce exposure 1o exchange
rate fluctuations by having most of our and our subsidiaries’
assets and liabilities, as well as most of the revenues and
expenditures in U.S. dollars, or U.S. dollar linked. Therefore,
we believe that the potential loss that would result from an
increase or decrease in the exchange rate is immaterial to

our business and net assets.




Equity Price Risk. We are exposed to fluctuations in the
equity price of our holdings in publicly traded companies.
At December 31, 2003 we directly and indirectly held shares
of the following publicly traded companies: Elbit Systems
(Nasdaq: ESLT), Given Imaging (Nasdaqg: GIVN), Partner
Communication Company Ltd. (Nasdag: PTNR), Elbit Vision
Systems (Nasdag: EVSNF). and Zix (Nasdag: ZIXI).
Stock prices in the industries of these companies have
experienced significant historical volatility. Changes in the
market value of our publicly traded holdings, including
holdings through our affiliates, which are accounted under
the equity method of accounting or as available-for-sale
securities will not affect our results of operations but may

have a significant effect on our market value. We view the

risks of reduction in market price of these companies as
part of our business risks and we examine, from time to
time, the possibility of having a partial hedge against equity
price risks. Based on closing market prices at December 31,
2003, the fair market value of our holdings in public securities
was approximately $355.2 million. As of December 31, 2003
no financial instruments are used to hedge against equity
price fluctuations. ‘

Changes in the market value of our available-for-sale securities
(which mainly include our holding in Partner) are reported in
other comprehensive income, which is included as a component
of shareholders’ equity, and not as part of our results of
operations. The market value of our available-for-sale securities

as of December 31, 2003 amounted to $132.3 million.
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REPORT DOF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS,

To the Shareholders of ELRON ELECTRONIC INDUSTRIES LTD.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Elron Electronic Industries Ltd. (the "Company™)
and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2003, and the related consclidated statements of operations, changes in
shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the

Company’s management. Our responsibility is 1o express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We did not audit the financial statements of certain affiliates, the investment in which, at equity, amounted to $ 46.8
million as of December 31, 2003, and the Company’s equity in their losses amounted to $ 9.7 million for the year then
ended. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us; and our
opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for those companies, is based solely on the reports of other

auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that

our audit and the reports of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for.our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the consolidated financial statements referred
to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries
as of December 31, 2003 and the consolidated resuits of their operations and their cash flows for the year then ended,

in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

As discussed in Note 2(s) to the consolidated financial statements, on January 1, 2003, the Company adopted SFAS

123, "Accounting for Stock - Based Compensation” with respect to all employee awards granted, modified or settled

after January 1, 2003.
k’s/,gm 5-1/70( M‘""W

Tel-Aviv, Israel _ KOST FORER GABBAY & KASIERER
March 10, 2004 A Member of Ernst & Young Global
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Luboshitz Kasierer

'REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITI:IRSl

To the Shareholders of ELRON ELECTRONIC INDUSTRIES LTD.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Elron Electronic industries Ltd. {the “Company™)
and its subsidiaries, as of December 31, 2002 (as restated — see Note 7(d)7), and the related restated
consolidated statements of operations, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the two years
in the period ended December 31, 2002. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's

management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We did not audit the financial statements of certain subsidiaries, whose assets constitute 4.5% of consolidated
total assets as of December 31, 2002, and whose net losses constitute approximately 4.8% of consolidated net
loss for the year ended December 31, 2002. Also, we did not audit the financial statements of certain affiliates,
the investment in which, at equity, amounted to $13.0 million as of December 31, 2002, and the Company’s
equity In their losses amounted to $4.6 million and $8.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2002 and
2001, respectively. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished
to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for those companies, is based sclely on

the reports of other auditors.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overal! financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits and the reports of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our

opinion.

in our opinion, based on our audits and the reports of other auditors, the consolidated financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Company
and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2002 and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash
flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2002, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in United States. As discussed in note 2(}) to the consolidated financial statements, on

January |, 2002, the Company adopted SFAS 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”.

Luboshitz Kasierer
An affiliate member of Ernst & Young International
Tel Aviv, Israel
March 12, 2003, except as
to Note 7(d)7 which is
dated March 10, 2004




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
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U.S. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalerits
Short-term investments
- Trade receivables, net*¥ .7
Other receivables and prepaid expenses **

' Invéntories and. ¢ontracts-in*progress -
Total current assets

LONG-TERM ASSETS

Investmetits in affiliated companies

Investments in other companies and long-term receivables **

- Debentures and bank deposits -~ .
Deferred taxes

Severance ‘pay-deposits® - ;U
Total long-term assets

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET
INTANGIBLE ASSETS

+ Gogdwill .

Other intangible assets

ST otal assets ”

* Restated - see Note 7(d)(7).

10

6

12

December 31,

2003

2002

%8506 86701
37,158 3,180
C50160 19,238

2516 4528
1471 7 197
130,067 87.044
156,819 *132,204
128,799 * 89,134
00289
1,871 2,990
A 2262
290,333 255,518
8317 11,576

o

71538

9,968 18,577
21,987 40,115
£ $450,704 " v §:394,053

** Include receivables from related parties in the aggregate amount of $3,684 and $2,462 as of December 31, 2003

and 2002, respectively.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,

3
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

U.S. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Short-term loans from banks and others S
Current maturities of long-term loans from banks and others
Trade payables e '

Other payables and accrued expenses

- Total current liabilities *

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Long-term loans from’ banks and others.

Accrued severance pay and retirement obligations
Deférred taxes' LR o
Other

. Total long-term liabilities -~
MINORITY INTEREST

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY:
Ordinary shares of NIS 0.003 par value; Authorized: 35,000,000 shares as
of December 31, 2003 and 2002; Issued and outstanding: 29,206,845 and
29,180,970 shares as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectovely

. Additional ‘paid-in capital ' ‘ e
Accumulated other comprehenswe income

""Accumulated deficit
Total shareholders’ equity

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

* Restated - see Note 7(d)(7).

The accompanying notes are an integra! part of the financial statements.

December 31,

Note 2003 2002
38 119860 § U536,
I5 44,021 17,637
L . 3408 15,738,
14 13,620 16,516

| 73035 L 755253
B 72200 - 49,389,
2.850 2921
eI e 406847 L 23,650;
103 414
. 60858
20681 3,185
i8
9,572 9.572
267013 267,482
51,792 7,529
T(32347) | +Q5142);
296,130 259,441
$ 450704 $ 394253
)709\“/ D __.

March 10, 2004 A4 /Jé)u;

Date of approval of the Ami Erel Avraham Asheri

financial statements Chairman of the Board Director

of Directors

TR

Doron Birger
President & Chief

Executive Officer
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J CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS ]
US. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data Year ended December 31,
Note AZ(_)O&EIJ *2002J *2001 ‘
INCOME S -
Net revenues** T $ 16547 - $ . 05179 | 23782
Equity in losses of affiliated companies 20 (8,698) *(24,189) *(28,787)
Gain from disposal of businesses and affiliated companies '
and changes in holdings in affiliated companies, net S2000 0 25754 6,888 - 301479
Other income (expenses), net 22 14,665 (743) (4.888)
48,268 (2,865) (6,714)
COSTS AND EXPENSES
Cost of revenues - - . - S ' 10198 07f6. - 21,059
Research and development costs, net 3,787 3,418 3,801
Marketing and selling expenses, net " ‘ D 7,763 7 6412 v 2496
General and administrative expenses 13,923 9,658 9,390
Restructuring costs - ) : . A' 24 e T 1747 i,492
r _ Amortization of intangible assets 1,073 1,044 2,448
Financial expensés (income), net » . 23. . . 753 S8l n (1,708)
37,497 33,076 38,678
income (loss) before tax benefit (taxes on income) : ST 10770 2(35941), L *(45392)
Tax benefit (taxes on income) 16 (6.834) 2,862 2,985
Income (loss) from. continuing Operations after taxes on income . Lo 3937 *(33,079) o ¥(42,507)
Minority interest in losses (income) of subsidiaries (10,907) 2,823 438
Loss from continuing opefations. * : » CT6970) *(30256) © *(41.,969)
Loss from discontinued operations 25 (235) (11,323 (10.390)
Netloss . ~. = ..~ = - C§T0L(7205) . §KA1579) 7§ *(52,359)
Loss per share 19
Basic:
'~ Loss from continuing operations ~ .~ . L ST (024) L s *LAS) o 8 X(1.98)
: Loss from discontinued operations 3 (0.0 $_ (043) $  *(0.49)
Net loss . @+ 0 L e Con §025) s *(158) gL *(247)
! Diluted :
' Ldss frof continuing operations - A S 024 .5 (IS - $ *(199)
” Loss from discontinued operations $ (0.0h $  *(0.43) $  *(049)
Netloss- 20 e g 029) L K158 5 *248)
Weighted average number of shares used in computing basic
“and fc_}nqtéd;ﬁet lo§s per share (thousands). .~ = o 2 w9194 - c s 126,272 o 21,191
’ *Restated - See Note 7(d)(7).
» **Include revenues in the amount of $4,156, $2,487 and $3,284, for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and
E 2001, respectively, from related parties.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
&




STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDERS’> EQUITY,

U.S. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data

|

b

Accumulated Retained
Additional other earnin, Toul Total
Number Share paid-in | comprehensive| (Accumulated| comprehensive| shareholders’
of shares capital capital i income deficit)| income (loss) equity
Balance as of January |,2001(¥) 21,188,664 % 9567 $ 158,898 $ 36,459 $ 68,796 $273,720
Exercise of options ¢ L 25,000 Lo aTUB08 L e 1306
Changes in additional paid-in capital in affiliated companies - - 2,899 - - 2,899
Change in holdings in affilizted company, .~ : 35830 0 s '_:3,5837“
Amortization of deferred stock compensation - - 6) - - (6)
Other comprehensive income (foss), net of tax: o : . L )
Unrealized gains on available for sale securities - - - 6,850 - % 6850 6,850
Reclassification adjustment for gain realized included in net loss " - - B (:l.,.056)‘ S ol 056), © . +(1,056)
Foreign currency translation adjustment - - - (22) - (22) (22)
Netloss - = . : » - - - S 5358y [ (52:359) L (52.359)..
Balance as of December 31, 2001(*) 21213664 $ 9567 $ 165,680 $ 42,231 $ *16437 3233915
Total comprehensive loss o ‘ . | G ST S $(d8587). '
Exercise of options 87,862 . 605 605
Issuance of shares pursuant to the merger with Elbit . : 5,617,601 4 T - - C 71195
Issuance of shares pursuant to the purchase of DEP 2261,843 | 29,448 - - 29,449
Changes in additional paid-in capitalin affiliated companies | - . s - . 336 - : ©o336n
Amortization of deferred stock compensation . - - 222 - - 222
Other comprehensive loss, net oftax: " o . N S B : U ' R S SRR
Unrealized losses on available for sale securities - - - (33.035) - $(33,035) (33,035)
Reclassification adjustment for gain realized and other than PR SRR T
temporary impairment included in net loss - - - (1,070) - (1,070) (1.070)
Minimum pension fiability in an affiliated Company - : IR (-4 SN S {897y (s9Ty
Net loss - - - (41,579) (41.579) (41.579)
Balance as of December 31,2002 (*) 29180970 $ 9.572 § 267482 $ 7529 $ (25.142) $259,441
Total‘comprehépsive_.fpgs'_ . o N Tl . $(7628l) S »
Exercise of options 25,875 - 177 - - - 177
Changes if additional paid-in capital in affiliated companies. |, " or L 930 ol REON 2
Amortization of deferred stock compensation - - 386 - - - 386
Other comprehensive income (10ss), et of tax: e e SRR .
Unrealized gains on available for sale securities - - - 55,960 - $ 55960 55,960
Reclassification adjustment for gain realized included in netloss ~ - - . R MK A LUy ey
Foreign currency translation adjustment - - - (304) - (304) (304)
Minimum pension liability in an affiliated-company  ~ - SR : R R - (7 R (V)
Unrealized loss on derivative instrument in affiliated company - - - (108) - (108) (108)
Netioss', * - 7 7 et ; - - g L s T05) T 7 .208) T Fe (7.205)
Balance as of December 31,2003 29206845 $ 9572 $ 267.113 $ 51,792 $ (32,347) $296,130
Total comprehénsive income * = C N S e e 837058 ¢ e

*Restated - See Note 7(d)(7).

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS|

U.S. dolfars in thousands, except share and per share data

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Ioss

. Equity in losses of afﬁhated compames

",Equlty i losses of partnershlps : "

‘.Deprec:anon and amortlzatcon

Adjustments to reconcr!e net loss to net cash provided by (used m) operatlng activities:

Dividend from afﬁhated compames

' Mmorrty interest, in. mcome (Iosses) of subsxd:anes

Gain from disposal of businesses and affiliated companies and changes in
holdings in affiliated companies, net

Gam from sale cf mvestments in- avarIabIe for. saIe ecuntves R I

Gain from disposal of busmesses mcluded in d«scontmued operat:ons

Decline in value of other mvestments

Amortization (apprecrauon) of deferred stock compensatlon and Ca“ optlons

. De(erred ‘taxes, net - P ' R

Changes in operating assets and Irathmes

Decrease in. trade recewab!es

Decrease (increase) in other recenvab!es and prepald expenses

: Decrease (Increase) in_tradi ng secuntwes net::

Decrease (increase) in inventories and contracts in- progress

. “Increase (decrease) in trade. payables ’

Decrease in other payab!es and accrued expenses

'iOther . o )
Net cash prov;ded by (used in) operatmg actnv:tles

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

~"_Ir1vestment in aﬁ'hated compames T s RS

. Proceeds. from sale of, Gtven

Proceeds from sale of Elbit Systems shares

“ng shares

Cash and cash equivalents resultmg from the merger wsth Elbvt (Schedule A)

. Cash and, ash equivalents resuftmg from thé share purchase of DEP (Schedule B}

Cash and cash equwaIents resuItmg from newly consolidated subsidiaries (Schedule C)
Cash and cash equrvalents r‘

Investment in other companies

\ Proceeds from sale:of invéstments in-other companies -

Repayment of long term receivables

B "Proceeds ‘from sale 0( ava:!able for sale securmes e

Investments in heId to matunty debentures and deposrts

Net cash prowded by mvestrng at i -
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

T Proceeds from opt(ons exerctsed

o Rebayrﬁevnt of loans’ frb”m Fﬁiho"r?t} sharéfolders.of a subsidiary

Proceeds from exercise of options in a subs:dtary
Receipt-of long-term Ioans from-banks
Repayment of loans from shareholder
Repayment of long-term Ioans

Decrease in short-term bank Ican. net

Re:erpt ofshort term loans from mmonty shareholders of a substd«ary

Proceeds fram’ Issuance‘o or emble notes. to mmonty shareho!ders ofa subs;d(ary -
Net cash prov:ded by (used in} fnancmg activities

- INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR

*Restated - See Note 7(d)(7).
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,

'lg from sale of, busmesses and substdtames (Schedule D) .

Year ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
$- -(7,205) $ *(41579) T $ (52359
869 *24,89; 228787
2971 2670 13,805
10907 [oF:7k) SR (438}
(25.754) (6.888) (3.179)
7y - os) 99)-
(4.137) (994
03573 C4372 T
3716 1,866
S SR 363
2,564 (104)
L6229, (31398
S TN L2508 T
1,888 3439
gRCHe A e Ly
589 698 (1.310)
(2.009) 138y T el RASEY
{5.275) I (77«0)
. e527 Ce9s
(16:483) (29.210) 1117
(13,384) -7~ 29,551y LT TR
; 5,862 6,655
13878 6918 . AN
- 14,883 .
- 284 .. v o :
- 2978 ' ;
(6.148) (1,984)
{299) *(3,700)
< 73050 "
772 -
46, 143 ST 850 -
(I0877 (11381)
: aagy T
(969)
© 515
- 6,589
38,842 5821 509,024-
77 "605 1306
. 2 71
.4,032 9.152 9,540,
- (1,378) -
(6:200) (706) NGOk
(4.076) (8.954) 401
(d.246y5""
904 - .
" 3055 A 2,165
(6,354) 886
16,005 . (22503), . %29
67,901 90,404 60,575
$- §3906. - $- 67,901 390,404




UBSIDIARIES - .
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CaNT)|

U.S. dolfars in thousands, except share and per share data

Year ended December 31,

2003 2002 200! ]
Supplémental cash flow information:
" Cash paid‘during the year for: T
Income taxes $ 96
Interest - . e T e AR C 466
Non-cash transactions:
‘Exchange of marketable securities ~ - T T Plgelnl

Year ended December 31,

SCHEDULE A: .
Cash and cash equivalents resulting from the merger with Elbit 2002

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed on the merger date:

. Working capital; net:(except cash. and: cash equivalents) -
Property and equipment
Investments in affiliated companies -

Other investments

Other long -term. assets . "~
Goodwill

Long-term-liabilities

investment at equity prior to merger

Minority interests

Issuance of shares

" ‘Cash and cash equivalents-acquired

Year en_ded December 31,

: SCHEDULE B: 2002
~ Cash and cash equivalents resulting from the share purchase of DEP

" Assets acquiréd andliabilities assurned at the share purchase date: '

Working capital, net (except cash and cash equivalents) $ 19,115
‘Property andequipment’ . = : AT T T i e (28)
Investments in affiliated companies ' (40,493)

- Other investments. .. "
Other long-term assets
" Long-term liabilities .
Investment at equity prior to acquisition
Minority interests " : R

Issuance of shares

Cash and casHiequi'valént's acquired

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS ((.':l:lNT.)J

" Marketable securities

.+ Cash.and cash equivalents-paid-

U.S. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data

SCHEDULE C:

Cash and cash equivalents resulting from newly consolidated subsidiaries

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the purchase date:
Working capital, net’ (except cash-and cash equivalerits)
Property and equipment
Intangible assets’

Deferred taxes
Accrued severance pay, net
Investment at equity prior to acquisition

Minority interests

Cash and cash equivalents acquired

SCHEDULE D:

Cash and cash equivalents resufting from disposal of businesses

Assets and liabilities at date of sale:

" Working capital, net (except. cash and cash equivalents)
Property and equipment
"Other assets '
Deferred tax liability

5

. Aicried severance payinet T Lt

Gain resulting from sale of businesses

Securities received:

Other investments
Invéstment inaffiliated Company:"

Liability incurred

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Year ended December 31,

2002

$ 3230
(2,007)
(12,024)

3,260

179

8231

e iR, 109

2,978

Year ended December 31,

2003 2002

$(708) . S (677)
1274 266
6532 200
(907) - : -

L (33)
22,833 1,991
(5/400) L {(1,600)
(1,000) (2,131

(30272) s
1,500 -

S (6,148) T T $(15984)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEME[\ITE"J

U.S. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data

NOTE 1: GENERAL|

Eiron Electronic Industries Ltd. ("Elron” or "the Company™), an Israeli corporation, is a multi-national high technology
operational holding company. Elron’s global business is conducted through subsidiaries and affiliates, primarily in the

fields of defense electronics, medical devices, communication, software, semiconductors and advanced materials,

NOTE 2: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIGIES|

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States ("US GAAP™).

The significant accounting policies followed in the preparation of the financial statements, applied on a consistent basis, are:

A. Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of income and expenses during

the reported period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
B. Financial statements in U.S. dollars

The financial statements have been prepared in U.S. doliars, since the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the operations of the Company, its principal subsidiaries and affiliates are conducted is the U.S. dollar. Most
of the Company's assets and liabilities are in U.S. dollars and sales of its subsidiaries are mainly in U.S. doflars. Therefore,

the functional and reporting currency of the Company and its subsidiaries is the U.S. dollar.

Transactions and balances originally denominated in U.S. dollars are presented at their original amounts. Transactions
and balances in other currencies have been remeasured into U.S. dollars in accordance with the principles set forth

in Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS™) No. 52 "Foreign Currency Translation: ("SFAS No. 527).
Accordingly, items have been translated as follows:

Monetary items - at the exchange rate in effect on the balance sheet date.
Nonmonetary items — at historical exchange rates.
Revenue and expense items — at the exchange rates in effect as of the date of recognition of those items (excluding

depreciation and other items deriving from non-monetary items).

All exchange gains and losses from the remeasurement mentioned above are reflected in the statement of operations

in financial expenses (income), net.

SRRy



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |

U.S. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data

NOTE 2: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.) |

B. Financial statements in U.S. dollars (Cont.)

The financial statements of an affiliate accounted for under the equity method, whaose functional currency is not the
U.S. dollar, have been translated into dollars in accordance with SFAS No, 52. All balance sheet accounts have been
translated using the exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date. Statement of income amounts have been
transiated Qsing average exchange rates prevailing during the year. The resulting aggregate transiation adjustments

are reported as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income in shareholders’ equity.
C. Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries, in which the Company

has a controlling voting interest. Inter-company balances and transactions have been eliminated upon consolidation.

As of the balance sheet date the significant subsidiaries whose balances and results are consolidated are: Elbit Ltd.
("Elbit"), DEP Technology Holdings Ltd. ("DEP”), RDC Rafael Development Corporation Ltd. ("RDC"), Elron Telesoft
Inc. ("ETIM), Elron SW Inc.("ESW")((Formerly: Eiron Software ("ESI™), Galil Medical Ltd. ("Galil") and Mediagate N.V.

("Mediagate").
D. Business combinations

Business combinations have been accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. Under the purchase method
of accounting the results of operations of the acquired business are included from the effective date of acquisition,
The costs to acquire companies, including transactions costs, have been allocated to the underlying net assets of the
acquired company in proportion to their respective fair values. Any excess of the purchase price over estimated fair

values of the identifiable net assets acquired has been recorded as goodwill.
E. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to cash with an original

maturity of three months or less.
F. Long-term debentures and deposits

Bank deposits and debentures which are classified as held-to-maturity with maturities of more than one year and short-
term bank deposits held as a security for long-term loans are included in long-term debentures and bank deposits.
Debentures are classified as held-to-maturity when the Company has the intent and ability to hold these securities
to maturity. The debentures and deposits are measured at amortized cost plus accrued interest. Accrued interest is

recorded as finance income.
G. Marketable securities

Management determines the classification of marketable investments in debt securities with fixed maturities and

marketable equity securities at the time of purchase and reevaluates such designations at each balance sheet date.




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEME[\ITSJ

U.S. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data

'NOTE 2: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CaONT.)|

G. Marketable securities (Cont.)

Some marketable securities are classified as trading securities and are stated at the quoted-market prices at each
balance sheet date. Gains and losses (realized and unrealized) relating to trading securities as well as interest on such

securities are included as other income (expenses).

Certain marketable securities covered by SFAS No. 115 "Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity
Securities”, ("SFAS No. 115" were ciassified as available-for-sale. Accordingly, these securities are measured at fair
value, with unrealized gains and losses reported net-of-tax in accumulated other comprehensive income, a separate
component of shareholders’ equity. Realized gains and losses on sales of investments, and decline in value judged to
be other than temporary, are included in the consolidated statement of operations. When computing realized gain

or loss, cost is determined on an average basis.
H. lnventories and contracts in progress

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market value. Inventory write-offs are provided for slow-moving items

or technological obsolescence.
Cost is determined as follows:

Raw materials - using the average cost method, or the "first in, first out” method.

Contracts-in-progress - represent amounts related to long-term contracts as determined by the percentage of completion
methed of accounting.

Finished Products - raw materials as mentioned above and other direct and indirect manufacturing costs on an average

basis or "first in, first out” method.
I. Investments in companies

Investments in which the Company has significant influence but less than a controlling voting interest are accounted
for using the equity method. Significant influence is presumed to exist when the Company owns between 20%-50%
of the investee. However, whether or not the Company has significant influence depends on evaluation of certain
factors including among others, the Company's representation on the investee's board of directors, agreements with
other shareholders, additional voting rights, participation in policy making processes, existence of material intercompany
transactions and technological dependency and the extent of ownership by the Company in relation to the concentration

of other shareholders.

The Company discontinues to apply the equity method when its investment (inciuding advances and loans) is reduced
to zero and it has no guaranteed obligations of the affiliate or is not otherwise committed to provide further financial

support to the affiliate.

In circumstances where the Company's ownership in an affiliate is in the form of a preferred security or other senior
security, the Company recognizes equity method losses based on the cwnership level of the particular affiliate security

or loan held by the Company to which the equity method losses are being applied.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |

U.S. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data

NOTE 2: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.) |

1. Investments in companies (Cont.)

The excess of the purchase price over the fair value of net tangible assets acquired is attributed to goodwill, technology
and other identifiable intangible assets. Goodwill is no longer amortized effective jJanuary |, 2002 - See Note | below,
Technology and other identifiable intangible assets are amortized over a period of approximately 5-12 years, commencing

from the acquisition date.

Gains arising from issuance of shares by affiliated companies to third parties are recorded as "Gains from disposal of
businesses and affiliated companies and changes in holdings in affiliated companies net" in the consolidated statements
of operations, unless the issuing company is a development stage company for which the gain (loss) from issuance is

accounted for as an equity transaction pursuant to SAB 5} "Accounting for Sales of Stock by a Subsidiary®.

When an investment in an investee, that was previously accounted for on other than the equity method, becomes
qualified for use of the equity method by an increase in level of ownership, the equity method of accounting is adopted

retroactively and financial statements of prior periods are adjusted accordingly.
Investments in partnerships are accounted for under the equity method.

Investments in other non-marketable companies in which the Company does not have the ability to exercise significant

influence over operating and financial policies are presented at cost.

Management evaluates investments in affiliates and other companies for evidence of other than temporary declines
in value. When relevant factors indicate a decline in value that is other than temporary, the Company records a
provision for the decline in value. A judgmental aspect of accounting for investments invoives determining whether
an other-than-temporary decline in value of the investment has been sustained. Such evaluation is dependent on the
specific facts and circumstances. Accordingly, management evaluates financial information (e.g., budgets, business plans,
financial statements, etc.) in determlni.ng whether an other-than-temporary decline in value exists. Factors indicative
of an other-than-temporary decline include recurring operating losses, credit defaults and subsequent rounds of
financings at an amount below the cost basis of the investment. This list is not all inclusive and management weighs
all quantitative and qualitative factors in determining if an other-than-temporary decline in value of an investment has

occurred.
). Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and investment grants. Depreciation is

calculated by the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets at the following annual rates:

%
Landiand Buifdings. U s T T o
Computers, Machinery and Furniture 6-33
Motor vehicles - Lt 15090
Leasehold improvements over the term of the lease
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NOTE >2: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)|

K. Impairment and disposal of long-lived assets

The Company's and its subsidiaries’ long-lived assets (including identifiable intangible assets subject to amortization)
are reviewed for impairment in accordance with SFAS No. 144, "Accounting for the impairment or disposal of fong-
lived assets", whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an
asset to the future undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If an asset is considered to be
impaired, the impairment is measured by the difference between the carrying amount of the asset and its fair value.

Assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of their carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell.
L. Intangible assets

Intangible assets include mainly technology, goodwill and other identifiable intangible assets acquired in connection
with the purchase of subsidiaries and businesses. Technology and other identifiable intangible assets are amortized

over their estimated useful life.

The Company and its subsidiaries evaluate the amortization periods of all identifiable intangible assets to determine

whether events or circumstances warrant revised estimates of useful lives.

Effective January 1, 2002, the Company adopted the full provisions of SFAS No. 142 "Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets ("SFAS No. 142"). Under SFAS No. 142 goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives are no longer

amortized but instead are tested for impairment at least annually (or more frequently if impairment indicators arise).

SFAS No. 142 prescribes a two phase process for impairment testing of goodwill. The first phase screens for impairment;
while the second phase (if necessary) measures impairment. The Company performed its first phase impairment analysis
during the fourth quarter of 2003 and 2002 and found no instances of impairment of its recorded goodwill. In the
first phase of impairment testing, goodwill attributable to each of the reporting units is tested for impairment by

comparing the fair value of each reporting unit with its carrying value.

Fair value is determined using discounted cash flows and market capitalization. Significant estimates used in the
discounted cash flow methodology include estimates of future cash flows, future short-term and long-term growth
rates and discount rates for each of the reportable units. The Company expects to perform the impairment tests during

the fourth fiscal quarter of each year.
M. Revenue recognition
The Company’s subsidiaries sell, license and support computer software, systems and disposable products.

Software sales are accounted for in accordance with Statement of Position (SOP) 97-2, "Software Revenue Recognition,”

as amended.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSJ

U.S. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data

_NGTE 2: SIGNIFICANT AGCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)|

M. Revenue recognition (Cont.)

Revenues from license fees or product sales are recognized when delivery of the product has occurred, the fee is fixed
or determinable, collectibility is probable, vendor specific objective evidence exists to allocate total fees to elements

of an arrangement (in the case of license fees) and persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists.

Maintenance and support revenue included in multiple element arrangements is deferred and recognized on a straight-

line basis over the term of the maintenance and support agreement.

When the products are warranted, a provision is recorded for probable costs, in connection with the warranties, based

on the Company’s subsidiaries’ experience and estimates.

Revenues from software licenses that require significant customization, integration and installation and from projects,
related to software development, are recognized based on SOP 81-1 "Accounting for Performance of Construction -
Type and Certain Production - Type Contracts”, according to which revenues are recognized on a percentage of
completion basis. Percentage of completion is measured by the efforts expended method based on the ratio of hours
performed to date to estimated total hours at completion. Anticipated losses on contracts are charged to earnings
when identified. Estimated gross profit or loss from Jong-term contracts may change due to changes in estimates
resulting from differences between actua! performance and original forecasts. Such changes in estimated gross profit
are recorded in results of operations when they are reasonably determinable by management, on a cumulative catch-

up basis.

When a right of return exists, an estimate of the allowance for returns is provided in accordance with SFAS No. 48,
"Revenue Recognition When Right of Return Exists”. Reserves for estimated returns and allowances are provided at
the time revenue is recognized. Such reserves are recorded based upon historical rates of returns and allowances and

other factors.

Deferred revenues include unearned amounts received under maintenance and support contracts and amounts received

from customers but not recognized as revenues.
N. Research and development costs

Research and development costs, net of grants received, are charged to the statement of operations as incurred. SFAS
No. 86 "Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software to be Sold, Leased or Otherwise Marketed," requires
capitalization of certain software development costs subseguent to the establishment of technological feasibility. Based
on the subsidiaries’ product development process, technological feasibility is established upon completion of a working
model. Costs, incurred by the Company’s subsidiaries between completion of the working models and the point at
which the products are ready for general release, have been insignificant. Therefore, research and development costs

are charged to the statement of operations, as incurred.
O. Advertising costs

Advertising costs are charged to the consolidated statement of operations as incurred.
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NOTE 2: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CoONT.)|

P. Royalty-bearing grants

Royalty-bearing grants from the government of Israel for funding approved research and development projects, and
royalty-bearing grants from the Government of Israel for the encouragement of marketing activity are recognized at
the time the Company is entitled to such grants, on the basis of the costs incurred. Such grants are included as a

deduction of research and develcpment costs and sales and marketing expenses, respectively.

Research and development and marketing grants received by certain of the company's subsidiaries in 2003 amounted
to $487 and $0, respectively, (2002 - $850 and $105, respectively).

Q. Income taxes

The Company and its subsidiaries account for income taxes in accordance with SFAS No. 109, "Accounting for Income
Taxes”. This Statement prescribes the use of the fiability method whereby deferred tax assets and fiability account
balances are determined based on differences between financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities, using
the enacted tax rates and laws that will be in effect when the differences are expected to reverse. The Company and

its subsidiaries provide a valuation allowance, if necessary, to reduce deferred tax assets to their estimated realizable value.

R. Income (loss) per share

Basic net income (loss) per share is computed based on the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during each year. Diluted net income (loss) per share is computed based on the weighted average number of ordinary
shares and ordinary share equivalents outstanding during the year; ordinary share equivalents are excluded from the

computation if their effect is anti-difutive.

In all periods presented all shares relating to the outstanding stock options have been excluded from the calculation
of the diluted net loss per ordinary share because all such stock options were anti-dilutive. The total ordinary share
equivalents relating to the outstanding options, excluded from the calculations of diluted net loss per share, was 1,799,
5,007 and 11,694 for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 200}, respectively.

S. Stock based compensation

For stock options granted prior to 2003, the Company has elected to follow Accounting Principles Board Opinion No.
25, ("APB 257) "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” and the FASB Interpretation No. 44, "Accounting for Certain
Transactions Involving Stock Compensation” in accounting for its employee stock option plans. According to APB 25,
compensation expense is measured under the intrinsic value method, whereby compensation expense is equat to the
excess, if any, of the quoted market price of the stock at the grant date of the award or other measurement date over

the exercise price. Compensation cost is recorded over the vesting period on a straight line basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL ST{\TEMENTSJ

U.S. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data

NOTE 2! SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)|

S. Stock based compensation (Cont.)

Effective january |, 2003 the Company adopted the fair value recognition provisions of FASB Statement No.123
"Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation ("SFAS No.123"). Under the prospective method of adoption selected
by the company under the provisions of FASB Statement No.| 48, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation -
Transition and Disclosure” ("SFAS No.148"), the recognition provisions will be applied to all employee awards granted,

modified, or settled after January |, 2003. Compensation cost is recorded over the vesting period on a straight line basis.

The expense related to stock-based employee compensation included in the determination of net loss for 2003, 2002
and 2001 is less than that which would have been recognized if the fair value method had been applied to all awards
granted after the original effective date of SFAS No.123. If the Company and its subsidiaries had elected to adopt the
fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No.123 as of its original effective date, pro forma net loss and pro forma

basic and diluted net loss per share would be as follows:

Year ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001

Net loss, as réported: - o oo LT g (7,205) B F(E579) e $x(52359)
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense
included in reported net loss 973 933 29

Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation

expense determined under the fair value based

method.forall awards™ 7T A 0T e 377 2,876 974
Pro forma net loss $ (7.609) $ (43.522) $ (53,304)
Loss per share:

 Basiémreporteds - Ll n o UL §0(025)  §L(LSEY. s $42A7)
Basic - pro forma (0.26) *(1.66) *(2.510)
Diliied <38 Teported,. . 5 UL L (028) L A8y AAe)
Diluted - pro forma (0.26) *(1.66) *(2.52)

* Restated - See Note 7(d)(7)
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. NOTE 2: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CoNT.) |

S. Stock based compensation (Cont.)

The fair value for these options was estimated at the date of grant using a Black-Scholes option-pricing model with

the following weighted-average assumptions for 2003, 2002 and 200]:

2003 2002 2001
Risk-free Interest Rate -~ 1% v o 8% T 3%
Expected Dividend Yield 0% 0% 0%
CBxpected Volatlity . S3% L T39% 0 85%
Expected Lives 27 2.1 27

The Company provides the disclosures required by SFAS No. 123 and SFAS No. 148 in Note 18.

Call options granted to employees to purchase shares in subsidiaries, affiliates and other companies are recorded at
fair value using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The fair value of the option is recorded as a liability and changes

in the liability are recorded as compensation expenses in general and administrative expenses.
T. Comprehensive income (loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) consists of net income (loss) and other gains and losses affecting shareholders equity
that under generally accepted accounting principles are excluded from the net income (loss). For the Company, such
items consist of unrealized gains and losses on available for sale securities, foreign currency translation adjustments

and minimum pension liabilities and unrealized losses on derivative instruments in an affiliated company (See Note 27).
U. Severance pay

The Company's and its subsidiaries’ liability for severance pay, with respect to their lsraeli employees, is calculated
pursuant to Israeli severance pay law and employee agreements based on the most recent salary of the employees.
The Company's liability for all of its employees, is fully provided by monthly deposits with insurance policies and by

an accrual. The value of these policies is recorded as an asset in the Company's balance sheet.

The deposited funds include profits accumulated up to the balance sheet date. The deposited funds may be withdrawn
only upon the fulfiliment of the obligations pursuant to fsraeli severance pay faw or labor agreefnents. The value of

the deposited funds is based on the cash surrendered value of these policies, and includes immaterial profits.

Severance pay expenses for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 200} amounted to $731, $611 and $277,

respectively.
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NOTE. 2: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)]

V. Discontinued operations

Under SFAS No. 144, when a component of an entity, as defined in SFAS No. 144, has been disposed of or is classified
as held for sale, the results of its operations, including the gain or loss on its disposal should be classified as discontinued
operations only when the operations and cash flows of the component sold have been eliminated from the Company's
consolidated operations and the Company will no longer have any significant continuing involvement in the operations

of the component.
W. Fair value of financial instruments

SFAS No. 107 "Disclosure about Fair Value of Financial Instruments,” requires disclosure of an estimate of the fair value
of certain financial instruments. The Company’s financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, marketable
securities, short-term and long term deposits and debentures, trade receivables, other receivables, trade payables,
other payables and short-term and long-term bank loans. The estimated fair value of these financial instruments
approximates their carrying value as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, unless otherwise stated. The estimated fair

values have been determined through information obtained from market sources and management estimates.

"It was not practical to estimate the fair value of the Company's investments in shares and loans of non-public affiliates

and other companies because of the lack of a quoted market price and the inability to estimate the fair value of each
investment without incurring excessive costs. The carrying amounts of these companies were $48,992 and $24,729
at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively, and they represent the original cost, net of impairment, and in the case
of affiliates also the Company's equity, in the earnings or losses of the affiliates and its share in the changes of the

affiliates equity, since the dates of acquisition.
X. Concentrations of credit risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company and its subsidiaries to concentrations of credit risk consist

principally of cash and cash equivalents, long-term bank deposits, marketable debentures and trade receivables.

Cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits are invested mainly in U.S. dollars with major banks in the United States
and Israel. Marketable debentures are debentures of U.S. corporations with high credit quality and with limited amount
of credit exposure to any each corporation. Accordingly, the Company's management believes that minimal credit risk

exists with respect to these investments.

Trade receivables are derived from sales to major customers located primarily in fsrael and in the U.S. The Company’s
subsidiaries perform ongoing credit evaluations of their customers and obtain letters of credit and bank guarantees
for certain receivables. An allowance for doubtful accounts is determined with respect to those amounts that were

determined to be doubtful of collection and a general allowance is provided to cover additional potential exposures.

As of the balance sheet date there are no significant off-balance-sheet concentration of credit risk such as foreign

exchange contracts, option contracts or other foreign hedging arrangements.
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NOTE 2! SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)|

Y. Recently issued accounting pronouncements

In January 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Interpretation 46, "Consolidation of Variable
Interest Entities, an interpretation of ARB No. 51" (FIN 46). In December 2003, the FASB modified FIN 46 to make
certain technical corrections and address certain implementation issues that had arisen. FIN 46 provides a new framework
for identifying variable interest entities (VIEs) and determining when a company should include the assets, liabilities,

noncontrolling interests and results of activities of a VIE in its consolidated financial statements.

In general, a VIE is a corporation, partnership, limited-liability corporation, trust or any other legal structure used to
conduct activities or hold assets that either (1) has an insufficient amount of equity to carry out its principal activities
without additional subordinated financial support, (2) has a group of equity owners that are unable to make significant
decisions about its activities, or (3) has a group of equity owners that do not have the obligations to absorb losses

or the right to receive returns generated by its operations.

FIN 46 requires a VIE to be consolidated if a party with an ownership, contractual or other financial interest in the
VIE (a variable interest holder) is obligated to absorb a majority of the risk of loss from the VIE's activities, is entitled
to receive a majority of the VIE's residual returns (if no party absorbs a majority of the VIE's losses) or both. A variable
interest holder that consolidates the VIE is called the primary beneficiary. Upon consolidation, the primary beneficiary
generally must initially record all of the VIE's assets, liabilities and noncontrolling interests at fair value and subsequently
account for the VIE as if it were consolidated based on a majority voting interest. FIN 46 also requires disclosures

about VIEs that the variable interest holder is not required to consolidate but in which it has a significant variable interest.

The Company has investments in and loans to various companies that are engaged primarily in the fields of high
technology. Some of these companies are in their early stages of development and will require substantial third party
investments until they can finance their activities without additional support from other parties. These companies are
currently primarily funded with financing from venture capital funds, other holding companies and private investors.

The investments in these companies are consolidated or accounted for by the equity method by the Company.

The Company will apply the provisions of FIN 46 as of March 31, 2004. The Company is currently evaluating the effects
of FIN 46 in respect of its investments. It is possible that some of its unconsolidated investees may be considered a
VIE in accordance with FIN 46. Accordingly, if it is determined that the Company is the primary beneficiary of a VIE,
the Company will be required to consolidate the financial statements of such a VIE with its own financial statements
as of March 31, 2004.

As of December 31, 2003, the Company's maximum exposure to loss does not exceed its investment in any of these companies.

Z. Reclassifications

Certain prior year amounts were reclassified to conform with current year financial statement presentation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |

U.S. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data

NDTE‘ 3: BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND SALE OF BUSINESSES |

A.ELBIT

On May 15, 2002, Elron completed its merger with Elbit, a high technology operational holding company, in which it
previously held 44%. As a result, each outstanding ordinary share of Elbit, other than shares held by Elron, was
exchanged for 0.45 ordinary shares of Elron and, accordingly, Elron issued 5,617,601 ordinary shares. Elron also assumed

options of Elbit held by Elbit's employees to purchase 240,525 ordinary shares of Elron with a fair value of $997.

The purchase price of the Elbit acquisition was approximately $73,914, which was calculated as follows:

Fair valué of Eiron-ordinary shares issued-- .~ $ 70,220,
Transaction and other costs 2,719
Fair value of options assumedC) L o8,
Total . . o LT $.73914

® Net of intrinsic value of $22.

Ordinary shares were valued based on the average price of Elron’s ordinary shares during the period beginning on
the day of the announcement of the exchange ratio (September 4, 2001) and ending five days thereafter. The fair

value of options assumed was determined using the Black & Scholes pricing method.

The purchase price has been allocated to the fair value of Elbit’s tangible and intangible assets acquired and liabilities

assumed, based on an analysis made by an independent valuation appraiser.

~ Curfent assets , -, ‘ Co $ 12,216
Long-term investments 65,586

" Otherlong-term assets= = &0 . L061
Property and equipment, net 6,285

‘Goodwill (not deductible:for tax.purposes) = -* *12,135:
Liabilities assumed (23,369)

- Netassetsiacquired. " = " .0 U0 873,914

* After reduction of $6,600 due to reversal of valuation allowance in respect of deferred taxes - see below.

At the acquisition date net deferred tax assets relating to loss carryforwards have been fully offset by a valuation
allowance. Subsequent to that date, Elbit recorded a tax benefit in the amount of approximately $6,600 and $7,700
in 2002 and 2003, respectively, and reduced its valuation allowanvce in respect of the abovementioned deferred tax
assets. Since the tax benefits recognized were in respect of the loss carryforwards of Elbit at the acquisition date, Eiron

recorded the entire tax benefit as a reduction to goodwill.

The goodwill recorded relates to the "Other Holdings and Corporate Operations” segment and reflects the synergies
that resulted from the combined entity, including a reduction in operational and management costs, the creation of
an enhanced platform, a more simplified and efficient organizational structure and greater resources and scope of

operations, which benefited Elron's subsidiaries and affiliated companies.
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NOTE .3: BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND SALE OF BUSINESSES (CONT.}

A.ELBIT (Cont.)

Elbit's financial statements have been consolidated in the Company’s consolidated financial statements subsequent to

the date of the merger (May {5, 2002). See Note 9 for pro forma information.
B. DEP

On May 6, 2002, Eiron completed the purchase of shares of DEP in which it previously held 33%. Pursuant to the
share purchase agreement signed on November {9, 2001, with Discount Investment Corporation Ltd. ("DIC"), which
then held approximately 42% of Elron's shares, Elron issued 2,261,843 ordinary shares to DIC in exchange for DIC's
investment (67%) in DEP, including rights to ioans in the amount of approximately $3,529 provided by DIC to RDC,
a subsidiary of DEP, in which DEP holds 48,04% of its outstanding shares (50.1% of the voting rights) and Rafael
Armament Development Authority ("Rafael”), through its subsidiary Galram Technology Industry Ltd. ("Galram®), holds
47.84%. RDC was established for the purpose of exploiting Rafael's technology in non-military markets.

DEP invests directly and indirectly (through RDC) in high technology companies, which are primarily engaged in the

fields of communications, medical devices and semiconductors.

The share purchase enhanced Elron's position in the high technology markets enabling Elron to manage existing DEP

investments independently.

The purchase price of the DEP acquisition was $29,502, of which $29,449 represents the fair market value of newly
issued Elron ordinary shares, which has been calculated using the average price of Elron's shares during a period of a
few days before and after the announcement date multiplied by the number of shares to be issued to DIC, and $53

represents transaction costs.

The purchase price has been allocated to the fair value of DEP's tangible and intangible assets acquired and liabilities

assumed, based on an analysis made by an independent valuation appraiser.

The allocation of the purchase price was as follows:

Correntasséts ™ . 1 ET $ 487
Loﬁg—term iﬁvestments 38,233
- Property.and equipment, net. . . 9
Intangible assets 2,339
" Liabilities.assumed . - .0 oo (1,556)
Total .o ST e $ _29.502

The amount of $38,233, allocated to investments in companies accounted for under the equity method, included
amounts allocated to intangible assets of these equity investments and is net of any related deferred taxes. Out of
the $38,233, the aggregate amount allocated to identifiable intangible assets of the equity investments was approximately
$16,500 and an aggregate amount of approximately $6,500 has been recorded as goodwill. The goodwili is not
deductible for tax purposes.
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. NOTE 3: BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND SALE OF BUSINESSES (CONT.)]|

B. DEP (Cont.)

Net deferred tax assets relating to operating loss carryforwards have been fully offset by a valuation allowance at the
share purchase date. In 2003 RDC recorded a tax benefit of approximately $1,200 and reduced its valuation allowance
in respect of the abovementioned deferred tax asset. The tax benefit was recorded as a reduction to goodwill included

in investments in affiliated companies.

DEP's financial statements have been consolidated in the Company's consolidated financial statements subsequent to

the date of the closing of the share purchase (May 6, 2002). See Note 9 for pro forma information.

C.GALIL

Galil develops, manufactures and markets systems and disposable kits for the performance of minimal invasive cryo-

therapy by means of freezing tissues.

1. On April 30, 2002, Elron and RDC converted notes of Galil, in which Elron then held 3.7% and in which RDC then
held 32.1% in an amount of $3,160.

During 2002 and 2003, certain existing shareholders of Galil entered into note purchase agreements with Galil for
an investment in convertible notes of Galil (the "Notes") in an aggregate amount of up to $16,000, according to which
Elron and RDC together invested in the Notes approximately $5,700 and $3,700 in 2002 and 2003, respectively.

2. On June 27, 2002, Efron purchased 10.75% of the outstanding shares of Galil from Lumenis Ltd. ("Lumenis”) in
consideration for $850. As part of the agreement, Lumenis has the right to receive a future earn-out payment, conditional
upon the occurrence of certain events on or before May 27, 2004 in accordance with the terms of the share purchase
agreement. As a result of this transaction, Elron’s direct interest in Galil increased to 15.09% and together with its
indirect share through RDC, Elron has acquired a controiling voting interest in Galit and, accordingly, Galil's financial
statements have been consolidated in the Company's consolidated financial statements subsequent to the date of the

purchase from Lumenis. See Note 9 for pro forma information.

The amount allocated to technology and the remaining technology which arose from previous acquisitions, amounted

to approximately $4,600. The estimated useful life of the technology was 9 years.

3. On July 1, 2003, Galil announced the completion of the merger of Galil's urology business and the Brachytherapy
business of Amersham plc (LSE, NYSE, OSE: AHM) ("Amersham"). According to an agreement signed on April 22,
2003, a new company, Oncura Inc. ("Oncura”), was incorporated. Oncura provides minimally invasive treatment options
for prostate cancer using brachytherapy and cryotherapy technologies. At the closing, Amersham and Galil each
contributed the assets necessary for Oncura to conduct the Cryotherapy business and the Brachytherapy business,
respectively, in the urology field and in exchange, Amersham received 78% and Galil received 22% of the outstanding
shares of Oncura. In addition, at the closing, Galil purchased 3% of Oncura from Amersham in consideration for $4,500

resulfting in Galil's owning an aggregate interest of 25% in Oncura.
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CNOTE 3:BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND SALE OF BUSINESSES (CONT.)|

C. GALIL (Cont.)

Through balance sheet date $3,000 had been paid and the balance is due in June 2004, Until the payment of the

balance, 4% of Oncura shares held by Galil, are pledged in favor of Amersham.

Galil and Amersham each entered, separately, into supply and R&D service agreements pursuant to which Galil and
Amersham shall provide Oncura with certain exclusive supply, manufacturing and R&D services, upon a cost plus basis,

according to terms and conditions stipulated in the relevant agreements.

Galil accounted for the transfer of its business in exchange for an interest in Oncura as a non-monetary exchange
which is to be recorded at fair value. The fair value of the transaction was determined based on an independent
valuation of Oncura, according to which the fair value of Oncura is approxjimateiy $150,000. As Galil retains an indirect
interest in the tangible and intangible assets transferred to Oncura, the portion of the gain relating to the interest
retained is to be deferred until realization by sale or amortization by Oncura. Accordingly, the investment in Oncura,

which is to be accounted for under the equity method, was recorded in the amount of approximately $30,000.

As a result, a gain on the transaction of approximately $21,200 was recorded in the statement of operations under "Gain
from disposat of businesses and affiliated companies and changes in holdings in affiliated companies, net”. The gain is net of
realization of goodwill, related to the "Other Holdings and Corporate Operations® segment, in the amount of approximately

$500. Elron’s share in the gain (net of minority interest and income taxes) amounted to approximately $4,400.

The investment in Oncura as of the date of the transaction included amounts allocated to goodwill of approximately
$14,200, to other intangibles of $23,800 and to deferred tax liabilities of $ 9,100.

in 2003, Galil signed a loan agreement with Oncura, according to which Galil has committed to extend ioans to Oncura
up to an aggregate principal amount of $2,000. As of December 31, 2003, Galil advanced $875 to Oncura in respect
of this agreement. The Joan bears an interest rate of Libor+0.75% per annum and is to be repaid on july 1, 2004. The

foan is included in the balance sheet under "Other receivables and prepaid expenses”.

4.1n September and December 2003, certain shareholders of Galil granted convertible loans to Galil in the amount
of $1,200 (the "First Loan") and $2,000 (the "Second Loan") respectively. Elron and RDC together advanced approximately
$ 700 and $ 1,200, in respect of the First Loan and the Second Loan, respectively.

5. On january 31, 2004, Galil and its shareholders, entered into an agreement to restructure the share capital of Galil
pursuant to which all outstanding preferred shares, notes convertible into preferred shares and the First Loan were
converted into ordinary shares and all their associated rights were cancelled. As a result of the restructure, Elron's
and RDC's respective holdings in Galil increased to 19.19% and 36.8%. Galil has an option under certain conditions to

repay the Second Loan or convert it into ordinary shares under the terms of the share capital restructure.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |

U.S. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data

NDTE 3: BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND SALE OF BUSINESSES (CONT.)|

D. ESW

On September 2, 2003, Elron's majority owned subsidiary, ESI, sold substantially all of its assets and business to Zix
Corporation ("Zix"), a publicly traded company on Nasdaq (Nasdaq: ZIXI) and a global provider of e-messaging
protection and transaction services. In consideration for the assets and business sold, Zix issued to ESI 1,709,402
unregistered shares of its Common stock, with a market value of approximately $ 6,000 and a convertible note bearing
an interest rate of 5.75% ("the Note") in the amount of $ 1,000. The Note was converted into 262,454 shares of Zix
Common stock, in the fourth quarter of 2003. As part of the transaction, Zix assumed certain liabilities of ESI in the

net amount of approximately $1,000. Following the transaction, ESI changed its name to ELRON SW, INC. ("ESW").

In determining the gain on the sale of ESI's business, Elron valued the Zix Common stock at $ 5,400 (a discount from
market value of approximately 10% due to certain restrictions on their sale). Accordingly, Elron recorded a gain on the
sale of approximately $4.100 of which $2,500 represents elimination of a liability to minority shareholders previously

recorded by Elron with respect to options granted to ESW's employees due to the expiration of the unexercised options.

The business sold by ESW represents a component of an entity as defined in SFAS No. 144 and since the criteria for
reporting discontinued operations under SFAS No. 144 is met, the results of operations of the business and the gain
on the sale have been classified as discontinued operations in the statement of operations. Comparative data have

been reclassified accordingly.

The Zix Common stock is accounted for as available for sale securities in accordance with SFAS No. |15, See Note

5(3) regarding the sale of Zix shares.
E. MEDIAGATE

1. In 2002, Elron converted loans advanced to Mediagate during 2001 and 2002 in the amount of $3,588 to 32,828,510
preferred F shares and invested approximately $2,500 through a rights offering for which Eiron received 58,562,543
preferred F shares. As a result of these transactions, Elron’s interest in Mediagate's outstanding shares increased from
29% to approximately 68% and éccordingly the accounts of Mediagate have been consolidated with those of Elron

subsequent to the date of the additional investment. See Note 9 for pro forma information.

The amount allocated to technology and the remaining technology which arose from previous acquisitions amounted
to approximately $4,400. The estimated useful life of the technology was 7 years. The excess of the purchase price
over the estimated fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired in the amount of approximately $2,500 was
recorded as goodwill, which is not deductible for tax purposes. The goodwill relates to the "Other Holdings and

Corporate Operations” segment.




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEIMENTSJ

U.S. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data

. NOTE 3: BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND SALE DF BUSINESSES (CONT.)|

E.MEDIAGATE (Cont.)

2. On December 16, 2003, Mediagate signed an agreement with Telrad Networks Ltd. ("Telrad"), for the sale of its
technology and related intellectual property assets. Telrad is an Israeli corporation providing telecommunications
solutions worldwide. The closing of the transaction occurred on January 28, 2004. According to the agreement, the
consideration for the technology is in the form of royalties, up to a maximum of $ 5,000, to be paid on future sales
through December 31, 2009, of products that are based on Mediagate's technology. The royalties range from 5% of
sales in 2004 and increase gradually up to 15% of sales in 2009.

Based on an independent appraisal, the royalties to be received approximate the carrying value of the technology sold.

Accordingly, the above transaction did not have any effect on the Company's consolidated resuits of operations.
The royalties to be received are pledged to secure bank loans of Mediagate (see Note |71).
F. ELBIT VFLASH ("VFlash™)

On September 23, 2002, VFlash, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Elbit, sold a significant portion of its assets to 24/7 Real
Media Inc. ("24/7"), a publicly traded company on Nasdaq {Nasdaq: TFSM), in exchange for 4,100,000 common shares

of 24/7. 24/7 provides marketing and technology solutions to online marketers and publishers.

Concurrently with the above sale, Elron invested through Elbit, $1,000 in consideration for 100,000 convertible preferred
shares of 24/7 which were converted in February 2003, into 4,840,271 shares.

The Company viewed the sale of Vflash’s principal assets and the purchase of the preferred shares as one transaction
and accordingly recorded a gain of approximately $2,000 in respect of the sale based on the closing price of 24/7 at
the date of the transaction. The business sold by VFlash represents a component of entity as defined in SFAS No. 144
and since the criteria for reporting discontinuing operations under SFAS No. 144 is met, VFlash's results of operations

and the above gain were classified as discontinued operations in the statement of operations.

The common shares had been accounted for as available for sale securities in accordance with SFAS 115, In 2003, all
of the 24/7 shares were soid (See Note 5(4)).

NBTE 4:.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS|

Includes mainly bank deposits in U.S. dollars, bearing weighted average interest rate of 1.08% per annum (December
31,2002 - 1.32%).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ;

U.S. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data

 NDTE 5: SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS |

Weighted Average
Interest rate December 31,
% 2003 2002
Available-for-sale securities: (1)

o Debentures o T e TR SR s 8 B9 ST -
Zix (2) 7,159 -
Other - 2,386

09,130 3,162

Certificate of deposits™=-" = i IRt 1.7 EE R

Held-to-maturity debentures (4)(5) 1,237 12

© Bank deposits (5) . ERTEes 5 25223 . - -
Trading securities 0 6
$ 37,158 $ 3,180

(1) Includes unrealized gans....:... " T L R
Iricludes: unredlized 10sses - §0 L0l e <585

(2) As of December 31, 2003 represents 854,701 shares of Zix which were received in consideration for the sale of

ESW's business (see Note 3d) and constitute approximately 3% of the outstanding share capital of Zix.

Of the 1,709,402 shares received, 1,117,155 shares (including 262,454 shares which resulted from the conversion
of the convertible note) were sold in 2003 in consideration for approximately $ 9,000, resulting in a realized gain of
approximately $4,800 ($ 3,200 net of tax). The remaining shares are subject to a lock-up agreement with Zix and may
be sold ratably on a monthly basis until September 2004.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date and through March 9, 2004, Elron sold an additional 271,812 shares of Zix in
consideration for approximately $3,200, resulting in a gain of approximately $2,300 ($1,500 net of tax), which will
be recorded in the first quarter of 2004. :

(3) In 2003, all the shares of 24/7 received in consideration for the sale of the VFash business (see Note 3f) were sold

for a total consideration of approximately $5,200, resulting in a realized gain of approximately $2,000 ($800 net of tax).

(4) As of December 31, 2003, the fair value of held-to-maturity debentures approximated their carrying value.

(5) As of December 31, 2003 the debentures and deposits are used to secure current maturities of long-term loans
taken by ESW and ETI.




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS]

U.S. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data

. NDTE 8 TRADE RECEIVABLES, NET|

December 31,

2003 2002

Open balantes s* * & il o 8037058 7,824
Unbilled receivables 1,301 1414

3 5016 2,238

*Net of allowance for doubtful accounts 3 398 845

_NOTE.7:' INVESTMENTS IN AFFILIATED COMPANIES |

. Affiliated i follows:
A iliated companies are as follows December 31,

2003 2002

% of
outstanding share capital

Note

Elbit Systems: (ESL) o _, ST 9T 199
Given Imaging 7d(6) 232 304
SR ) se T 330

NetVision - 457 457
KILT e-Leaming 7d(5) 28.6
TAMT e RERRERARE 283
3DV Systems 7d(8) 47.7
O e T VS 12 ’
Oren * 7d(7)

(A.fPul‘si'tdri"V IR

‘Chip Express: #

173
17.0:

Notal Vision .
CeHACt K R - - S
Witcom -

4507
329

ST 3300
495

. Ingeneo. .t 3 s

Semiconductor Engineering Laboratories ("SELA™)

* Restated - See Note 7(d)(7)
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U.S. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data

NOTE 7: INVESTMENTS IN AFFILIATED COMPANIES (CONT.)|

B. Composition of investments: (1)(2) D ber 31
ecember 31,

2003 2002

As of December 31, 2003

ESL oo A T e e § 87,672 $ 82715
Given Imaging 23,665 32,779
ORcura = o e T e 9,674 _ .
Others 15,808 *16,710

o _ o » _ $ 156,819 $ 132,204
(,');In'clq"d:ésild'éhéj and,convertible lodns: et L T L g 3998 g 71849

2) Difference between the carrying amounts of investments and the Company's
share in the net equity of affiliates, attributed to technology, goodwill and

other intangible assets $ 45311 $ 21,275

*Restated - See Note 7(d)(7)

C. Fair market value of marketable securities: )
December 31,

2003 2002

Stock Exchange U.S. dollars in millions
ESL. .. Tel-Avivand Nasdag: - $143:0. 0 g6

Given Imaging Nasdaq $107 $71

" D.Additional information
|.ESL

In 2001 and 2002 Elron sold 380,000 shares of ESL, each year, for approximately $6.600 and $ 5,200, respectively,
resulting in a gain of approximately $3,000 and $1,800, respectively. Following the sales and exercise of options by
employees of ESL, Elron's share in ESL decreased to 19.7%. Elron continues to account for ESL under the equity
method due to a shareholders' agreement with the primary shareholder of ESL, the Federmann Group. The shareholders’
agreement includes joint voting arrangements with respect to the nomination of an equal number of directors to ESL's
board of directors and limitation on the transfer of shares in ESL, including first refusal rights and tag along rights.

2.AMT

In August 2002, Elron completed an investment of approximately $5,000 in convertible notes of AM.T Advanced Metal
Technologies Ltd. ("AMT"). AMT, an Israeli private company, develops, markets and licenses technologies, through its
group companies, for amorphous and nano-crystalline advanced materials, for a wide range of commercial applications.
Currently, AMT is focusing on two of its group companies, namely A.H.T. Advanced Heating Technologies Ltd., which
uses amorphous metals for heating products, and A.C.S. Advanced Coding Systems Ltd., which develops, markets and
sells products using amorphous metals for brand protection against counterfeiting and diversion and anti-shoplifting
electronic article surveillance. ‘
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U.S. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data

U NDOTE 7: INVESTMENTS IN AFFILIATED COMPANIES (CONT.)]

D. Additional information (Cont.)
2.AMT (Cont.)

The investment was part of an aggregate investment in AMT of approximately $8,700 of which the existing shareholders
of AMT invested approximately $3,700. The notes are convertible into preferred shares of AMT or into shares held
by AMT in certain of its subsidiaries. Elron is entitled to the rights attached to the convertible notes on an "as converted”
basis as a shareholder of AMT and in addition, has special voting rights in certain specified circumstances. As a result

Elron holds approximately 28% of AMT on a diluted basis (excluding warrants) and "as converted basis”.

In addition, Elron and the other investors in AMT were issued warrants to purchase preferred shares of AMT for a
total amount of up to approximately $19,140, which may be exercised over various periods up to a maximum of 48

months from one year following the closing.

In December 2002 and in 2003, Elron granted convertible foans to AMT in the aggregate amount of approximately
$1,500. The loans bear interest at 8% and shall be converted, under certain conditions, into convertible notes of AMT

upon the same terms and conditions as Elron’s original investment.
3. CHIP EXPRESS

a. In 2002, Chip Express Corporation ("Chip Express™), in which Elron held approximately a 35% interest, issued,
approximately 22,317,400 redeemable preferred shares in consideration for $16,520 in a private placement. Elron
purchased approximately 6,984,000 redeemable preferred shares in consideration for approximately $5,000, of which
approximately $500 was paid by a conversion of a convertible note. As a result, Elron's interest in Chip Express

decreased to approximately 33%.

b. Subsequent to balance sheet date, on March 4, 2004, Chip Express issued approximately 7,594,936,7 10 redeemable
preferred shares in consideration for $12,000, in a private placement. Eiron purchased approximately |,632,564,563
redeemable preferred shares in consideration for approximately $2,600. As a result, Elron's interest in Chip Express

decreased to approximately 26%.
4. WAVION

During 2001 and 2002, Eiron invested $1,000 and $500, respectively, in Wavion Inc. ("Wavion") in which Elron then

held appFoximately 45%, by way of convertible loans.

In 2003, Elron invested $3,000 in Wavion in consideration for Series B preferred shares, out of an aggregate amount
of $12,500 raised by Wavion in a private placement from Elron and new investors. In addition to this investment, Elron
converted the above mentioned loans into Series Al preferred shares. As a result, Elron's ownership interest in Wavion

decreased to approximately 38%.
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" NOTE 7: INVESTMENTS IN AFFILIATED COMPANIES (CONT.)|

D. Additional information (Cont.)

5.K.I.T. eLEARNING B.V.

In July 2003 Elron invested $2,000 in K.I.T. eLearning BV (*K.L.T. eLearning”, formerly Kidum Holding BV}, in consideration
for Series B-2 preferred shares, as part of an aggregate investment of $4,000, the balance of which was invested by
DIC. K1.T. eLearning was previously the operating subsidiary of KIT in which Elron held approximately 29%. In addition
to this investment, Eiron's holdings in KIT and a loan in the amount of $1,500 (which was granted during 2001 and
2002) were converted into shares of KL T. eLearning. The loan was converted to Series B-| preferred shares. The
investment in K1.T. eLearning, which was received in consideration for the shares of KIT, was recorded at the carrying

value of Elron's previous investment in KIT. Following the transaction and the ioan conversion, Elron holds approximately

45% of K.L.T. eLearning's outstanding shares.

6. GIVEN IMAGING LTD.

a. During 2002, Eiron and RDC sold 98,666 shares and 500,000 shares, respectively, of Given imaging Ltd. ("Given")
in consideration for approximately $1,100 and $5,900, respectively. In addition, a former senior executive of RDC
exercised a call option granted to him in 1999, and purchased from RDC 172,800 shares of Given at an exercise price

of $0.17 per share (see also Note 14d). As a result of the above transactions, a gain of approximately $5,300 was
recorded in 2002.

In 2003, RDC sold 753,600 shares of Given for a total consideration of approximately $7,800, resulting in a gain of
approximately $4,400 ($70 net of tax and minority interest).

As a result of these transactions, Elron's consclidated interest in Given decreased to approximately 23%.

b. On May 12, 2003, a Share Purchase Agreement was signed between RDC, Elron and Rafael, according to which, RDC
sold two million unregistered shares of Given to Elron and Rafael {one million each) for a total consideration of $12,184.
RDC used $5,000 of the proceeds to repay shareholders’ loans to Rafael and Elron. This transaction did not have any

effect on the Company's consolidated results of operations and the Company's consolidated interest in Given.

c. RDC's board of directors decided that RDC would purchase 4.1% of its shares held by former senior employees
in consideration for 235,000 shares of Given held by RDC. The purchase is subject to the approval of the court.

7. OREN SEMICONDUCTOR INC. ("OREN")

During 2002, Elron, among other existing shareholders of Oren, invested approximately $2,500 out of $6,900 in Oren

by way of long-term convertible loans.

In July 2003, Elron invested $3,000 in Oren, as part of an aggregate investment of $8,000 from existing shareholders
and from Zoran Corporation (Nasdag: ZRAN). v
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NOTE 7: INVESTMENTS IN AFFILIATED COMPANIES (CONT.)|

D. Additional information (Cont.)

7. OREN SEMICONDUCTOR INC. ("OREN") (Cont.)

In addition to this investment, Elron and other existing shareholders converted all the loans previously granted to Oren,
in the amount of approximately $8,400, of which Eiron’s part was approximately $4,400. Following the investment
and the loan conversion, Elron's interest in Oren increased from 7% to approximately 41%.

As a result of this transaction, Elron is able to exercise significant influence in Oren. in accordance with APB 18, "The
Equity Method of Accounting for Investments in Common Stock”, Elron's interest in Oren, which was previously
accounted for by Elron at cost, is accounted for retroactively under the equity method of accounting ("step-by-step
acquisition™). Implementing step-by-step acquisition resulted in a restatement of Elron’s financial statements for all prior

periods in which Elron’s investments in Oren were recorded at cost.

Following are the effects of the restatement:

(1) Consolidated balance sheet

“Investments in. affiliatéd companies -~ L
Investments in other companies and
long-term receivables
.. Accumulated déﬁ\c‘i“t‘.}!

Total shareholders’ equity

(2) Consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss

“Equity. in losses:6f affiliated companies: i
Net loss
Total. comprehénsive doss. -
Basic net loss per share

Diluted net 1oss: per share -

Equity in losses of affiliated compariies
Net loss

Total comprehersive loss

Basic net loss per share

Diluted net loss per share

December 31,2002
As i Effect of As
reported | restatement restated
A8 I3TR56T § 948 '8 1132204
97,158 (8,024) 89,134
S(18,066) .. L (7.076): . (25.142) .
266,517 (7.076) 259,441
Year ended December 31,2002
As Effect of As
reported restatement restated
SIS S (2278) 0§ (4089),
(39.301) (2,278) (41,579)
SR T R
(1.50) (0.08) (1.58)
LTS 008 L (58)
Year ended December 31,2001
As Effect of As
reported restatement restated

Q72 I(I54s) 8 (281787).
(50814) (1.545) (52.359)
D@0 (1s4s) C T (46.587)
(2:40) 007) (2.47)

U RAD T (007) - (248)
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NOTE. 7: INVESTMENTS IN AFFILIATED COMPANIES (CONT.)|

E. Summarized information

Summarized combined financial information is as follows:

ESL ‘ Given Chip }

.Express

AMT ! Others

December 31,2003:

Balance sheet mformataon

- Current assets 7. LR$BTTTIS 942625 . § 8441 $ 1349 § 55725

Non-current assets 446,021 12,944 2753 2,175 49941
Totalassets - 0T LR I3 736 L 0555697 10,894 3524 105666
Current Iwabllmes 378017 7655 - 3810 4822 70713

_ Non-current fiabifities 5 . -5 e 88,525 L 1,192 557 1,264 31936.
Mmonty interest 4115 1,924 - 472 -
Red&emable preferredistock = .7 ¥ L TR L T 4180000 e T 189

Shareholders’ equity (def'uency) co 452079 44798 (35273) (13,034) 8273

Year Ended December 31, 2003:

Statement of operanns |nformat|on:

Revenues AL e $0 8979804 1840359 $ 13746 % 1359 3 89490
Gross profit 224419 26,988 2,664 527y 23307
Net income (loss) from contmumg
. operations and net income (lossy, T 45945 L (9609) (7813) (3798) - (17660)
December 31,2002 ESL ( Given f Others
Balance sheet information ‘
“Curfentassets . il we il e 566800 0§ 56059 $ 47759
Non-current assets 433, 350 12,669 24,859
" Total-assets. S 000450 68,728 72618
Current liabilities 360,780 12,087 56,151
~ Nonscurrent fabilities: STy 3992k g8 T 26324
) Mlnor'rty interest - an7 2,182 . 86
% ‘Redéemablé preferred st S TN T 144384
Shareholders' equity (defaency) 411361 53577 (54,327)

Year ended December 31, 2002:

Statement of operatlor\s |m'or'mat|on

"Reverilies TR S 80 8274567 1§ 289040 § 88843
Gross profit ' 222,143 16997 17,659
Net income (loss) from contmumg operatlons and

. ¢netincome (loss) S HSTIB T (18310) - (34458)
’ ESL f Eibit t Netvision} Others ‘
\ o Year ended December 31,2001:

Statement of operatrons mfomnatron
'Revenues EERE E

$.764501.  $1000  .$ 58909 $ 46246

Gross profit ... 210544 499 5450 15657
- Netincome (loss) from continting operdtions™ -+ " " 40796, * T (31,539) - (3601)7 T (87:525)
Net Income (loss) 40,796 (30,588) . (3601)  (87525)
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 NOTE, 7: INVESTMENTS IN AFFILIATED COMPANIES (GaNT.)|

F. Goodwill and intangible assets allocated to investments

The annual estimated amortization expense relating to intangible assets allocated to investments accounted for under
the equity method, which will be included in the line item "Equity in losses of affiliated companies” in the statement

of operations, for each of the five years in the period ending December 31, 2008 is approximately as follows:

Total amortization

L2004 ¢ “$ 2,200
2005 - $ 2,100
20067700 8 20400
2007 - $ 2300
2008 - o $ 2300

The remaining weighted average amortization period of the intangible assets is approximately 13 years.

At the balance sheet date, the Company has unamortized goodwill in the amount of $18,200 allocated to investments
accounted for under the equity method.

G. Impairment

As a result of an other-than-temporary decline in value of certain investments, the company recorded impairment
losses with respect to affiliated companies of $500, $2,400 and $3,300, in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Such
impairment losses are included as part of the Company's equity in Josses of affiliated companies.

NOTE 8: INVESTMENTS IN OTHER COMPANIES

AND LONG-TERM REDEIVABLES!

December 31!

2003 %2002 J

Marketable securities presented as available-for-sale securities: (1)
Partiier (2)- .- i D T T 124315 $ 78578
Other 556 -
124871~ - 78578
*Partnerships ¢ - 2,447 -
~Qther investments and long-termreceivables 3) " T L BT 702eT L *8109”
10,556
5 89,134
(). “Includes unrealized gains - -t U 78607 S 14,176,

* Restated - See Note 7(d)(7)
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NOTE 8: INVESTMENTS IN OTHER COMPANIES
.o " AND LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES (CONT.) |

(2) PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD. ("Partner”)

As of December 31, 2003 Elbit holds 15,856,551 shares of Partner (December 31, 2002, 22,134,777 shares). In
2003, Elbit sold 6,278,226 shares of Partner, in which it previously held 12.2%, in consideration for approximately
$29.300. As a result, Elron recorded a realized gain of approximately $11,000 ($7.100 net of tax). As of December
31, 2003, Elbit holds approximately 8.7% of the outstanding shares of Partner.

See Note |17(d) regarding the pledging of Partner shares.

(3) During 2003, Elron recorded an impairment loss of approximately $3,700 in respect of certain investments
and receivables, mainly receivables relating to the sale of Textology (previously consolidated subsidiary) and
Cellenium (In 2002 - $1,000).

NOTE ‘9 SUPPLEMENTAL PRO FORMA INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) |

The pro forma information presents the results of operations of Elron after giving effect to the merger with Elbit,
the share purchase of DEP and the acquisition of a controlling interest in Galil and Mediagate as if they had been
in effect at the beginning of each of the reported periods, and includes the effect of amortization of intangible

assets from these dates.

The following pro forma information is based upon the historical financial statements (after restatement, as

discussed in Note 7(d)(7) and after reclassification of discontinued operations) of Eiron, Elbit, DEP, Galil and

;
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Mediagate. The pro forma data does not incorporate, nor does it assume, any benefits from cost savings or

synergies of the combined companies.

The pro forma data is presented for comparative purposes only and is not necessarily indicative of the operating
results that would have occurred had the merger, the share purchase or the acquisition of a controlling interest
in Galil and Mediagate been consummated at the dates indicated, nor are they necessarily indicative of future

operating results or financial condition.
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NOTES TD THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS]

U.S. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data

" NOTE 9 SUPPLEMENTAL PRO FORMA INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) (CONT.) |

Pro forma combined results of operations Year ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
As reported Proforma Proforma !
———t

CNetrevehuss . S leS#7 s 17608 5 27166
Net loss from equity investments (8.698) *(16,308) *(26971)
Gain from disposal of businesses and affiliated

companies and changes in holdings in

. -affiiated companies. pet - . LTS T eETd - 3612
Other expenses, net 14,665 1,801 (18,636)
Total income’(expenses) o » 48268 #9775 *(14829)
Costs and expenses 37,497 52,973 71,056

-+ -Income (1oss), before tax benefit (taxes on'ihcome). - $ SIOTTI: 2 $HA3(I98) L . § *(85,:885)
Loss from continuing operations $ (6570) $ *(34,005) $ *(69,708)

“Netloss L e S A D% 7205yl S HGA649) T $XO1T713)
Basic net loss from continuing operations per share $ (0249) $  *.17) $  *240)
- Diluted net loss from continuing operations per share DT e e e e
Basic net loss per share . 3 (0.24) $  *A7 $  *Q41)
- Dilutednet loss per share o S $(025). 0 %188 . . §.*(3lS)
$ (025 $ *(1.88) $  *3.16)
Weighted average number of shares used in

computation of basic and diluted net loss per

share (thousands) 29,194 29,131 29,070

*Restated - see Note 7 (d)(7).

Pro forma resuits of operations for the year ended December 3, 2001, include amortization of goodwill in the amount of

approximately $2,300. Goodwill is no longer being amortized in accordance with SFAS No. 142, effective as of January |, 2002.

' NOTE: 10! LONG-TERM DEBENTURES AND BANK DEPDSITS |

As of December 31, 2003 the balance included a $700 debenture, bearing an interest rate of 5.3% per annum with a

maturity date in 2006, The fair value of the debenture as of December 31, 2003 approximated its carrying value.

As of December 31, 2002 thé balance included $5300 debentures and $23,600 deposits which were classified as long-
term assets since they were used to secure long-term loans taken by ETl and ESW (See Note 17(c)). As of December
31, 2003 the abovementioned loans were classified as current liabilities and accordingly these debentures and deposits

were presented as short-term investments. (See also Note 5).
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U.S. dolfars in thousands, except share and per share data

NOTE 1.1¢ PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET |
Year ended December 31,

2003 2002

' LandandBulldmg S o $ 10,177 - '-:$'7‘."'|0;292_
Leasehold improvements 2,279 2,527
Computers, fumiture andmachinery © 200 son
Motor vehicles 691 ) 989

15,187 22,840
Less:: accumulated depreciation = 7 " T 6870 11268
Property and equipment, net $ 8317 $ 11576

Depreciation expense amounted to approximately $1,590, $2,360 and $2,628 for the years ended December 31, 2003,
2002 and 2001, respectively.

NBTE 12:° GO00DWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS |
BT December 31

Period of 2003 2002
amortization

years
Cost:
Technology.and otherintangible assets (1)~ . = . 25-12 - §.04140 1§ 25051
Goodwill (2) 14,698 24,809
. 28,838 49,860
Accumulated amortization: )
- Technoldgy and-other intangible-assets (1), - =~ - 7 4172 - 6474 ¢
Goodwill (2) 2,679 3,271
6,851 9,745

$7 21987 T m0 g 40,15

noftized com'

{1} During 2002 technology and other intangible assets increased by $7,223 as a result of the acquisition of a controlling
interest in Galil and Mediagate (see Note 3). During 2003, technology and other intangible assets were realized as a
- result of the sale of the urology business of Galil and the business of ESW. (See Note 3¢ and 3d, respectively).

(2) The annual estimated amortization expense relating to Elron's intangible assets, other than goodwill existing as of

December 31, 2003, for each of the five years in the period ending December 31, 2008 is approximately as follows:

Total amortization

H2004. s
2005 - $ 1,000
2006 - $0,400°
2007 - $ 1,800

b 2008 BRI S ::_11;6“00
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U.S. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data

“NOTE 12: GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CoNT.) |

(3) The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the year ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 are as follows:

- Balanice'as of January 152002 -
Goodwill écqui}éd during the yéar
(net of subsequent adjustments)
. ‘Goodwill relating to busiriesses sold" -
‘Balance as of December 31, 2002

¢ Goodwill relating to businesses sold. .
Adjustment of goodwill due to reversal of
valuation allowance in respect to deferred
tax assets — see Note 3(a) and 3(b)
Balance-as of December 31,2003

Internet System Other Holdings and
products and projects | Corporate operations Total J
% 1,085 % 7748 3 - % 8833
- - 15,062 15,062
R s @STY e e S e 5(200) 5 (2,357).
$ 1,085 $ 5.591 $ 14,862 $ 21,538
(1085) - - - L (781) 0 (1866).
- - (7.653) (7,653)
$ - g 5591 % 6428 7512019

(4) Until December 31, 2001, goodwill was amortized over a period of 7-10 years.

(5) The following transitional information is presented to reflect net loss and loss per share for the year ended

December 31, 2001 adjusted to exclude amortization of goodwilk:

“Reported netloss
Goodwill amortization

:"Adjuétéd het loss

Loss per share:
- “Repaiied basiciloss per share -+ -
Goodwill amortization
G B loss e shar BT
Reported diluted loss per share

. Goodwill amartizations - 47w s

Adjusted diluted loss per share
* Restated - see Note 7 (d)(7)

Year ended
December 31,2001

" *52359

1,565

$ . *247.

0.07

oy . $¥.v - *240

$ *2.48

Lo 007

$ *241

NOTE 13: SHORT-TERM LOANS FROM BANKS AND DTHERS |

includes primarily loans from banks in U.S. dollars, bearing interest of Libor plus a weighted average of 1.63% (In 2002

Libor plus a weighted average of 2.3%).

As of December 31, 2003, the amount includes a loan of approximately $900 from the minority shareholders of a
subsidiary. The loan bears interest at a rate of Libor plus 2%.

The Libor rate as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 is }.16% and 1.4%, respectively).
[ Y

For liens - see Note 17(c).
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U.S. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data

' NOTE 14: DTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED EXPENSES |

December 31

2003 2002

" Payroll and related expenses’ SR $ 2752 %, 3462
Provision for i income taxes 521 1,247
 Accried ‘expenses’ Ll TR L ’ ' 1364 U815
Accrued pro;ects expenses 1,323 1451
Deferred revéntiest, = oo i fut gl e L S 2914
Empioyees caII optuons (2) : 2,146 1,189

Others: " | 0 U e Ll S BRI _ 5514 . L3438
- $.. 136200 §. 16516

(1) Inciudes provision:for-vacationpay..o: o v . % .. 876 $... .1458.

(2) EMPLOYEE CALL OPTIONS

a. As part of the retirement benefit approved by the Company's shareholders in December 1999, a former Chairman
of the Board of Directors and President and CEQ received an option to purchase from the Company 2% of its holdings
in ESW for $0.50 per share. The option was immediately exercisable and will expire on December 2004. The option
is accounted for under the provisions of APB 25. No compensation expense was recorded since at the grant date the
exercise price equaled the fair value of ESW's ordinary shares. Following the transfer of assets and liabilities of the
systems and projects activities from ESW to ETI in 2000, this option provides, upon exercise, an equal number of

shares of common stock of ESW and ETI, for no additional consideration.

b. In March 200!, the Shareholders of the Company approved the grant of options to its Chairman of the Board to
acquire up to 1.5% of any investments made by the Company after January |, 200! and an option to acquire up to
0.75% of any investments in private companies held by Elron prior to January 1, 2001 on the same terms and prices
paid by Elron. These investments of Elron may be direct or indirect (through DEP). The option shall be exercisable
for a period of three years from the later of January {, 2000 or the date of Elron’s last investment in each of the private

companies. The options granted are recorded at their fair value.

c. During 2001, the Board of directors approved the grant of options to certain officers of the Company to acquire
between 1% to 2% of Elron's investments'in certain private companies. The options are exercisable at the weighted
average price of investments of Elron. The options vest ratably over a three year period and are exercisable for an

additional three years. The options granted were recorded at fair value.

d. In 1999, RDC granted two former senior employees with call options to purchase up to 5% of the investments held
by RDC at that date at an exercise price as determined in the call option agreement. During 2002, a former senior
employee of RDC exercised a call option with respect to 172,800 shares of Given at an exercise price of $0.17 per

share.

e. In 2000, RDC granted a senior employee call options to purchase 0.75% of any investments made by RDC after
July 2000. The option shall be exercisable for a period of four years.
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U.S. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data

. NOTE.14: OTHER PAYABLES AND AGCRUED EXPENSES (CONT.) |
(2) EMPLOYEE CALL OPTIONS (Cont.)

f. The fair value of each option granted (as described in paragraphs b - e above) is estimated using the Black & Scholes
option pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002
and 2001, respectively: (1) expected life of the option of 3.89, 4.97 and 6.97, respectively; (2) dividend yield of 0%
for all periods; (3) expected volatility of the options of 0% to 65%, 0% to 92% and 0% to 55%, respectively,; (4) risk-
free interest rate of 1%, 1.5% and 2.45% , respectively.

In respect of the aforementioned call options, compensation expense (income) amounted to $957, ($780) and $ 352
for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

' NOTE 15! LONG-TERM LOANS FROM BANKS AND OTHERS|
A.COMPOSITION December 31
!
2003 | 2002
I
‘Long:termyloans frombanks (1Y - 17§10 059,079 $ 0 61,0207
Long-term loans from others (2) 2,163 6,006
Less-current maturities (1Y = ..7°_, {(44,021) - (17.637%):

$ 17,221 3 49,389

(1) Mainly bank loans of ESW and ETI in U.S. dollars, bearing an annual interest rate of Libor plus a weighted average
of 1.23% (in 2002 - Libor plus a weighted average of 0.85%) (the Libor rate as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 was
1.16% and |.4%, respectively).

As of December 31, 2003, the balance includes also a loan of Mediagate in the amount of approximately $2,600 bearing
an annual interest rate of the Wholesale Interest Rate plus 1% which is determined by the bank (the Wholesale Interest
Rate as of December 31, 2003 was approximately 2.2%). The loan will be repaid from future royalties to be received
by Mediagate from Telrad (see Note 3(e)).

AR R R

Ay

(2) As of December 31, 2003 and 2002 an amount of $2,163 and $6,006, respectively, represents loans from Galram
to RDC which are denominated in New lsraeli Shekel ("NIS" and of which an amount of $2,163 and $3,267, respectively,
does not bear interest or linkage. The amount of $2,163 is included in current maturities of long term loans. As of
December 31, 2002, an amount of $2,739 is linked to the Israeli Consumer Price Index ("CPI").

B. The maturities of long-term loans for years subsequent to the balance sheet date are as follows:
‘First year (clreft matufities) . - 44021
Second year 14,642

No specified maturity date (*) 2,566
: 3 61,242

(*) With respect to Mediagate's loan.

C. Collateral - see note 7.
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NOTE: 16: INCOME TAXES |

A. Measurement of taxable income under the Income Tax (Inflationary Adjustments) Law, 1985:

Results for tax purposes are measured and reflected in real terms in accordance with the change in the Israeli CPI.
As explained in note 2B, the consolidated financial statements are presented in U.S. dollars. The differences between
the change in the Israeli CPl and in the NIS/U.S. dollar exchange rate causes a difference between taxable income or
loss and the income or loss before taxes reflected in the consolidated financial statements. In accordance with paragraph
9(f) of SFAS No. 109, the Company has not provided deferred income taxes on this difference between the reporting
currency and the tax bases of assets and liabilities.

B. Tax benefits under Israel's Law for the Encouragement of Industry (Taxation), 1969:

Certain subsidiaries in Israel are classified as an "industrial companies®, as defined by the law for the Encouragement
of industry (Taxes), 1969, and as such, are entitled to certain tax benefits, mainly accelerated depreciation and the
right to claim public issuance expenses and amortization of costs relating to intangible assets and patents as deductible

expenses for tax purposes.

C. Taxes on income (tax benefit) are comprised as follows:

Year ended December 31,

2003 2002 200! }

. Curredt taxes- = .- 942307 e 99 L § e 396,
Taxes in respect of prior years (812)
- Deferred incometaxes tax (b L 2570).

$ 6834 $ (2.862) $ (2.984)
‘Domestic, ..~ T LN$(2862). . 05 (2.984)
" Foreign.. - - o

]

o




NOTES TO THE CONSDOLIDATED FINANCGIAL .‘E‘:TATEMENT.‘E‘:I

U.S. dolars in thousands, except share and per share data

'NOTE-16: INCOME TAXES (CONT.)|

D. Deferred income taxes:

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Significant components of

the Company's deferred tax liabilities and assets are as follows:

As of December 31,2003

Deferred tax assets:

Prov:sron for doubtfu\ accounts vacatnon
“-and others ;

Accrued severance pay net
< Trading.marketable séciirities:
Investments in affiliated and other
companies, net
Property:and equipment and other assets
Tax losses carryforward
Other " o

Deferred tax liabilities:
Avajlible-for-sale marketable securities -

Valuation allowance (I;)' -

As of December 31,2002
Deferred tax assets:
‘ Prowsnon for doubtful accounts
“vdcation and others

Accrued severance pay net
" Trading securities- R
Investments in affi luated compames and other
companies, net
- Préperty and -equipmiént and-'other-assets
Tax losses carryforward
COther: . :

Deferred tax Habilities:

+iAvailable-for: sale marketable'securities v

* Valuation allowapce - "« 5

* Restated - see Note 7 (d)(7).

Deferred Tax Asset Deferred Tax_Liability
Non current Current] Curreltl Non current Total !
$ - 309 T - % 0 309
216 - - - 216
i9 R b
82,607 - - - 82,607
5218 - = (1,509) 3709
63,949 - - 5721 69,670
- 729 L - 729
$ 151,990 1,057 -9 4212 $ 157,259
(1,450) - - S0 (44.896) ¢ (46.346)
150,540 1,057 - (40,684) 110,913
(148:669) - (1.057) L (149726)
$ 1,871 - - § (40684) % (38813)
- L4e9 o UTELT s AesT
229 - - - 229
- 23 X}
61,410 - .- - 61,410
58637 . (3.245) . . 2618
65911 - - 7.855 73 766 _
$ 133413 1,004

- 3 4610 $ 139027

§1260) (28,06

133413 liog - e 650) 110,961
C(I30423) 98y Tt e (131620
$ 2,990 - -3 (23650) 3 (20.660)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |

U.S. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data

NOTE 16: INCOME TAXES (CONT.)|

(1) As of December 31, 2003, valuation allowance for deferred tax assets, for which their reversal will be allocated

to reduce goodwill or other non-current intangible assets, amounts to approximately $18,300.

Regarding the deferred taxes in respect of losses in Elbit and DEP incurred prior to the acquisition date - see Note
3(a) and 3(b).

E. A reconciliation between the theoretical tax expense, assuming all income is taxed at the statutory tax rate applicable

to income of the Company and the actual tax expense as reported in the statement of income, is as follows:

Year ended December 31,

2003 ‘ 2002 2001
Income (loss) before taxes as reported in
the consolidated statements of operations,. = .~ - ; L% U077y $ *(35941) $ *(45392)
Statutorydakieate ~ 0 TII Lt Tl 0 36% T 36%0
Thedrefic_al_,t‘éx'-“e%pe‘nse'(income');v D IR 3878 . $5%(12,939) -$f¥j(ﬁl’6‘,3'4fl=)‘-\
Equity in losses of affiliated companies 3,134 *8,708 *10,363
Tax exempt.and reduced tax-rate® . « - R (36y . - (637) Eo -
Non-deductible expenses 1,586 (3.242) (1,198)
Differences-arising from-the basis of = .. =~ T o P
measurement for tax purposes 2,233 (3.393) (3,038)
Deferred taxes on losses for which valuation: ™ = 0 s R LT
allowance was provided 3,124 8,522 8,042
Reversal of valuation allowance™ - 1" S T2y I e
Taxes in respect of previous years 182 i19 (812)
Actual tax expenses (benefitsy . S $.70 6834 0§ (2862 T (2,984)
‘Effective tax rate o S 634% . (79% (6.6)%

* Restated - see Note 7 (d)(7)

f. As of December 31, 2003 the Company's subsidiaries in the U.S. have estimated aggregate available carryforward
tax losses of approximately $80,000 to offset against future taxable profits, which expire between 2004 and 2022. A

valuation allowance for the entire balance was recorded due to the uncertainty of the tax asset's future realization.

As of December 31, 2003 the Company and its Israeli subsidiaries had tax loss carryforwards of approximately $77,000.

Carryforward tax losses in Israel may be carryforward indefinitely and may be set against future taxable income.

B ATt Vi s EAI A
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U.S. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data

_ NOTE 16: INCOME TAXES (CONT.)|

G. Loss before taxes on income is comprised as follows:
Year ended December 31,

2003 t 2002 2001
Domestic” 0§, 20670 $ X121 1 8 #(30,088)
Foreign (9,900) (24,730) {15,306)

$ 10771 $ (35941 $ (453%94)
* Restated - see Note 7 {(d)(7).

' NOTE 1°7: CONTINGENT LIABILITIES, PLEDGES AND COMMITMENTS |

A. The Company and its subsidiaries have operating lease agreements in respect of their premises for periods ending
through 2007. Rent expense amounted to approximately $558, $1,675 and $2,416 for the years ended December 31,
2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The future minimum rental payments under these agreements in the years following

the balance sheet date are as follows:

Firstyear =70 - § 482
Second year 314
Thirdiyear o e S
Fourth year 28
$ 939

B. Certain of the Company’s subsidiaries are required to pay royalties to the Office of the Chief Scientist of the Israeli
Ministry of Industry and Trade and other institutions at the rate of 3%-5% of revenues derived from research and
development projects in which the Government of Israel or the other institutions participated in financing up to an
amount equal to 100% of the amount received by each company and in certain cases plus interest of Libor. As of

December 31, 2003, the aggregate contingent obligation royalty amounted to approximately $1,600.

C. Elron provided guarantees to banks of up to approximately $76,100 to secure bank loans made available to ETI
and ESW, of which approximately $67,500 have been utilized as of December 31, 2003 as bank loans and $300 as
customer guarantees. Of the $76,IOO guaranteed, approximately $33,500 is to be collateralized by Elron's pledge of
its investments in debentures, marketable securities and deposits. As of December 31, 2003, approximately $27,200
has been pledged.

Elron also provided letters of comfort in connection with credit lines granted to ET! by certain banks, pursuant to
which Elron undertook not to dilute its holdings in ETI below a certain percentage. The Company also agreed to
subordinate any amounts owed to it by ETI, other than interest on outstanding loans and payments in the ordinary

course of business.

D. As of December 31, 2003 all shares of Partner held by Elbit are pledged to the banks providing financing to Partner,

pro rata to the other original shareholders of Partner.
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NOTE 17: CONTINGENT LIABILITIES, PLEDGES AND COMMITMENTS (CONT.)

E. The Company has provided letters of comfort in connection with credit lines granted to Netvision by banks. The
aggregate amount borrowed under the credit lines at December 31, 2003, amounted to approximately $21,300. The
comfort letters were jointly provided with the other major shareholder of Netvision, pursuant to which the Company

and the other shareholder undertook not to dilute their holdings in Netvision below a certain percentage.

F. M.ediagate's bank foan in the amount of approximately $ 2,600 has been secured by a first ranking pledge over the

future royalties to be received from Telrad (See Note 3(e)).
G. Legal proceedings:

I. During September 1999, the Company received copies of two claims and a request to approve such claims as a
class action on behalf of public shareholders of Elscint (formerly an affiliated company) against the Company and cthers.
The allegation raised by the claimants refated to the decision regarding the sale of Elscint’s substantial assets. The
claim has been stayed pursuant to an arrangement reached by the parties pending the outcome of the appeal in the
claim described in paragraph 2 below. The arrangement provides that if the appeal as described in paragraph 2 below
is accepted, then the proceedings to recognize the lawsuit as a class action will proceed. Otherwise, the application

to recognize the claim as a class action suit will be dismissed,

2. On November 2, 1999, the Company received a copy of a claim, and a request to approve such a claim, as a class
action on behalf of some institutional investors and others and those who held shares in Elscint on September 6, 1999.
The allegations raised against the Company and certain of its officers including former officers, among others, relate
to the period prior to the sale of the Company's holdings in Elbit Medical Imaging ("EMI") (the parent com.pany of
Elscint and formerly an affiliated company). The claimants seek a court order pursuant to which EMI would be compelled
to execute the alleged buy-out of Elscint’s share at $14 per share or other remedies. On August 17, 2000, the Haifa
District court dismissed the application to recognize the claim as a class action. Some of the claimants applied for and
have been granted permission to appeal to the Supreme Court in Israel, which appeal is currently pending. In addition,

in February 2001, the claimants submitted a new claim similar to the previous one but not as a class action.

The Company denies all the allegations set forth in the above claims, and based on legal advice received, management
is of the opinion that the Company has good defense arguments which, if accepted, will cause dismissal of the above

allegations.

3. In July 2003, ESW terminated the lease of its premises in the U.S. due to defects in the premises and the lessor's failure
to repair the defects. The lessor rejected the termination of the lease and is seeking to enforce the lease and to claim
all amounts due under the lease from ESW and Elron, as guarantor of the lease. The balance of the rental under the lease
amounts to approximately $2,000. ESW is counterclaiming damages caused by the lessor. The Company's management
is of the opinion that ESW has good defense arguments which, if accepted, will cause dismissal of the above allegations

and accordingly, the above claim will not have a significant effect on the Company's resuits of operations.
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NDOTE 18! SHAREHDLDERS’ EQUITY |

A. Share capital

I. An ordinary share confers upon its holder voting rights, the right to receive dividends and the right to share in

excess assets upon liquidation of the Company.

2. On May 15, 2002 under the merger with Elbit, the Company issued 5,617,60! ordinary shares. See Note 3a.
3. On May 6, 2002, under the acquisition of DEP shares, the Company issued 2,261,843 ordinary shares. See Note 3b.
B. Options to employees

I. Options to Elron’s Employees

The Company has various stock option plans under which the Company may grant options to purchase the Company’s
shares to officers, directors and employees of the Company. Such options have been granted mainly with exercise
prices below market price at the date of the grant. Generally, the options vest over a four-year period from the date

of grant in four equal annual portions. The options expire after 5 to 9 years from the date of grant.

In May 2003, the Board of Directors of the Company approved a option plan (the "2003 Option Plan") providing for
the grant of 500,000 options to purchase 500,000 ordinary shares of the Company to eligible employees, directors

and officers of the Company or of any subsidiaries of the Company. |

As of December 31, 2003, 272,000 options were granted at an exercise price of $8 per share which price is to be
adjusted in the event the Company distributes a dividend. The options vest over a period of four years in four equal

annual portions and expire after 5 years from date of grant.

2003 } 2002 2001

Weighted Weighted Weighted
Number of average Number of average Number of average
options exerc!se options exerc_vse options exercise
price price
Qutstanding-beginning of the'year. .~ 557,880 .- " (392 .. - 404974 ":$° 1484 - - 119,634 §UHY:
Granted 291,333 8.03 *309,244 10.50 326,590
Exerdised * o . U 0T Q5875) o684 - (87,863) .k 688 (25000) k. TL
Forfeited : (31561 13.10 (68,475) 12.91 (16,250)
Outstanding - end of the year, "+ . 791,777 -~ $- 42,00 v+ 557,880 ..$ 1392, . 40497475

Options exercisable at

.'the end of theear 100313320 0§ HSEe o 207,681 -

* Includes 240,525 options granted to Elbit's employees as a result of the merger (See Note 3a) of which 54,675 were unvested.
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'NOTE 18: SHAREHDOLDERS’ EQUITY (CONT.) }
B. Obtidns to employees (Cont.)

I. Options to Eiron’s Employees (Cont.)

The weighted average fair values and weighted average exercise prices of options granted during the yéars

ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 200! were:
For options with an exercise price on the grant date that:

Exceeds market price

Less than market price

Year ended December 31,

Year ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001 { 2003 l 2002 20¢
Weighted average
- exercise prices . S B44T T 9 1486 0 8 1905 . § 8.00° $929 %l
Weighted average fair
values on grant date ©. 0T TL§EI30W 0 U$ 09N, § 398, ©§295 - $ 401 $ 6.
2. The following table summarizes information regarding outstanding and exercisable options as of December 31, 2003:
Options outstanding Options exercisable
Number Weighted- average Number Weighted-
outstanding at remaining Weighted- outstanding at average
Exercise price December 31, contractual life average exercise December 31, exercise
2003 (years) { price 2003 price
$6.941:834 - 354,166 425 5 7.98 21,000 $ . 719
$1038-11.69 190,500 392 $ 10.68 97,500 $ 10.69
$12.51-13.39 T 72945 193 $ - 1302 49904 - - $. -13.00.
$ 18.09-19.05 102,396 3.19 $ 18.59 81,396 $ 18.52
§2138y 138770 T se T e 2138 38,770 ‘s 2138
$2938 33,000 3.83 $ 29.38 24,750 $ 29.38
791,777 313,320

3. In December 1999, the Company's Shareholders approved a plan whereby the Chairman of the Board and the then
Chief Executive Officer of the Company were granted options to purchase up to 58,154 ordinary shares of the
Company (the "1999 grant™). The options were granted ratably over a period of 3 years commencing February 2000
and are exercisable for a period of three years, commencing two years after the date of the grant. The exercise price
of the options granted in February 2000, 2001 and 2002 was $21.38, $21.38 and $13.01, respectively.

In March 2001, the Company's Shareholders approved a plan whereby the Chairman of the Board and the then Chief
Executive Officer of the Company were granted options to purchase up to 58,000 ordinary shares of the Company
{the "2001 grant”). The options were granted ratably over a period of 3 years commencing June 2001 and are exercisable
for a period of three years, commencing two years after the date of the grant. The exercise price of the options
granted in June 2001, 2002 and 2003 was $ 19.05 § 8.34 and $ 8.437, respectively.
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'NOTE 18: SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (CONT.)|

B. Options to employees (Cont.)

As of grant date, the weighted average fair value of the 1999 grant and the 2001 grant was $7.67 and $3.29 per share,

respectively. The fair value was calculated using the Black & Scholes option-pricing model. (See Note 2s for the

assumptions used in the calculation).

Upon exercise of the options, the option holder will be granted a number of shares reflecting the benefit component

of the options exercised, as calculated at the exercise date, in consideration for their par value only. These plans are

considered to be variable plans as defined in APB 25 (except for the third portion of the 2001 grant which is accounted

for under SFAS No. 123, See Note2(s)). Compensation expense is calculated based on the quoted market price of the

Company's stock at the end of each reporting period and is amortized over the remaining vesting period of the options.

4. Compensation expense (income) recorded during 2003 amounted to $386 (2002 - $222, 2001 - $ (6)).

5.The balance of deferred compensation as of December 31, 2003 amounted to $1,032,

NOTE.19: LOSS PER SHARE |

Loss per share is computed as follows:

Year ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
Number Number Number
| of shares Per of shares | Per of shares Per
Loss (in thousands)J share amount Loss [ (in thousands) share amountj Loss i (in thousands)‘; share amount
“Babic U S(708) L ) 29945 BER8)  ts4n579Y '3»25;272_’;_:};; ST (1.58y 4 1 A$(52,359) # T 2T ‘-'{;-1’{3;(‘2’;};‘7)
Effect of
options of
investees - (200), (209) L aey
Dituted’ $(7,405) 129,194 T $(025)  .*$(41.788). D 26272 . S(158) *(52:605). T L 200191 #§(2:48)

* Restated - see Note 7 (d)(7).

Options issued by Elron as described in Note |7 were not included in the computation of diluted loss per share

because their effect is anti-dilutive.

3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS l

U.S. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data

.,‘N,D_T‘E‘ 20 EQUITY IN EARNINGS (LOSSES) OF AFFILIATED GOMPANIES |

Year ended December 31,

2003 2002 l 2001
|
Affiliated companies:

Elbit(1) S LT e %L g (Be58) $ 0 (13,138)
ESL 9,110 9,469 9,064
Given ot Tl e el e T R 3184y - 4376y - (1.575)
Others(2) (14.624) *(20,624) * (23,138)

* * 4
(1) Through the merger date, see Note 3a. 3 (8.698) $ (24.189) $ (28,787)

(2) Including equity in net losses of DEP, Galil and Mediagate through their respective acquisition date, see Note 3b, 3¢

and 3e.
* Restated - see Note 7 (d)(7)

NOTE. 21! GAIN FROM DISPOSAL OF BUSINESSES AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

AND CHANGES IN HOLDINGS IN AFFILIATED COMPANIES, NET

Year ended December 31,

2003 }l 2002 { 2001
BSL oo s 8 (35) 0§ 1603 $ . 2,985,
Given 4,548 5251 -
Galil:Medical's urology business (See Note3¢) “.o% -~ o L 21,24 - -
Others - 34 194
$ 25754 $ 6888 $_3.179

.;}qu‘-‘;g"fﬁ:'z]z’: OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES), NET|

Year ended December 31,

. , , 2003 2002 2001 }
Gain (loss) from sale and increase (decrease) in
market value of: (see a and b below)
 Partner $harés (Seg NGt 8(3))- 1+ TS 07 T8 e s
24/7 shares (see Note 5 (2)) 2,019 - -
Zix sharés (see Note'5(1)) ol T i o 4815 - -
AreiNet shares - Q@7 -
" Nétmanage shares: " ) - 632 56,
Broadbase shares ) - - {3,952)
" Kana shares {1 _ AT ) (69
Zoran shares and options - - 954
* 7 Other, companies;met 5 T USRI A0 R ey
Other than temporary decline in investments (see ¢ below) (3,716) (1.576) (966)
Equity in Iosses-of partnerships - = nomE L (547)7 - 303y - R VI
Other income 1,000 464 (232)
$ 14,665 $ (743) $  (4,888)

(1) Realized and unrealized gains and losses on trading securities.




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS]

U.S. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data

2¢{ OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES), NET (CONT.)|

A. Realized gains from sale of available-for-sale securities amounted to approximately $18,000, $700 and $1,000 in
the years ended December 3, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The proceeds from such sales amounted to
approximately $43,600, $900 and $10,700 for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

B. Including unrealized losses from trading securities held as of the end of the year in the amount of $4, $54 and $1 |
for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 respectively.

C. Including other than temporary decline in value of available-for-sale securities in the amount of approximately $0,
$600 and $1,000 for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Regarding other than temporary decline in value of other investments see Note 8 (3).

-FINANCING INCOME (EXPENSES), NET|

Year ended December 31,

2003 } 2002 2001 !
Income:

iIntereston cash equivalentsibank deposits.and debentures  $1:229. . .$.7 23147 $ 4670
Foreign currency gains 615 1,257 796
1,844 3571 5,466

Expenses:
Flnterest on shortstemiicreditiand long-term lodns o T L9740 0 93208 . L 3672
Foreign currency losses 623 444 86
2,597 3,652 3,758

$  (753) $ 81 $ 1708

NOTE 24! RESTRUCTURING COSTS|

In response to the economic conditions, and in particular, the slowdown in T spending, ET! underwent restructuring
programs in 2001 and 2002 in order to focus its operations on core areas of its business, to reduce expenses and
improve efficiency. These restructuring programs mainly included workforce reductions and consolidation of excess
facilities. Restructuring charges were recorded in accordance with SFAS No. 144, EITF Issue 94-3, "Liability Recognition
for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs in a Restructuring)”
and SAB No. 100, "Restructuring and Impairment Charges®.

Employee termination costs in 2002 and 2001 amounted to $934 and $739, respectively, relating to the termination
of 77 and 65 employees, respectively. These termination expenses were fully paid as of December 31, 2003. Facilities
related expenses in 2002 and 2001 amounted to $660 and $890, respectively, which included termination costs of a

facility lease contract and write-offs of leasehold improvements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSJ

U.S. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data

"NDTE 24! RESTRUCTURING COSTS(CaNT.)|

As part of the restructuring program, ET| sold in the third quarter of 2001 and at the beginning of 2002 certain activities
in its E-business field to Forsoft Multimedia Solutions Ltd. and in the defense system fields to Elbit Systems Ltd. ("ESL")

in consideration for $3,400 and $5,700, respectively, resulting in immaterial losses.

In 2003, 2002 and 200| ESW underwent several restructuring programs, the results of which have been classified as

discontinued operations. See Note 3(d).

Components of the restructuring charge for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, amounts paid during the

periods and remaining accrued liability as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, are as follows:

Facilities termination

Employee Write-off of |  charges, future rental
termination and long-lived losses and other
severance costs assets exit costs Total

Accrued restructuring liability at

" December 34, 2001 0= T LU S PR T S 7 SRR W2
Restructuring charges 934 772 612 *2318
vPayments and wnte offs CGTE) s IR e (862) - (2,550,
Accrued restructuring lnabmty at
Décember31,2002 B - T L L . X RO R o -7 3
Restructunng charges 294 97 46 *437
| Paymenisandwiiteroffs T @90) e Oy e (A00) B (T8

Accrued restructuring liability at
‘Decerber31,2003° 0 e TGy e g D g 69 H g

* An amount of $437 and $571 for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively, relates to ESW, for

which the results of operation are included in discontinued operations.

NOTE 25 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS|

During 2003 and 2002, the Company disposed of certain subsidiaries and businesses, which met the definition of a
component under SFAS No. 144. Accordingly, the results of operations of these subsidiaries and businesses and the
gain resulting from the disposals have been classified as discontinued operations in the statement of operations.

Comparative data for the businesses and subsidiaries sold have been reclassified accordingly.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS |

U.S. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data

i DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONT.)|

The folléwing is the composition of discontinued operations:
Year ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
Loss from operatnons of dnscontmued components —

. ESWi(see:Note 3d)ixe s a8 (4825)5 . $ (8567) . (10,390)
\/ﬂash (see Note 3f) ¥ 453 (| 852) ’ -
(4372) (13,3 |4) (10,390)

Gain on disposal
CESWIRENORd) L T T LT T AT
' ' ' - _ 1,991 ' -
4 (37 1,991 -
$  (235) $(11323) $ (10390)

$ 453 $  (2,405) $ -
8 (4,829) 1 $4(8,560) - $ o (10:352)-

** Includes the results of operations of Textology which was sold in consideration for loans, the balance of which was
written-down in 2003 (see Note 8(3)).

Revenues relating to discontinued operations for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 were as follows:

Year ended December 31,

2003 2002 200}

V-flash - 103 -
$ 4740 $ 8850 $ 9077

As of December 31, 2003 the consolidated financial statements do not include any material assets or liabilities of the
components disposed of.

. NOTE 267 RELATED PARTY TRANSACGTIONS]

A. Balances with related parties: December 31,

2003 2002
Trade receivables: . ;

Affiliated:companies’ 7o o e el T e T L LR I8
Other companies 377 1,308
2,127 1,308

O_ther receivables: ‘
-Affilisted Companiés (see note-3c)
Other companies

1,096 701

Long—term recelvables
Other'companies. el e e e T e e AR s T 453,
' 461 453
$ 3.684 $ 2462
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS I

U.S. doliars in thousands, except share and per share data

_NOTE 26: RELATED PARTY TRANSACGTIONS (CONT.)|

B. Income and expenses from affiliated and other companies: Year ended December 31,

Revenues .~ 3 e . CO§ U455 L g L2487 0§
interest and commission for guarantees 10 75

“Participation in ‘Directors: remuneration Ll et IR e igge g
Participation in expenses 76 308

Costs and Expenses:
CnlI9lT et 256

Directors' remuneranon 33 39

. “Participation:in’expenses:

‘Costof revenue o & A e AN : .
C. Option to the Chairman of the Board - see Note |8.

D. Sale of certain activities of ETI| to ESL - see Note 24.

2003 ] 2002 2001
Income: .

31284

126
28
724

41

728

ND< E’ 2'7 ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LDSS5) |

Foreign Minimum  Unrealized loss

Unrealized currency | pension liability | on derivatives

gains on| translation| in an affiliated | in an affiliated
securities | adjustments company company Total

~‘Balance-asof January 1,2002. e e 9040564 08 G338 2T 8 -8

Unrealized losses on avallable for sale securmes
4 (net.of tax;effect '

42231

Reclassification adjustment for reahzed gam mcluded
& in net loss (net: ! -
Reclassification ad)ustment for other than temporary
decline in value included in net loss
“ (netof-tax effect of $205)" L T34 e I e e 364
Mnmmum pension habslrty in an affhated company - - (597) - -(597)
' Balance as'of December.31,2002 UV 0§.-8459 § (333) 400 (597) ¢ =ie$ 7529
Unrealized gains on available for sale securmes
(net of tax effect-of $31:605) + " UL 085960 L TS 0 o0 L eal 551960
Reclassification adjustment for realized gain included

.. in netloss (net of tax effect.of $6,933). i .
Unreahzed loss on derivatives in an affiliated company - - -

. Foreign currency translation adjustrinent” : % 2 00 T LT 304)
Minimum pension liability in an affiliated company - - (172)

. Balance as of December 31,2003 S S 053306 LS (63T S (769) $ (108)%751.792
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U.S. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data

NOTE:28¢Y BUSINESS SEGMENTS |

A. As of December 31, 2003, the Company operates in two business segments: (1) the System and Projects
segment through its subsidiary ET! and (2) "Other Holdings and Corporate Operations” in which the Company

is directly engaged and includes corporate headquarters and reflects the investments in companies engaged in

various fields of advanced technology.

The operations of the System and Projects segment include development and supply of software solutions for
the management of large and complex communication and internet networks.

The Other Holdings and Corporate Operations segment includes holdings in various companies that operate in
the communications, software, defense industry, medical devices, semiconductors, advanced materials and other

fields and the corporate operations.

Prior to September 2, 2003, the Company operated indirectly through ESW in a third business segment — Internet

Products — which has been sold and therefore reclassified as discontinued operations. (see Note 3d).

B. Segment information is as follows:

Other holdings
Internet System and and corporate
products projects operations | Adjustments
2003 .
R LSk % 7390 LF %NS 8
Other income, net - 27 14,638
Equity inlosses of affliate: B 8698y
Gain from disposals of businesses and affiliated '
companies and changes in holdings in affiliated
companies, net - - 25,754
Financial income (expensesiinet- . - T L (1S0AYE T s 75T
Tax benefit (taxes on income) - (37) (6,797)
Netloss; " s e U(689). 074 L 44D
Depreciation and amortization - 254 1,336
Capital expenditures % % © D0 39 SR s
Total assets as of December 31, 2003 75 15,177 450,222 (14,770)
Goodwill as of December:31;:2003 .+ © - oL w00 589 s S 6428 o L

PO

AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCGCIAL STATEMENTS |

U.S. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data

» “Finandialincome

' NOTE 28: BUSINESS SEGMENTS (CONT.)|

Internet System and

products projects

2002

Net Fevenugs.

Other expenses, net - 4

. Equity in losses'of affliated cormipan

Gain from disposal of businesses and affiliated
companies and changes in holdings in affiliated

companies, net - -

Financial incomeZ(expenses

Tax benefit (taxes on mcome) - (99)

- Net foss Ty

Depreaa’uon and amortization - 1,473

Cap|ta! expend»tures

Total assets as of December 31, 2002 6,057 17,601
R 085 T

Goodwill. as of Décemberr 31,200

2001
Netrevenues . © " ©o T AT g e g 03,78)
Other expenses, net - 221)

Equlty m Iosses of aff'hated co"" >3
Gain from disposal of businesses and affiliated
companies and changes in holdings in affiliated

companies, net - R

(expenses)y net:
Taxes on income - (798)
2 o 2 (10390) 1 (15,302)
Depreua‘uon and amortization - (3,985)

Nétloss® .m0

* Restated - See Nate 7(d}(7).

10,089

R CIE1 9 CE
o lss

se

2830

Other holdings
and corporate
Adjustments

operations

Total J

(747) -

6,888 -
2,961 -
1,421 -

*383268  (12,673)

$ - % -
*(4,667) -

28787y - -

3,179 -

3,783 -

T*(26,667)

(226) -

Usshios g -

SoeR(Q4,189) o - T E

g
*Q7100) e -
133698 -

148627 0 -

Cigsag

$ 18179
(743)
$*(24189)-

6,888
81y
2862
*(41,579)-.
2,894
©.34303;
*394,253
"21.538

$~ 23782¢
* (4,888)
.- (28;787)

3,179
"1,708¢
2,985
*(52:359);

4211




NOTES TDO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS,

U.S. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data

NOTE'28: BUSINESS SEGMENTS (CONT.)|

2003 2002 2001

C. Revenues according to geographical destination are as follows:

Slsrdel I o e LY cn$T o 6589 K SO0t 8 21,736
Overseas (mamly USA) 9,958 6,078 2,046
$ 16,547 $ 15179 $ 23,782

200!

. j t follows:
D Rs;venues from major customers were as follows 2003 2002

In the Systems and Pro;ect segment

“CustomerA. A%

Customer B 2%
Custo‘rherC ~ iy :' T o o o = (9%‘
Customer D )
Oncura (SeeNote:28) . A 21% 5

E. The majority of the long-lived assets are located in Israel.

'NOTE . 29;: RECONCILIATION TO ISRAEL] GAAP |

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the U.S.. Had the consolidated financial statements been prepared in accordance with accounting

principles generally accepted in Israel ("Israeli GAAP™), the effects on the financial statements would have been as

follows:

A. Effect on the statement of operations: reportﬁéi Adjustments IsraeliAgAFfFr’
For the year ended December 31,2003:

Nt loss, = " e e e S A $ L (7205) i 8 18A36 e -§ L1231
Basic net ioss per share : (0.25) 0.63 0.38
Dilutéd het loss per, shares 7o Coiv i 5 o s e (025 L S 063 . 038

For the year ended December 3I 2002

Nét Toss "%

(38,368) .

o G A7) NEREHE S W) F S o

Basic net loss per share * (1.58) (1.46)
Diluted.net loss:per’share, A58 s : 2 1A48).

For the year ended December 31,2001:

1685 T : *(52359) 1) o1 T5,84
Basic net loss per share *(247)
R LAy

(46515)
(2.20)
a2y

Diluted net’loss per share « -+ . o i e

* Restated see Note 7 (d)(7)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS]

U.S. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data

RECONCILIATION TO ISRAELI GAAP (BONT.)|

ANOTE 29

B. Effect on the balance sheet:

As As per
reported Adjustments Israeli GAAP
As of December 31,2003:
" Ipvestments iy other cofrpanies‘and Tong et reteivables’. 4T $ 0128799 | § (12403505 51§ 47647
Investment in affiliated companies 156,819 (40,454) 116365
“Totalassets” i LT Fh a50 704 (1769819 1 273723,
Deferred taxes 40,684 (44.813) (4,129)
. Accurmulited. deficit - Y UL R BTy 2562 (10785)¢
Total equity 296,130 (115,692) 180,438
As of December 31,2002
investments in other. companies and long t : S L%89134 L otely T 18973,
Investment in affiliated companies *132,204 (32,416) 99,788
. Total assets’ L ¥3947253 0 0 e (121,988) 0 . 272,265
Deferred taxes 23,650 (28,767) (5.117)
. Acclimulated deficit -+ 7f e Do LR QS L 30T (22018)
Total equity *259 44| (94,526) 164915

* Restated - see Note 7 (d)(7)

C. Material adjustments:

The abovementioned adjustments include material differences between U.S. GAAP and Israeli GAAP as follows:

9 e I. According to U.S. GAAP, the merger of Elron and Elbit and the DEP share purchase as described in Note 3 are
accounted for by the purchase method in Elron’s financial statements. According to accepted practice in Israel, the
4 merger between Elron and Elbit and the DEP share purchase, are considered transactions with contfolling shareholders
o and accordingly, the assets and liabilities should be recorded according to their carrying values in the transferring

company at the dates of the relevant transactions.

In addition, in 2003 and 2002 Elbit recorded tax assets of approximately $7,600 and $6,600, respectively, in respect

of carryforward losses and in 2003 RDC reversed its valuation allowance by approximately $1 200. According to U.S.

i
3

GAAP, when at the acquisition date, a full valuation allowance is recorded to offset deferred tax assets in respect of
loss carryforwards and subsequent to that date, the valuation allowance is reduced by recording a tax benefit in respect

of those loss carryforwards, the entire tax benefit shouid be recorded as an adjustment to goodwill and other intangible

assets. According to accepted practice in Israel, only the portion of the tax benefit relating to the interest- acquired
S should be recorded as an adjustment to additional paid-in capital while the portion refating to the interest préviousiy
held by the acquirer should be recorded as a tax benefit in net income. The effect on net loss in 2003 and 2002

amounted to a reduction in losses of approximately $3,800 and $2,900, respectively.

SR




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSI

U.S. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data

NOTE 29: RECONGILIATION TOD ISRAELI GAAP (CONT.)|

C. Material adjustments (Cont.):

2. As a result of the purchase of DEP and additional investments in Oren, Elron’s aggregate interest in certain companies
has increased and enabled Elron to exercise significant influence in these companies. In accordance with U.S5. GAAP,
Elron’s direct holdings in these companies, which were accounted for by Elron at cost or as available-for-sale securities,
are accounted for retroactively under the equity method of accounting ("step-by-step acquisition”) which resulted in
a restatement of Elron's financial statements for all prior periods. According to Israeli GAAP, the equity method should
be applied only from the first time Elron could exercise significant influence in these companies.

As a'result, under Israeli GAAP, the excess of the investment over the equity acquired ("excess cost”) in Oren in the
amount of approximately $8,800 was assigned to intangible assets and will be amortized over a period of five years.
Under U.S GAAP no such excess cost exists, The effect on net loss in 2003, 2002 and 2001 amounted to a reduction
of losses of approximately $400, $300 and $4,000, respectively.

3. As described in Note 8(3), Elbit sold in 2003, 6,278,226 shares of Partner. According to accepted practice in Israel,
the merger between Elron and Elbit which occurred in May 2002, is considered a transaction with controlling shareholders
and accordingly the assets and liabilities of Elbit were recorded according to their carrying values in Elbit at the date
of the merger (see | above). The carrying value of the Partner shares was approximately $50 and therefore the gain
after tax recorded in respect of the above sale of Partner shares based on Israeli GAAP amounts tc approximately
$18,700, as compared to approximately $7,100 under US GAAP.

4. As described in Note 7(d)(3), in 2003 and 2002 RDC sold 753,600 and 500,000 shares of Given, respectively. As
described above (see | above) the investment in Given was recorded according to its carrying values in DEP at the
purchase date. As a result, the effect of the sale of Given shares in 2003 and 2002 amounted to an additional gain of
approximately $2,000 and $800, respectively.

5. According to U.S. GAAP the transfer of Galil's business in exchange for an interest in Oncura was recorded at fair
value and as a result Eiron recognized a gain on the transaction (net of minority interest and income taxes) in the
amount of $4,400 and recorded the investment in Oncura at fair value. According to Israeli GAAP, the aforementioned
exchange is accounted for as an exchange of similar productive assets. Accordingly the investment in Oncura was

recorded at the carrying value of the assets transferred and no gain was recognized.

6. According to U.S. GAAP, the gain arising from the initial public offering of Given is accounted for as an equity
transaction, as Given was a development stage company at the time. According to Israeli GAAP, this gain is recognized
in the statement of operations over three years from the date of the public offering. The effect on net loss in 2003,

2002 and 2001 amounted to an increase in income of approximately $1,900, $3,200 and $1,000, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS l

U.S. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data

_NOTE 29: RECONGCILIATION TO ISRAELI GAAP (CONT.)|

C. Material adjustments (Cont.):

7. Pursuant to SFAS 115, marketable securities which are available-fbr-sale are presented on the basis of their market
value and changes in such value are charged (or credited) to other comprehensive income. According to Israeli GAAP
non-current investments in marketable securities are presented at cost, while current investments in marketable
securities are presented at fair value, and changes in value are charged (or credited) to the income statement. The
effect on net loss in 2003 and 2002 amounted to an increase (decrease) in income of approximately $3'.7OO and $(300),

respectively.

8. Effective January |, 2002 the Company adopted SFAS 142, according to which goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite lives are no longer amortized periodically but are reviewed annually for impairment (or more frequently if

impairment indicators arise). According to lsraeli GAAP, all intangibles, including goodwill should be amortized.

9. According to U.S. GAAP the fair value of options granted to employees to acquire shares of affiliated companies
held by Elron and RDC is recorded as a liability. According to Israeli GAAP, no liability should be recorded if the

exercise of the options would not result in a loss to Elron.

10. According to U.S. GAAP, the merger of ESL and EL-OP which occurred in 2000 is accounted by the purchase
method in ESL's financial statements and accordingly a gain from the decrease in holding in ESL was recorded in Elron's
financial statements. According to accepted practice in Israel, the merger between ESL and EL-OP, from the perspective
of Eiron, is considered a non-monetary exchange of similar assets and accordingly was recor.ded at book value, with
no gain recognized. Therefore, the change recorded in the investment in ESL in Elron's books under Israeli GAAP,

was based on the book value of the net assets transferred by EL-OP.
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ANNEX TO THE FINANCGIAL STATEMENTS |
In thousands of U.S. Dollars

Details relating to major investments as of December 31, 2003:
Market value of the publicly traded
investments as of: .

March 5,
2004

Carrying value of

% of the investment
ownershig as of December 31,
interest ( 2003 2)

December 31,
2003

Consolidated Companies:
Elron Telesoft'Inc. - o
Galil Medical Ltd. ()

Affiliated Companies (equity):

Elbit Systems Ltd. (NasdagiESLT) - v o

Given Imaging Ltd. (Nasdag: GIVIN) &
NetVision Ltd. ‘ R

Cogw

20%

Rt 46% X

33%

17%

L 43,023 0 -

76,875

149,588«
130,966

‘Gemini Israel Fund LP.. .

Wavion, Inc. 38% - -
KIT eleatning BV. R LT SR . -
Chip Express Corporation 36% - -
Pulsicom Israel Techndlogies Ltd. " 1 < [ 8 9% : -
3DV Systems Ltd, ) 24% . .
Advanced Metal Techrologies Ltd, (AMT)" ./ 5 728% "5 - -
Witcom Ltd. ) 20% - -
CellAct Ltd. - - Lo s % - -
seLa & 24% . .
hgeneorltd, G L e - -
Notal Vision, Inc. 24% - -
Orén Semiconductor Inc, 7" 1w S T g G - -
Oncura () 8% . -
Starling 3 T T g . ;

Available for sale: _
Partner (Nasdaq: PTNR) ~ .° - il 0 99 i

Zix Corporation (Nasdaq: ZIXI) 3%
EVS.(Nasdag: EVSNF) D 6%

124305+ 122,888
7,159 (1,239
24097 3574,

Partnership:

innoMed Ventures L.P. 14% . 1,938 - : -

) On the basis of the ocutstanding share capital.

2) Includes loans and convertible notes.

®) Represents the carrying value and the ownership interest of the investment in Elron's books and Elron's share in the carrying
value and ownership interest of the investment in RDC's books.

) Represents Elron's share in the carrying value and the ownership interest of the investment in Galil's books.




CORPORATE DIRECTORY

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS
Elron Electronic Industries Ltd.

The Triangie Building, 42nd floor

3 Azrieli Center

Tel-Aviv 67023, Israel

Tel: +972-3-607-5555

Fax: +972-3-607-5556

Website: www.elron.com

TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR ) R ’
The American Stock Transfer & Trust Company is the Transfer Agent .
and Registrar for the Company’s common stock and malntalns p

shareholder accounting records. Contact the Transfer Agent regardmg_f

BDARD OF DIRECTORS
Ami Erel, Chairman
Avraham Asheri
Prof. Gabi Barbash
Dr. Chen Barir
Prof. Yair Be'eri
Avi Fischer

Yaacov Goldman
Oren Lieder

Dori Manor

Dr. Dalia Megiddo
Prof. Daniel Sipper

DFFICERS

questions pertaining to change of address d account names R

Shareholders who receive multiple copies of.the Company s reporpsl,'_' S ‘ Doron Birger, President & CEO
can avoid inconvenience and save the Company the 'e‘xnens'e ‘o_fi P Tal Raz, Vice President & CFO
multiple mailing by consolidating their accounts. SR o Moshe Fourier, Vice President & CTO

Shmuel Kidron, Vice President

~ Redundant mailing to a single household, Wnére_ accounts eX|st |n - B Avishai Friedman, Vice President-
more than one name, may also be eliminated. In th‘ei‘r‘cdrre:spo'n'dén'ce;‘; o o Business Development
2 the sharehoiders should state the exact name(s) in whlch theé stock""_‘ : o Paul Weinbeg, General Counsel &
; is registered, the certificate number(s) as weH -as old and new;' » Corporate Secretary

information pertaining to the account.
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

CONTAGT R ‘ . 'j‘ Kost Forer Gabbay & Kasierer
American Stock Transfer & Trust Company T, o (a member of Ernest & Young Globaly
40 Wall Street ’ . ‘ [
New York, NY 10005 Lo LR sy, LEGAL DOUNSEL
Tel: +1-718-921-8275 .. s ... Profjoseph Gross Hodak & Co.

) ‘ ' Advocates, Tel-Aviv
STOCK LISTING Lo ' o R o Kramer Levin Naftalis & Frankel, LLP
Elron’s common stock is traded on the -Tel-AViv Stock»Ex_tnénge and. ' New York

on Nasdaq National Market under the symbiol ELRN.
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TECHNOLOGY

PRDDUE‘TS

Elron Electronic Industries Ltd.
The Triangle Building, 42nd Floor
3 Azrieli Center, Tel-Aviv 67023, Israel
Tel.: +972-3-607-5555
Fax: +972-3-607-5556
email: elron@elron.net

WWW.ELRON.COM.

T srecyron
4 INDUSTRIE



